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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

TEHRE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Kingston
Financial Group Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to present
to you details of the Company’s (together with its subsidiaries, the
“Group”) annual performance and business development for the
year ended 31 March 2018 (the “Year”).

The Group recorded an increase of approximately 7% in total
revenue from approximately HK$2,878,897,000 for the year ended
31 March 2017 (“the Previous Year”) to approximately
HK$3,093,546,000 for the Year. Profit attributable to the Company’s
shareholders for the Year decreased by approximately 9% from
approximately HK$1,484,943,000 for the Previous Year to
approximately HK$1,348,626,000. The decrease was mainly due
to an impairment loss on advances to customers in margin
financing of approximately HK$430,573,000 (2017: approximately
HK$58,754,000) recognised during the year.

With strong capital base and prudent risk management policies to
credit control, the Group successfully coped with Hong Kong’s
challenging financial market and survived the volatility. The Group
managed to achieve satisfactory results, generating total revenues
from the financial service business segment of approximately
HK$2,411,363,000 for the Year, representing an increase of
approximately 9% as compared with approximately
HK$2,206,109,000 for the Previous Year.

For the remainder of 2018, the global economy is expected to
sustain acceleration in growth. As the world’s largest emerging
country making considerable contribution to the global economy,
China will demonstrate strength in its overall development and
growth. The upcoming launch of the Hong Kong-Zhuhai-Macau
Bridge and the high-speed railway will generate ample flow of
talents, logistics, information and capital investment among, the
Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area which will result
in plentiful opportunities for our financial sector. Mutual cooperation
among governments and regulatory authorities of Hong Kong and
Mainland China enhances local financial market development. We
will continue to review and refine our future plans, including
exchange-traded funds and southbound trading of bonds, as our
reputation as a financial hub grows. Being one of the leading
brokers in Hong Kong, we will continue to explore more business
opportunities in the future.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
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Benefitting from the development of the Greater Bay Area, the
tourism and gaming industry in Macau has been demonstrating
solid recovery. With favourable policies, opening of new hotels and
diversification of casino operations guadually coming into play, the
number of tourists and overall consumption will exhibit growth. We
believe that the development of tourism and gaming businesses in
Macau will be stable over the long term. Supported by steady
demand, the Group’s hotel business contributed revenues of
approximately HK$208,655,000 for the Year (the Previous Year:
HK$180,693,000), with gaming revenues amounting to
approximately HK$473,528,000 for the Year (the Previous Year:
HK$492,095,000).

In conclusion, | wish to take this opportunity to express my
gratitude to our board of directors, a truly dedicated team of Group
professionals, for their unwavering commitment and passion for
business over the past years. | would also like to sincerely thank all
of our valued service providers and business partners as well as
you, the shareholder, for your unwavering support.

By Order of the Board

Chu, Nicholas Yuk-yui
Chairman
Hong Kong, 28 June 2018
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

IR w0 T

On behalf of the Board of directors (the “Board”) of Kingston
Financial Group Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to
announce the annual results of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2018 (the
“Year”).

OVERVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in the provision of a wide range
of financial services including securities brokerage, underwriting
and placements, margin and initial public offering financing,
corporate finance advisory, futures brokerage and asset
management services. The Group also provides gaming and
hospitality services in Macau.

Total revenue recorded by the Group for the Year amounted to
approximately HK$3,093,546,000, representing an increase of
approximately 7% as compared to approximately
HK$2,878,897,000 for the year ended 31 March 2017 (“the
Previous Year”).

Profit attributable to the Company’s shareholders for the Year
amounted to approximately HK$1,348,626,000, representing a
decrease of approximately 9% as compared to approximately
HK$1,484,943,000 for the Previous Year. Basic earnings per share
for the Year was approximately HK7.77 cents, representing a
decrease of approximately 9% as compared to approximately
HK8.55 cents for the Previous Year. The decreases was mainly
due to an impairment loss on advances to customers in margin
financing of approximately HK$430,573,000 (2017: approximately
HK$58,754,000) recognised during the Year.

[]B Kingston Financial Group Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

Despite continuing geopolitical tensions and increasing political
pressure in certain regions around the world, the global economy
performed surprisingly well and many countries recorded
acceleration in GDP not seen in years. China’s economy grew
faster than expected, mainly supported by the industrial sector, the
property market and export growth. In 2017, China’s GDP
increased by 6.9% for the first time since 2011. The 6.8% of GDP
growth in the fourth quarter was higher than market expectation of
6.7%. China’s President Xi Jinping expressed at the annual World
Economic Forum in Davos that China welcomes free trade and
would further open wider the nation’s door to foreign investment.
The promotion of the Belt and Road Initiative is also moving on
apace. Leaders from over one hundred countries attended the
summit on China’s New Silk Road trade project in Beijing. Billions
of US dollars will be injected into the project in the foreseeable
future. The global economy is expected to benefit from massive
investments in railroads, ports and all types of infrastructure across
the globe.

For the Year, the average daily turnover of the Hong Kong
securities market was approximately HK$106.1 billion,
representing an increase of 57% as compared to approximately
HK$67.4 billion of the Previous Year. There were 203 newly-listed
companies during the Year, as compared to 146 reported newly
listed companies of the Previous Year. Due to geographical
advantages of close proximity to China and continuing integration
of Hong Kong and China markets, Hong Kong remained strong
and active in IPO and continued to dominate as the world’s leading
IPO centre. The robust growth of local financial market definitely
played an important role in bolstering the Company’s business
activities. The vitality of the local stock market in terms of trading
volume boosted the securities brokerage segment of the Company
to demonstrate growth with increased revenue as compared to the
Previous year. However, the market volatility has become more
intense amid concerns over a possible ignition of global trade war
and tightening monetary policy. During the Year, an impairment
loss of approximately HK$430,573,000 (2017: approximately
HK$58,754,000) were made on certain particular clients with
margin loans shortfall on a prudent basis after reviewing their
margin accounts portfolio and financial positions.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Moving forward in 2018, the Hong Kong economy and stock
market are likely to continue to benefit from the cross-border stock
connect schemes. There is also a huge potential of further
increases in southbound funds. This will, in turn, help attract more
funds to the Hong Kong market.

The opening of new hotels and diversification of casino operations
helped the Macau gaming segment restore momentum. According
to the Macau Government Tourism Office, visitor arrivals to the
Territory from April 2017 to March 2018 reached 33,283,758,
representing an increase of 6.1% over the same period in 2017.
The Group’s hotel and gaming operations recorded satisfactory
results.

Securities Brokerage, Underwriting and Placements
Securities brokerage, underwriting and placement services is one
of the main sources of income for the Group. The Group
undertakes the origination, structuring and marketing of
placements of equity and equity-related securities. It offers across-
the-board solutions to clients’ financing needs. The Group plays
significant roles as placing agents and underwriters for a wide
range of listed companies in different sectors.

The improving China’s economy triggered recovery of corporate
earnings, hence injected vitality to local stock market with
significant growth in trading volume. In addition, the cross-border
stock connect schemes have also attracted new funds from the
mainland which further lifted the trading activities and aroused
buoyant sentiment of the market. During the Year, the Group
recorded a revenue in this segment of approximately
HK$360,544,000 (2017: approximately HK$293,920,000),
representing an increase of approximately 23% compared to the
Previous Year, which also accounted for approximately 15% (2017:
approximately 13%) of the Group’s financial service segment
revenue and approximately 12% (2017: approximately 10%) of the
Group’s total revenue.

[]8 Kingston Financial Group Limited
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Margin and IPO Financing

To complement the Group’s securities brokerage services, the
Group also provides margin and IPO financing services. Margin
financing is made available to clients who have opened margin
accounts with the Group to purchase securities with funds
borrowed from it to leverage their investments. IPO financing is the
grant of loans to clients for subscriptions of shares relating to an
IPO.

Leveraging on the Group’s compelling advantages from strong
capital base and prudent risk management policies to credit
control, the Group managed to achieve solid development in
margin and IPO financing. During the Year, the Group continued
its steady performance in the segment, with revenue amounted to
approximately HK$1,964,949,000 (2017: approximately
HK$1,879,222,000), representing a rise of approximately 5% as
compared to the Previous Year, which also accounted for
approximately 81% (2017: approximately 85%) of the Group’s
financial service segment revenue and approximately 63% (2017:
approximately 66%) of the Group’s total revenue. However, the
stock market was volatile over the year, an impairment loss on
advances to customers in margin financing of approximately
HK$430,573,000 (2017: approximately HK$58,754,000) was made
accordingly, which resulted in a drop of the net profit in this
segment for the Year.

Other Financial Services — Corporate Finance
Advisory Services, Futures Brokerage and Asset
Management

Complementing the securities brokerage, underwriting and
placements, and margin and IPO financing, the Group also
provides a full range of financial services to its clients including
corporate finance advisory services, futures brokerage and asset
management.

The Group holds license under the Securities and Futures
Ordinance to engage in advising on corporate finance activities.
The scope of services provided includes advising on corporate
finance transactions, sponsoring IPOs and advising clients on deal
structure and financing strategies in the context of mergers and
acquisitions, equity fund raising exercises, takeovers and other
notifiable transactions.

The Group provides brokerage services for index futures trading
on the Futures Exchange, including After Hours Futures Trading,
clients can place orders online and through telephone.
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The Group also provides portfolio management services. The asset
management business generates revenue by charging
management fees and incentive fees based on the amount of
assets under management, and returns of portfolios, respectively.

Credit to the Group’s professional team and favorable market
condition, this segment recorded revenue of approximately
HK$85,870,000 for the Year (2017: approximately HK$32,967,000),
representing an increase of approximately 160% as compared to
the Previous Year, which also accounted for approximately 4%
(2017: approximately 2%) of the Group’s financial service segment
revenue and approximately 3% (2017: approximately 1%) of the
Group’s total revenue.

Goodwill Impairment Assessment

Goodwill has arisen upon the Group’s acquisition of financial
services business completed in April 2011. An independent
professional valuer was engaged to perform impairment
assessment on the goodwill. It was found that the recoverable
amount of all 3 cash generating units, namely the Placing and
Underwriting segment, the Margin and IPO Financing segment and
the Corporate Finance segment, exceed their respective carrying
amount. Under this circumstance, no impairment on the goodwill is
considered necessary.

Hotel Business
In addition to operating finance business, the Group is also
engaged in hotel business in Macau, which comprises of hotel
room rental, food and beverage operation catering to international
and local markets.

Benefit from the growth of the Macau tourism industry, revenue for
the Year amounted to approximately HK$208,655,000 (2017:
approximately HK$180,693,000), representing an increase of
approximately 15% as compared to the Previous Year. Hotel
business contributed approximately 31% (2017: approximately
27%) of the total hotel and gaming business revenue and
approximately 7% (2017: approximately 6%) of the Group’s total
revenue.

Credit to our innovative marketing, promotional programs and
excellent hospitality, the average occupancy rates of the two
hotels, namely Casa Real and Grandview, were approximately
88% (2017: approximately 85%) and approximately 89% (2017:
approximately 76%) during the Year.

1 [] Kingston Financial Group Limited
Annual Report 2018
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Gaming Business

The Group’s casino operation is run by the licence holder
Sociedade de Jogos de Macau, S.A. During the Year, the two
casinos consistently provided solid contributions to the Group.

Facing strong competition in the market, gaming revenue of the
Group, amounted to approximately HK$473,528,000 for the Year,
representing a decrease of approximately 4% as compared to
approximately HK$492,095,000 of the Previous Year. Gaming
revenue accounted for approximately 69% (2017: approximately
73%) of total hotel and gaming business revenue and
approximately 15% (2017: approximately 17%) of the Group’s total
revenue.

As at 31 March 2018, the Group has 64 tables (2017: 64) in the
mass market halls, 12 tables (2017: 12) in the VIP rooms and 277
slot machines (2017: 280) and 140 live baccarat machines (2017:
140) in the electronic gaming halls. Live baccarat machines
brought additional crowd to the casino, achieving synergy with the
slot machine business as well.

Other Income

Other income mainly represents handling charges received from
securities clients, bad debts recovered and other miscellaneous
income. The income increased by approximately 33% from
approximately HK$29,743,000 for the Previous Year to
approximately HK$39,647,000 for this Year. The increase was due
to a compensation of approximately HK$9,774,000 received during
the Year for loss on intangible assets of the Group.

Fair value (loss)/gain on held for trading investments
During the Year, the Hong Kong equity market experienced
fluctuations. The market value of the held for trading investments
held by the Group during the year recorded a fair value loss of
approximately HK$12,331,000 (2017: fair value gain approximately
HK$19,665,000). As at 31 March 2018, the Group was holding
trading investments of approximately HK$192,805,000 (2017:
approximately HK$134,955,000) in market value.

Inventory consumed

Inventory consumed represents the cost of guest supplies and
food and beverage consumed upon provision of accommodation
and catering services to the customers. During the Year, it
amounted to approximately HK$22,167,000 (2017: approximately
HK$21,871,000).
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Staff costs

Staff costs amounted to approximately HK$264,966,000 (2017:
approximately HK$274,407,000), representing a decrease of
approximately 3%. The Group reviewed and adjusted
compensation and benefits to employee regularly to match market
rates. Packages commensurate with employees’ qualifications and
experience were provided to retain good employees in the Group
as well as to hire potential talents.

Gaming commission

Gaming commission represents amount paid as an incentive to
attract customers. The commission paid by the Group was in line
with market level. The amount increased by approximately 1% from
approximately HK$91,470,000 in the Previous Year to
approximately HK$92,526,000 in the Year.

Broker Commission

Broker commission decreased slightly by approximately 4% from
approximately HK$46,955,000 in the Previous Year to
approximately HK$45,284,000 in the Year. The Group adjusted
broker commission according to prevailing market conditions.

Interest expenses for securities brokerage,
underwriting and placements, margin and IPO
financing operations

The interest expenses increased from approximately
HK$247,090,000 in the Previous Year to approximately
HK$264,144,000 in the Year, representing an increase of
approximately 7% as overall cost of funding of the Group
increased during the Year.

Impairment loss on advances to customers in margin
financing

Due to the volatility in the local stock market during the Year,
impairment loss of approximately HK$430,573,000 (2017:
approximately HK$58,754,000) were made on some particular
clients with margin loans shortfall on a prudent basis after
reviewing their margin accounts portfolio and financial positions.

1 2 Kingston Financial Group Limited
Annual Report 2018
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Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses mainly represent rent and rates, legal and
professional fees, leases expenses for intangible assets,
advertising and Macau property tax. During the year, it amounted
to approximately HK$125,654,000 (2017: approximately
HK$110,856,000), representing an increase of approximately 13%.
The increase was mainly due to more leases expenses for the 15
subsurface mineral leases as recorded under intangible assets of
the Group.

Other operating expenses

Other operating expenses mainly represented operating expenses
for gaming facilities, promotion expenses and other hotel rooms.
During the Year, it amounted to approximately HK$138,105,000
(2017: approximately HK$153,619,000) representing
approximately a 10% decrease. The decrease was mainly owing to
less promotion expenses for VIP room. This was in line with the
drop in revenue from gaming segment due to strong competition in
the industry.

Finance cost

During the Year, finance cost of approximately HK$30,300,000
(2017: approximately HK$20,200,000) represented the interest
expenses on the amount due to a shareholder. Overall cost of
funding of the Group increased during the year.

Amortisation

The amount of approximately HK$14,132,000 (2017: approximately
HK$14,132,000) for the Year represented the amortisation
expenses of the intangible assets which has been amortised on a
straight-line basis over its estimated useful life of 24 years.

THEX

THRASTEEHSMEM  AENHREEH -
ﬁﬁéﬁ?ﬂﬁ =Y BEEBRBRMABER - B
NEFE - T X4 A125,654,00008 T( ==
—tF: Zﬁﬂo 856,000/8 L) * HEIRX) A 13% °
EHENETEARM 15N TRERS (FIRE
REEBEREE) HESESHEMRAY -

Hih &2

B EmT T BEEERE  HEA RHEM
BIEREZCERS - RAFTE - EMEERY
# /138,105000%8 7t( = & — + F: &
153,619,000/8 L) * BKIBX) A 10% © “ﬁﬁ%ﬁ&\}
ERREERHEERY T BEX»BkE
EARBRFHRUM TR —2 -

A& R AN

RAREE - GhE A% 30,300,000/8 T (ZFE—+
F 1 #920,200,000/8 70 ) 5 & — B AR R FIB 2 F)
BRHY c RFEEAREEEEES KAWL -

NEELEEH 14,132,000 L (Z T —+HF : 4
14,132,000 70) 5 E IR E R EEN E AR A A
FHIOAF N v | B E# Y -



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

IR w0 T

FUTURE PROSPECTS

Financial service segments

As the world’s largest emerging economy, China’s overall
development trend remains strong. Looking ahead, the Belt and
Road Initiative and the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater
Bay Area will further strengthen the position of Hong Kong as a
foreign investment gateway of China. According to the outlook
report issued by major banks, economists are generally optimistic
about the acceleration of global economic growth in 2018, and
predict that the average growth rate will reach 4.1% this year. The
strong economic performance of 2017 is expected to continue and
stimulate growth in global equity markets.

The Hong Kong Government and regulatory authorities continue to
strengthen local financial market development through a variety of
means. Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited officially
accepts listed applications for weighted voting rights while Hong
Kong stocks increase their daily quota. The Hong Kong Monetary
Authority and the People’s Bank of China are also working closely
together to carry out the ‘northbound trading’ of the Bond Connect
scheme for one year. Trading volume and number of participating
institutions have gradually increased, becoming an important
channel for foreign institutions to invest in the mainland bond
market, and hence actively fueled the growth of local brokers.

During five of the past nine years, the amount of Hong Kong’s
initial public offerings has ranked first in the world, indicating that it
has always been the ideal platform for international listings by
many enterprises. By virtue of its capital markets advantages,
Hong Kong can provide domestic enterprises with comprehensive
financing options, thereby consolidating itself as a leading
international financial centre.

In the future, the Group will strive to enhance its visibility in Hong
Kong’s capital markets as well as in mainland China and we will
continue to expand our business scope. At the same time, the
Group will make good use of its resources and take the opportunity
to promote business expansion to a higher level.

1 4 Kingston Financial Group Limited
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Hotel and gaming segments

The Macau gaming market will continue to benefit from China’s
strong economy with more new resorts openings and upgrade of
existing facilities. The opening of the Hong Kong-Zhuhai-Macao
Bridge in 2018 will allow convenient travel to Macau which will
bolster its tourism market. To this end, gaming operators have also
been vigorously developing non-gaming businesses such as
constructing scalable hotels as well as entertainment and leisure
facilities to attract tourists. In addition, the Macau government has
set up new financial reporting standards to enhance transparency,
providing international markets with a better understanding of its
gaming industry.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
FUNDING

As at 31 March 2018 the shareholders’ fund and net current assets
of the Group amounted to approximately HK$20,623,754,000
(2017: approximately HK$19,581,267,000) and approximately
HK$7,350,416,000 (2017: approximately HK$6,928,355,000)
respectively. On the same date, the Group had cash and bank
balance of approximately HK$395,793,000 (2017: approximately
HK$304,762,000) and the current ratio was approximately 1.5
(2017: approximately 1.4).

As at 31 March 2018, the Group had bank borrowings of
approximately HK$2,350,000,000 (2017: approximately
HK$3,235,834,000), amounts due to shareholders of approximately
HK$4,219,911,000 (2017: approximately HK$2,311,911,000), loan
from a related company of approximately HK$7,142,999,000 (2017:
approximately HK$7,948,861,000) and subordinated loans of
approximately HK$700,000,000 (2017: approximately
HK$700,000,000). On the same date, the net gearing ratio,
measured on the basis of total borrowings less bank and cash
balances over net assets, was approximately 68% (2017:
approximately 71%).
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The following table details the Cash and bank balances — general
account and bank loan of the Group at the end of the reporting
period denominated in original currencies:

TREJINBEPRARBERHEZAEER
T RRITHER — —REPURRITEFRFE

2018
—E-N\E
HKD CNY UsD JPY SGD GBP
BT AR¥ E H 3N T W
(000)  (000)  (000)  ('000)  ('000)  (’000)
(Fr) (Fr) (Fr) (Fr) (Fr) (F#)
Cash and bank balances BE RRITHE
— general account — —REP 358,473 3,040 356 - 118 7 31 28,626
Bank loan BITER 2,350,000 = = = = = = =
2017
—T—+F
usb JPY SGD GBP AUD MOP
e H T B RINTT BPIT
('000) ('000) ('000) ('000) ('000) ('000)
(F) (F) (Fr) (F#) (F) (F)
Cash and bank balances Be MRTeEs
— general account ——REF 293,662 2,750 10 - 109 8 9 7,003
Bank loan BITER 3,235,834 - - - - - - -
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES WAREE

Details of contingent liabilities of the Group as at 31 March 2018
are set out in note 44 to the financial statements in this report.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE
During the Year, no material fluctuation was noted on the
Company’s capital structure.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

At 31 March 2018, the Group had capital commitments of
approximately HK$630,000 (2017: approximately HK$1,335,000) in
respect of acquisition of plant and equipment.

Kingston Financial Group Limited
Annual Report 2018
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FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board has recommended the payment of a final dividend of
HK2 cents (2017: HK2.5 cents) per Share for the year ended 31
March 2018 (“Final Dividend”), amounting to approximately
HK$347,290,000 (2017: approximately HK$434,113,000). The
proposed Final Dividend is subject to approval by the
Shareholders at the AGM and a resolution will be proposed to the
Shareholders for voting at the AGM. If the resolution for the
proposed Final Dividend is passed at the AGM, the proposed Final
Dividend is expected to be paid on 12 September 2018 to the
Shareholders whose names appear on the register of members of
the Company on 30 August 2018.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For ascertaining shareholders’ right to attend and
vote at AGM

Latest time to lodge transfers 4:30 p.m. on
15 August 2018 (Wednesday)
11:00 a.m. on
19 August 2018 (Sunday)
16 August 2018 (Thursday) to
21 August 2018 (Tuesday)

Latest time to lodge proxy form

Book close date

Record date 21 August 2018 (Tuesday)

AGM 21 August 2018 (Tuesday)

For ascertaining shareholders’ entitlement to the
proposed Final Dividend
Latest time to lodge transfers 4:30 p.m. on
28 August 2018 (Tuesday)
29 August 2018 (Wednesday) to
30 August 2018 (Thursday)

Book close date

Record date 30 August 2018 (Thursday)

Final Dividend expected
payment date

12 September 2018
(Wednesday)

In order to qualify for the right to attend and vote at the AGM and
for the proposed Final Dividend, all transfers accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s
Hong Kong branch share registrar and transfer office, Tricor
Abacus Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Hong Kong before the above latest time to lodge transfers.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate revenue from sales of goods or rendering of
services during the year ended 31 March 2018 attributable to the
Group’s five largest customers were less than 30% of the Group’s
total revenue from sales of goods or rendering of services. The
aggregate purchases during the year ended 31 March 2018
attributable to the Group’s five largest suppliers were less than
30% of the Group’s total purchases.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 March 2018, the Group employed a total of approximately
885 (2017: approximately 884) staff. The total staff cost for the Year
was approximately HK$264,966,000 (2017: approximately
HK$274,407,000). The employees’ remuneration, promotion and
salary adjustment are assessed based on their work performance,
working and professional experiences and the prevailing market
condition.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 March 2018, the Group had pledged clients’ securities at
a value of approximately HK$7,259,478,000 (2017: approximately
HK$6,414,393,000), a bond at a value of approximately
HK$44,183,000 (2017: approximately HK$46,512,000) and
certificates of deposit at a value of approximately HK$47,950,000
(2017: approximately HK$48,470,000) to secure certain banking
facilities provided to the Group.

In addition, the Group’s term loans are secured by:

— the pledge of leasehold land and buildings held for own use
with carrying amounts of approximately HK$2,200,000,000
(2017: approximately HK$2,140,000,000);

— shares of two subsidiaries;

—  corporate guarantee from a subsidiary;

— acharge over operating bank accounts of two subsidiaries;

— assignment of income and receivables arising from
commercial operations of two subsidiaries.

1 8 Kingston Financial Group Limited
Annual Report 2018
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MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

There was no material acquisition nor disposal conducted by the
Group during the Year.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The principal risk and uncertainty facing the Group is the market
economy of China, Hong Kong and the surrounding regions as
significant changes in their economic conditions will have
significant impact on China and Hong Kong'’s stock market, as well
as Macau’s tourism.

Other risks include credit risks, market risks, liquidity risks and
interest rate risks. The Group has been adopting prudent risk
management policy to mitigate exposure to various risks.

RISK MANAGEMENT

Credit risk

The Group’s Risk Management Committee has put in place credit
management policies and procedures which cover the examination
of the approval of clients’ trading and credit limits, approval and
review of the margin lending ratio of individual stock, monitoring of
credit exposures and the follow up of credit risks associated with
overdue debts. Day-to-day credit monitoring is performed by the
Group’s Credit and Risk Control Department in accordance with
the policies and procedures approved by the Risk Management
Committee with toleration and exception reports reviewed by
Responsible Officers and senior management of the Group as well
as by the Risk Management Committee at regular meetings.

Market risk

If the market value of a margin client’s portfolio falls below his
margin loan amount and the margin client fails to meet margin
calls, the Group will be exposed to the risk that the margin loan
being delinquent. Similarly, if the value of the underlying products
of a client’s futures contract fluctuates such that the outstanding
balances in his account falls below the required maintenance
margin level, the Group may suffer loss if the client’'s account
incurs loss even after liquidation of the open position. The
management of the Group keeps close monitoring of the market
condition so that immediate precautionary measures will be taken
to reduce such risk that the Group may encounter. Follow up
actions such as reducing the margin ratio for the pledged
securities and requiring clients to top up their position would be
taken if considered appropriate.
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Liquidity risk

As part of its ordinary brokerage activities, the Group is exposed to
liquidity risk arising from timing difference between settlement with
clearing houses or brokers and clients. The goal of liquidity
management is to enable the Group to adequately fund such
business commitments as well as to comply with relevant financial
resources rules applying to various licensed subsidiaries. To
address the risk, the Group’s Accounts Department and the senior
management will review and monitor the Group’s liquidity position
on daily basis to ensure the availability of sufficient liquid funds. In
addition, the Group has also put in place stand-by banking and
other facilities in order to meet any contingency in its operations.
The management believes the Group’s working capital is adequate
to meet its financial obligations.

Interest rate risk

The Group charged interest on its margin clients on the basis of its
cost of fund plus mark-up. Financial assets such as margin loans
and deposit with banks are primarily at floating rates. Financial
liabilities such as bank loans are primarily at floating rates. The
Group income and operating cash flows are not subject to
significant interest rate risk.

FOREIGN CURRENCY EXPOSURE

As the Group’s hotel revenues are mostly denominated in Macau
Patacas (“MOP”), and given the exchange rate of MOP has been
fairly stable, its exposure to exchange rate risk is considered to be
limited.

The Group’s financial services businesses and gaming revenue
are mainly denominated in Hong Kong Dollars and hence no
significant exchange rate risk is identified.

TREASURY POLICY

The Group may invest its surplus funds or funds not designated for
specific purpose or funds designated for specific purpose but
application of which is not immediately required (collectively “the
Group’s Funds”) in the form of short term (i.e. less than one year)
and liquid stocks through investing the Group’s Funds in diversified
portfolio of investments products including listed or unlisted
securities, unit trust funds, or such other investments as the Board
of the Company, or such committees or person as the Board may
authorize, may decide from time to time so as to preserve the value
of the Group’s Funds and/or achieve capital appreciation.

20 Kingston Financial Group Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B E I RA T

REVIEW BY AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”)
meets the external auditors at least twice a year to discuss any
areas of concerns during the audits. The Audit Committee reviews
the interim and annual reports before submission to the Board. The
Audit Committee focuses not only on the impact of the changes in
accounting policies and practices but also on the compliance with
accounting standards, the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
(the “Listing Rules”) and the legal requirements in the review of the
Company interim and annual reports. The Group’s annual results
for the year ended 31 March 2018 have been reviewed by the
Audit Committee.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 March 2018, there were no purchases,
sales or redemption of the Company'’s listed securities by the
Company or any of its subsidiaries.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Group had complied with all code provisions set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) contained in Appendix
14 of the Listing Rules on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) during the year ended 31 March
2018.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors by Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set
out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. Upon enquiry by the
Company, all directors of the Company have confirmed that they
have complied with the required standards set out in the Model
Code during the year ended 31 March 2018.

By order of the Board

Chu Yuet Wah
Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 28 June 2018
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TRERME

The Board is pleased to present this Corporate Governance Report
in the Group’s annual report for the year ended 31 March 2018.

Good corporate governance has always been recognised as vital
to the Group’s success and to sustain development of the Group.
We commit ourselves to a high standard of corporate governance
as an essential component of quality and have introduced
corporate governance practices appropriate to the conduct and
growth of the business of the Group.

The Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the “CG Code”)
contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules sets out the
principles of good corporate governance (the “Principles”) and two
levels of corporate governance practices:

(a) code provisions (the “Code Provisions”) which listed issuers
are expected to comply with or to give considered reasons
for any deviation; and

(b) recommended best practices (the “Recommended Best
Practices”) for guidance only, which listed issuers are
encouraged to comply with or give considered reasons for
deviation.

The Company has applied the Principles and the Code Provisions
as set out in the CG Code and complied with all the Code
Provisions. It also put in place certain Recommended Best
Practices as set out in the CG Code.

The Company periodically reviews its corporate governance
practices to ensure that these continue to meet the requirements of
the CG Code, and acknowledges the important role of its Board in
providing effective leadership and direction to the Company’s
business, and ensuring transparency and accountability of the
Company’s operations.
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The key corporate governance principles and practices of the
Company are summarised as follows:

THE BOARD

Responsibilities

The Board provides leadership, approves policies, strategies and
plans, and oversees their implementation to further the healthy
growth of the Company, in the interests of its shareholders.

The Board takes responsibility for all major matters of the
Company, including: the approval and monitoring of all policy
matters, overall strategies and budgets, internal control and risk
management systems, financial information, appointment of
Directors and other significant financial and operational matters.

All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant information
as well as the advice and services of the Company Secretary, with
a view to ensuring that Board procedures and all applicable rules
and regulations are followed.

Each Director is normally able to seek independent professional
advice in appropriate circumstances at the Company’s expense,
upon making request to the Board.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of the
Company are delegated to the Chief Executive Officer and the
senior management. The delegated functions and work tasks are
periodically reviewed by the Board. Approval has to be obtained
from the Board prior to any significant transactions entered into by
the abovementioned officers.

The Board has the full support of the senior management to
discharge its responsibilities.

Composition

The composition of the Board reflects the necessary balance of
skills and experience desirable for effective leadership of the
Company and independence in decision making. The Board
currently comprises 7 members, consisting of 4 Executive
Directors and 3 Independent Non-executive Directors.
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The Board comprises the following Directors:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Chu, Nicholas Yuk-yui (Chairman)

Mrs. Chu Yuet Wah (Chief Executive Officer)*
Mr. Chu, Kingston Chun Ho*

Mr. Ho Chi Ho

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Dr. Wong Yun Kuen (Chairman of Nomination Committee and
Member of Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee)
Mr. Lau Man Tak (Chairman of Audit Committee and Member of
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee)

Ms. Lo, Miu Sheung Betty
(Chairman of Remuneration Committee and Member of
Audit Committee and Nomination Committee)

The list of Directors (by category) is also disclosed in all corporate
communications issued by the Company pursuant to the Listing
Rules from time to time.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Board at all times met
the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of
at least three Independent Non-executive Directors with at least
one Independent Non-executive Director possessing appropriate
professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial
management expertise. The number of Independent Non-executive
Directors also represented at least one third of the members of the
Board.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
Independent Non-executive Director of independence pursuant to
the requirements of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all
independent Non-executive Directors to be independent in
accordance with the independence guidelines set out in the Listing
Rules.

* Mrs. Chu Yuet Wah is the spouse of Mr. Chu, Nicholas Yuk-yui.
# Mr. Chu, Kingston Chun Ho is the son of Mr. Chu, Nicholas Yuk-yui
and Mrs. Chu Yuet Wah.
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Mr. Lau Man Tak is a non-executive director, chairman and
substantial shareholder of REF Holdings Limited (“REF”), a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. The
Group entered into certain connected transactions (“Connected
Transactions”) with REF and its subsidiary during the year under
review. Details are set out in note 46 to the financial statements. Mr
Lau does not have any management role in the Company and its
subsidiaries since his appointment. He has expressed his
willingness clearly to exercise independent judgement and has
been giving objective views to the Company. There is no evidence
that the Connected Transactions, given its immateriality, has an
unfavourable influence on his independence, the Board is satisfied
that, as proven by the valuable independent judgement and advice
given by Mr. Lau over the years, Mr. Lau has the required
character, integrity, independence and experience to perform the
role of an Independent Non-executive Director. The Board is not
aware of any circumstances that might influence Mr. Lau in
exercising his independent judgement and therefore believes he is
still independent.

Mr. Lau Man Tak and Dr. Wong Yun Kuen have served the Board
for more than nine years. Both Mr. Lau and Dr. Wong do not have
any management role in the Company and its subsidiaries since
their appointment. They have expressed their willingness clearly to
exercise independent judgement and have been giving objective
views to the Company. There is no evidence that length of tenure
has an unfavourable influence on the independence of longserving
non-executive directors. The Board is satisfied that, as proven by
the valuable independent judgement and advice given by Mr. Lau
and Dr. Wong over the years, Mr. Lau and Dr. Wong have the
required character, integrity, independence and experience to
perform the role of an Independent Non-executive Director. The
Board is not aware of any circumstances that might influence Mr.
Lau and Dr. Wong, in exercising their independent judgement and
therefore believes they are still independent.

In accordance with bye-law 87(1) of the Bye-laws, Mr. Chu,
Kingston Chun Ho, Mr. Lau Man Tak and Dr. Wong Yun Kuen shall
retire at the AGM and being eligible, will offer themselves for re-
election.

The Independent Non-executive Directors bring a wide range of
business and financial expertise, experiences and independent
judgement to the Board. Through active participation in Board
meetings, taking the lead in managing issues involving potential
conflict of interests and serving on Board Committees, all
Independent Non-executive Directors make various contributions
to the effective direction of the Company.
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Appointment and Succession Planning of Directors
The Company has established formal, considered and transparent
procedures for the appointment and succession planning of
Directors.

The term of office for each of Executive Directors and Independent
Non-executive Directors is the period up to his retirement by
rotation and re-election at annual general meeting of the Company
in accordance with the Company’s bye-laws.

All Non-executive Directors have executed a letter of appointment
with the Company for a term of one year which commenced on 1
April 2018, and subject to compliance with relevant requirements
of the Listing Rules, and will continue thereafter until terminated by
either party by giving not less than three months’ written notice.

In accordance with the Company’s bye-laws, any Director so
appointed by the Board shall hold office only until the following
annual general meeting (*AGM”) and shall then be eligible for
re-election at that meeting.

At each AGM, one-third of the Directors for the time being shall
retire from office by rotation.

In August 2013, on the recommendation of the Nomination
Committee, the Board has approved and adopted the revised
terms of reference of the Nomination Committee in light of the
amendments of the CG Code, and the same are published on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company. The Board also
approved the adoption of the Board Diversity Policy. The Company
seeks to achieve Board diversity through the consideration of a
number of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. All Board
appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be
considered against objective criteria, having due regard for the
benefits of diversity on the Board.

Training for Directors

In case there is any newly appointed Director, he/she will be
provided an induction so as to ensure that he/she has appropriate
understanding of the business and operations of the Company and
that he/she is fully aware of his/her responsibilities and obligations
under the Listing Rules and the relevant regulatory requirements.
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All Directors have provided records of the training they received to
the Company. The trainings included attending experts briefings,
seminars, and conferences, reading materials relevant to the
business, corporate governance and directors’ duties.

There are also arrangements in place for providing continuing
briefing and professional development to Directors whenever
necessary. In April 2018, the Company has organised a training
session to all Directors conducted by qualified professionals on
topics of “The new amendment of the GEM listing application
requirement”, “Reverse takeover under the Notifiable Transactions”
and “Inside information”. All directors attended that session.

Board Meetings

Number of Meetings and Directors’ Attendance

Regular Board meetings are held at least four times a year at
approximately quarterly intervals for reviewing and approving the
financial and operating performance, and considering and
approving the overall strategies and policies of the Company. The
Board is also responsible for determining the policy for corporate
governance and performed the duties under the terms of reference
in code provision D.3.1 of Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules during
the year.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, 4 full Board meetings and 1
general meetings were held. The individual attendance record of
each Director at the Board meeting and general meeting during
the year ended 31 March 2018 is set out below:

Name of Directors

EENR

Mr. Chu, Nicholas Yuk-yui RAWRE
Mrs. Chu Yuet Wah FRERZL
Mr. Chu, Kingston Chun Ho KEETE
Mr. Ho Chi Ho fAEFEE
Dr. Wong Yun Kuen = EEST
Mr. Lau Man Tak B fESE A
Ms. Lo, Miu Sheung Betty YR LT

Annual meeting schedules and draft agenda of each meeting are
normally made available to Directors in advance. Notices of regular
Board meetings are served to all Directors at least 14 days before
the meetings.
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For other Board and committee meetings, reasonable notice is
generally given. Board papers together with all appropriate,
complete and reliable information are sent to all Directors at least 3
days before each Board meeting or committee meeting to keep
the Directors apprised of the latest developments and financial
position of the Company and to enable them to make informed
decisions. The Board and each Director also have separate and
independent access to the senior management whenever
necessary.

All Directors have been provided with monthly updates by the
Group’s management, giving a balanced and understandable
assessment of the Group’s performance, position, recent
developments and prospects in sufficient detail to keep them
abreast of the Group’s affairs and facilitate them to discharge their
duties under the relevant requirements of the Listing Rules.

The Company Secretary of the Company is responsible for keeping
minutes of all Board meetings and committee meetings. Draft
minutes are normally circulated to Directors for comment within a
reasonable time after each meeting and the final version is open
for Directors’ inspection.

According to current Board practice, any material transaction,
which involves a conflict of interests for a substantial shareholder
or a Director, will be considered and dealt with by the Board at a
duly convened Board meeting. The Company’s Bye-laws also
contains provisions requiring Directors to abstain from voting and
not to be counted in the quorum at meetings for approving
transactions in which such Directors or any of their associates
have a material interest.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
The Company fully supports the division of responsibility between
the Chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive Officer to
ensure a balance of power and authority. The positions of the
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are held by Mr. Chu,
Nicholas Yuk-yui and Mrs. Chu Yuet Wah respectively.

Their respective responsibilities are clearly defined and set out in
writing. The Chairman provides leadership and is responsible for
the effective functioning of the Board in accordance with good
corporate governance practice. With the support of the senior
management, the Chairman is also responsible for ensuring that
the Directors receive adequate, complete and reliable information
in a timely manner and appropriate briefing on issues arising at
Board meetings.
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The Chief Executive Officer focuses on implementing objectives,
policies and strategies approved and delegated by the Board. She
is in charge of the Company’s day-to-day management and
operations. She is also responsible for developing strategic plans
and formulating the company practices and procedures, business
objectives, and risk assessment for the Board’s approval.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely, the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee,
for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. All
Board committees of the Company are established with defined
written terms of reference which are available on the websites of
the Company and the Stock Exchange.

All the members of the three Board committees are Independent
Non-executive Directors. The Board committees are provided with
sufficient resources to discharge their duties and, upon reasonable
request, are able to seek independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expenses.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises three Independent Non-executive
Directors (including one Independent Non-executive Director who
possesses the appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise). None of
the members of the Audit Committee is a former partner of the
Company’s existing external auditors.

The main duties of the Audit Committee include the following:

(a) To review the financial statements and reports and consider
any significant or unusual items raised by the qualified
accountant, compliance officer or external auditors before
submission to the Board.

(b) To review the relationship with the external auditors by
reference to the work performed by the auditors, their fees
and terms of engagement, and make recommendation to the
Board on the appointment, re-appointment and removal of
external auditors.

(c) To review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s
financial reporting system, internal control system and risk
management system and associated procedures.
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Due to the amendments to the CG Code, the terms of reference of
the Audit Committee has been amended to include the duty to
review the risk management system of the Company with effect
from 31 March 2016.

The Audit Committee is also responsible for performing the
corporate governance duties which include: (i) to develop and
review the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance; (ii) to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior management; (iii)
to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; (iv) to develop,
review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance (if any)
applicable to the Directors and employees; and (v) to review the
Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in the
Corporate Governance Report.

The Audit Committee held 4 meetings during the year ended 31
March 2018. During the year under review, work performed by the
Audit Committee included (i) reviewing the audited annual results
and the unaudited interim results of the Group; (ii) reviewing the
compliance and internal audit reports on adequacy and
effectiveness of risk management and internal control systems,
and the compliance and corporate governance issues of the
Group; and (iii) discussing with external auditor the audit planning
work (including the nature and scope of the audit and reporting
obligations) in respect of the audit of the annual results of the
Group.

There are no material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern.

The Audit Committee has not taken a different view from the Board
regarding the selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal of
external auditors.

The Company’s final results for the year ended 31 March 2018
have been reviewed by the Audit Committee.
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The individual attendance record of each Director at the Audit
Committee meeting during the year ended 31 March 2018 is set
out below:

Name of Audit Committee Members

EREESREHR

Mr. Lau Man Tak Bz fEkE
Dr. Wong Yun Kuen =EEET
Ms. Lo, Miu Sheung Betty EYE T

Remuneration Committee

The primary objectives of the Remuneration Committee include
making recommendations on and approving the remuneration
policy and structure and remuneration packages of the Directors
and the senior management. The Remuneration Committee is also
responsible for establishing transparent procedures for developing
such remuneration policy and structure to ensure that no Director
or any of his/her associates will participate in deciding his/her own
remuneration, which remuneration will be determined by reference
to the performance of the individual and the Company as well as
market practice and conditions. The Remuneration Committee has
assessed the performance of executive directors and reviewed the
terms of service contract of Directors.

The Remuneration Committee normally meets for reviewing the
remuneration policy and structure and determination of the annual
remuneration packages of the executive Directors and the senior
management and other related matters. The human resources
department is responsible for collection and administration of the
human resources data and making recommendations to the
Remuneration Committee for consideration. The Remuneration
Committee shall consult the Chairman and/or the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company about these recommendations on
remuneration policy and structure and remuneration packages.

BE-_ZT-\FZA=+-"BLFE FEFR
ERZBeRRCEALRLEHINT

Attendance
at Audit
Committee
meetings
HE
EREES
BERE

4/4
4/4
4/4
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During the year under review, work performed by the
Remuneration Committee included (i) assessing performance of
Executive Director and senior management and, where applicable,
approving their terms of services including the Directors’ fees and
the emoluments of Executive Directors; and (ii) reviewing and
determining on policy and structure of the remuneration package
of Directors and senior management.

The remuneration packages of the Board for the year ended 31
March 2018 had been reviewed by the Remuneration Committee
and approved by the Board by taking into consideration factors
such as salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment, responsibility, market conditions elsewhere in the
Group and desirability of performance-based remuneration. Details
of the remuneration of each of the Directors for the year under
review are set out in note 16 to the financial statements.

The Remuneration Committee met once during the year ended 31
March 2018 and reviewed the existing remuneration policy and
structure of the Company and remuneration packages of the
Directors and the senior management. The attendance record is
as follows:

Name of Remuneration Committee Members

FHMEEEREH R

Ms. Lo, Miu Sheung Betty EWIE T
Dr. Wong Yun Kuen mEEE L
Mr. Lau Man Tak BB
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The remuneration of the members of senior management by band
for the year ended 31 March 2018 is set out as below:

Remuneration bands (HK$)
48 5 (B T)

Nil to 1,000,000
1,000,001 to 2,000,000
5,000,001 to 6,000,000
9,000,001 to 10,000,000

£ % 1,000,000

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee is responsible for formulating
nomination policy for the consideration of the Board and to
implement the Board’s approved nomination policy. During the
nomination process, the nomination committee will consider the
competency, independency (in case of independent non-executive
director), conflict of interests, capacity, management experience of
a candidate which makes him/herself suitable for the role as a
director and make recommendation to the Board for consideration.

The Nomination Committee is also responsible for monitoring the
appointment and succession planning of Directors and assessing
the independence of Independent Non-executive Directors.

The Nomination Committee reviewed the Board’s structure, size
and composition regularly to ensure that it has a balance of
expertise, skills and experience appropriate to the requirements of
the business of the Company. Where vacancies on the Board exist,
the Nomination Committee will carry out the selection process by
making reference to the skills, experience, professional knowledge,
personal integrity and time commitments of the proposed
candidates, the Company’s needs and other relevant statutory
requirements and regulations. An external recruitment agency may
be engaged to carry out the recruitment and selection process
when necessary.

1,000,001 £ 2,000,000
5,000,001 % 6,000,000
9,000,001 & 10,000,000
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During the year under review, work performed by the Nomination
Committee included (i) determining the policy for the nomination of
Directors with reference to the structure, size and composition
(including the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board; (ii)
reviewing the annual confirmation of independence submitted by
the Independent Non-executive Directors and assessing their
independence; and (iii) adopting of a policy concerning diversity of
board members in accordance with the new Code Provision A.5.6 in
the revised CG Code which came into effect on 1 September 2013.
Nomination procedures and the process and criteria will be
determined by the Nomination Committee should there be the need
to select and recommend candidates for directorship.

Details of the duties and powers of the Nomination Committee are
set out in its written terms of reference which has been revised
during the year under review in line with the amendment of the CG
Code on board diversity and are available on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange.

The Nomination Committee met once during the year ended 31
March 2018. The attendance record is as follows:

Name of Nomination Committee Members

EEZZEEREHSE

Dr. Wong Yun Kuen = EEET
Ms. Lo, Miu Sheung Betty EWIE T
Mr. Lau Man Tak B E A&

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the required standard set out in the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules. Specific enquiry has been made of all the Directors and the
Directors have confirmed that they have complied with the
requirements of the Code of Conduct and the Model Code
throughout the year ended 31 March 2018.
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The Company also has established written guidelines on no less
exacting than the Model Code (the “Written Guidelines”) for
securities transactions by the employees who are likely to be in
possession of inside information of the Company.

No incident of non-compliance of the Written Guidelines by the
employees was noted by the Company.

RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITORS’
REMUNERATION

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual and interim reports, inside
information announcements and other disclosures required under
the Listing Rules and other regulatory requirements.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March
2018.

The statement of the external auditors of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in
the Independent Auditor’'s Report on pages 84 to 91.

The remuneration paid/payable to the external auditors of the
Company in respect of audit services and non-audit services for
the year ended 31 March 2018 amounted to HK$2,290,000 and
HK$179,500 respectively.

An analysis of the remuneration paid/payable to the external
auditors of the Company is set out below:

Types of Services

PR35 5 5
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Amount of
Fees Payable/Paid
B ERERESE

(HK$)
(F7T)

Audit Services EZRE 2,290,000

Non-audit Services IEFEIZARTS

1. Tax services 1. THIERS 65,000

2. Others 2. Hit 114,500
179,500

Total &5t 2,469,500
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROLS

The Board is responsible for maintaining an adequate risk
management and internal control systems to safeguard
shareholder investments and Company assets, and reviewing the
effectiveness of such on an annual basis through the Audit
Committee. Such systems are designed to manage rather than
eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can
only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss.

The Company has maintained a tailored governance structure with
defined lines of responsibility and appropriate delegation of
responsibility and authority to the senior management.

Management currently takes the view that there is no immediate
need to set up an internal audit function in light of the size, nature
and complexity of the Group’s business. The need for an internal
audit function will be reviewed from time to time.

During the year under review, the Board, through the Audit
Committee and an independent accounting firm, has conducted a
review of the effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group, which covered all material controls,
including financial, operational and compliance controls, with a
view to ensuring that resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and budget of the Group’s accounting,
internal audit and financial reporting functions are adequate. The
board is satisfied that the risk management and internal control
systems within the Group are effective and adequate.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Chan Chun Lam was appointed as Company Secretary of the
Company on 4 April 2014. During the year, Mr. Chan Chun Lam
has undertaken sufficient hours of relevant professional training in
compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.
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SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS

Procedures by which Shareholders may convene a
special general meeting

The Board may whenever it thinks fit call special general meetings,
any Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company
shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board
or the company secretary of the Company, to require a special
general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of
any business specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall
be held within 2 months after the deposit of such requisition. If
within 21 days of such requisition the Board fails to proceed to
convene such meeting the requisitionists themselves may do so in
accordance with the relevant provisions of the Bermuda
Companies Act.

Proceedings at general meetings

The rights of shareholders and the procedures for demanding a
poll on resolutions at shareholders meetings are contained in the
Company’s bye-laws. Details of such rights to demand a poll and
the poll procedures are included in all circulars to shareholders
and will be explained during the proceedings of meetings.

The general meetings of the Company provide a forum for
communication between the shareholders and the Board. The
Chairman of the Board as well as chairmen of the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee or in their
absence, other members of the respective committees, and where
applicable, the independent Board committee, are available to
answer questions at the shareholders’ meetings.

Separate resolutions are proposed at shareholders’ meetings on
each substantial issue, including the election of individual
Directors.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company continues to enhance communications and
relationships with its investors. Designated senior management
maintains regular dialogue with institutional investors and analysts
to keep them abreast of the Company’s developments.

Enquiries from investors are dealt with in an informative and timely
manner. To promote effective communication, the Company also
maintains a website at http://www.kingston.com.hk, where
extensive information and updates on the Company’s business
developments and operations, financial information and other
information are posted.
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

Kingston Financial Group Limited (hereinafter referred to as the
“Company”, or together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”, Hong
Kong stock code: 1031) is glad to present its second
Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG”) Report (the
“Report”). This Report is prepared in accordance with the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide (the “ESG
Guide”) under Appendix 27 of the Main Board Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”). It adheres to the “comply or explain”
provisions as set out by the ESG Guide.

The purpose of this Report is to disclose the Group’s visions,
commitments, policies, operating practices, and performances
relating to social and environmental impacts that are material to
the Group’s operations. All information published in this Report is
based on existing policies or practices, and official documents or
reports, as we strive to keep the disclosure of such information
genuine and honest.

Unless otherwise specified, this Report covers the operations of
the Group’s main office in Hong Kong, and two hotels in Macau,
namely, Casa Real Hotel Macau (“Casa Real”) and Grandview
Hotel Macau (“Grandview”) during the year ended 31 March 2018
(the “Reporting Period”). With consideration to the significance and
materiality of the facilities, the casinos in the hotels are excluded
from the reporting of quantitative environmental data.

Your feedback is important for our continuous improvement. Please
feel free to send us your thoughts with regards to this Report or our
sustainability performance to our main office in Hong Kong at Suite
2801, 28/F, One IFC, 1 Harbour Street View, Central.
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ABOUT THE GROUP

The Group is a well-established enterprise with two major business
divisions, the financial services segment and the hotel and gaming
services segment. Committed to sustainable business operations,
the Group earns success in both segments with attribution to its
outstanding management and remarkable services.

Financial Services Segment

This segment principally engages in the provision of a variety of
financial services, including securities brokerage, underwriting and
placements, margin and initial public offering financing, corporate
finance advisory, futures brokerage, and asset management
services. The financial services is managed and operated under
Kingston Securities Limited, Kingston Futures Limited, Kingston
Asset Management Limited, Kingston Corporate Finance Limited
and others, which are wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Group.

When compared to the hotel and gaming services segment, the
financial services operations impose minimal social and
environmental impacts. Therefore, the disclosure of this business
division will be focused on its impacts on our Group’s governance.

Hotel and Gaming Services Segment

The hotel and gaming services of the Group is discharged by our
four-star hotels, Casa Real and Grandview. Conveniently located
next to the ferry pier and in proximity to major attractions, the
hotels are economical yet excellent options for both business and
leisure travellers.

Our hotels value guests’ individual unique experience by providing
exceptional care and services to them. Clean and cosy rooms, 24-
hour casino floors, award-winning restaurants and tranquil spa are
only a few highlights among all of the distinguished services our
hotels offer. Our dedication to excellence in the industry has won
us customer loyalty and preference.

The casinos in our hotels are operated by Sociedade de Jogos de
Macau, S.A., no quantitative environmental data from the casinos
will be disclosed in this Report.
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OUR SUSTAINABILITY VISION

For every decision we make within the Group, we follow a set of
core values that we regard as the key drivers to our success —
“Professionalism”, “Engagement” and “Integrity”. We leverage the
skills, knowledge and passion of our esteemed staff and
management team to develop ourselves as the leading financial
and hotel services provider in the region we operate in.

We carry these values and attitudes onto the three pillars of our
sustainability management, namely, Prosperity, People and Planet.
Our board of directors is committed to sustainable development as
we strive to strike a balance within our operations between
economic interest, environmental protection and social investment
with proactive engagement with our material stakeholders. They
also oversee and evaluate our sustainability-related risks, and
ensure that they are effectively mitigated and managed by our risk
management and internal control systems with the guidance of
appropriate ESG strategy.

Stakeholder Engagement

Stakeholder opinions are invaluable for the betterment of our
operations and strategic development. The Group strives to
establish transparent and responsive channels for open
conversation with its stakeholders, which include its shareholders
and investors, its customers, its employees, its suppliers, the
media, and regulatory bodies. Continuous quality engagement with
its stakeholders is certainly beneficial for the stable and
sustainable growth of the Group.
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Various engagement channels are in place for different stakeholder er%“TTWE'JﬁTﬁ%ﬁﬁ% BB SR AR

groups respectively. K(E&EEE

Stakeholder Group Engagement Channels
R ERE BERE
Shareholders and Investors o Annual general meetings
PRERMIZE FERE

° Annual and interim reports

FERPHHRE

° Correspondences
Customers . Customer satisfaction surveys
B WE RS

° Social media platforms
HREE Y S
o On-site customer care and services

IS8 P IR
Employees o Departmental meetings
BT Hrig=®
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SUSTAINING OUR PROSPERITY

Our Group believes that corporate prosperity can only be achieved
through the execution of proper governance, which oversees our
business conduct and supply chain management, and assures the
quality of our products and services. In light of this, policies are
developed to ensure operational compliance, identify and manage
potential risks, and seek for new opportunities to sustain long-term
corporate prosperity.

Corporate Governance

Effective corporate governance is critical for the supervision of
business ethics relating to anti-corruption and anti-money
laundering. This is especially important in our business segments,
in which the integrity and conduct of staff, as well as the ability to
navigate in the fluctuating financial market through effective risk
management are essential. Governing the core elements and
issues with respect to corporate governance, internal control
procedure and policies are established to ensure our high
standard of corporate governance is upheld. During the Reporting
Period, the Group complied with all laws and regulations relating to
corporate governance on anti-corruption, anti-money laundering
and consumer privacy. No legal cases regarding corrupt practices
were brought against the Group.

Risk Management

Our board of directors are responsible for risk management of the
Group, not only to safeguard the Group’s assets and shareholders
investments, but also to supervise and predict non-financial risks
that the Group might face. The management also has to maintain
the internal control system and review its effectiveness through the
Group’s Audit Committee regularly. For more details of the Group’s
risk management and Audit Committee, please refer to the
Corporate Governance Report on page 22 to 37.

Anti-Corruption

Our Group applies rigor in exercising its anti-corruption policies
and measures. Soliciting or receiving advantages from any parties
that have relations to the Group’s business is entirely prohibited as
listed on our Staff Handbook and the Macau anti-corruption law.
As a preventive measure, all new recruits are expected and
required to disclose any personal interest or interest of their
immediate friends and family that might be in conflict with the
Group, and this term applies throughout the whole employment
period. Internal audits are also performed by external independent
auditing firm to inspect and evaluate the efficiency and
implementation of internal control procedures to ensure related
risks are eliminated.
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Our anti-corruption policy also extends to control the procurement
procedures in our hotel operations. To avoid the concentration of
power in or commitment of fraud from a certain department, duties
and tasks of procurement are segregated to several departments
to foster cross-functional supervision. In addition, a minimum of
three quotes from different suppliers are required for a fair and just
comparison on price, services and quality. As a rule of thumb, the
supplier with the best value for money should be selected.

If any employee is found to have violated any of the above
particulars, the Group may consider dismissing the employee or
reporting to relevant regulatory bodies depending on the severity
of the breach.

Anti-Money Laundering

Due to our service nature, anti-money laundering is an issue of
great importance to us and we are dedicated to inhibiting it from
our business operations. An internal guidance note on anti-money
laundering was released by the Group in 2013 to explain to its
employees the nature, types and legal ordinances relating and
governing anti-money laundering, as well as the respective policies
and procedures to identify suspicious criminal acts in a vigilant
manner.

In our financial services segment, all employees are expected to
be familiar with the patterns of money laundering and terrorist
financing by regularly visiting the Securities and Futures
Commission (“SFC”) website for such information. Orientation and
ongoing training are provided to our staff to enhance their skills on
review and monitoring procedures, as well as to constantly update
their knowledge on relevant regulations. Based on several local
and international ordinances they are also obliged to report any
suspicious activities to the Head of Compliance, who will be
responsible to determine if further attention is needed from
management or if a report should be submitted to the Joint
Financial Intelligence Unit of the Hong Kong government. As a
preventive measure, a diligence procedure is employed to monitor
clients’ transaction activities.
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Diligence Procedure to Monitor Clients’ Activities

REERRFRZEHNEERER

Based on Reliable

Keeping

Sources ) Up-to-Date and
HRAR A 52 2R0R Identify the Reliéa?;tﬁegggord Ad Hoc
Ultimate BRI Review
Beneficial 1R
Identify and Owner Periodic
Verify Client’s BRRKR Monitoring
Identity EXEEA and Scrutlny
3% B 3z By & HA BRI AN Unusual Transaction
EENEH =& Patterns or Material
On Whose Behalf Change in Account
the Transaction is Operatlon
conducted TEEHRHER
RHLA YEE)ETKJ’EEPE’J
HEBBRET BREML
As per hotel operations, risks of money-laundering principally — #tEE%%M =S - °ﬁ$f§ﬁ’]ﬂ|§A‘£§ﬁE5’\\\ﬁ%¢% o
emerge in the casinos. Casino staff is therefore trained to monitor At - ﬁ%%;l;ﬁ,ﬁ& Bz LERE AL E
guests’ unusual behaviour, complementary to our preventive &J717/4 @ B RAERTEBRIEEAEK - B

policies. Transactions exceeding a certain amount and respective
guest information should be recorded in preparation for any follow
up investigations in the future.

Confidentiality

The Group is committed to keeping information and dealings of our
clients and guests confidential. In every step of our operations, we
respect and protect our clients’ privacy with strict implementation
of related policies and code of conduct. We stringently forbid all
employees under the Group to disclose customer privacy or
sensitive company information to unrelated persons or outsiders.
Disciplinary actions are subject to employee who violates the
conduct.

To further ensure the conduct of employees, the financial services
segment prohibit employees who obtain sensitive price information
of securities to trade any related securities. Employees are also
reminded to be highly careful when processing non-public
materials and never to disclose such information to a third party.

At the hotels, storing and processing customer personal
information is necessary and inevitable. Certain measures are
therefore established for the secure handling of such information.
We review the user account list of the hotel system monthly to
ensure only concerned and essential staff has access to the
database. Hard copies of the client information are stored in a
locker, while the key of which is limited to authorised persons only.
When appropriate, hard copies will be shredded and discarded
properly under the supervision of senior staff.
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Service Commitment

Achieving clients’ expectations and gaining customer satisfaction
are the heart of what we do. Our service mission is to create an
exceptionally satisfying customer experience with commitment to
assist professionally and honestly.

It is a rule of thumb in our financial services operations that we
always act in the best interests of our clients. We strive to attend to
each client’s personalised needs and objectives for the best
investment outcomes. Every piece of advice and recommendation
we made are tailored to the client with consideration of his/her
resource abundance, risk tolerance level, and investment
objectives. All Account Executives are expected to adhere to the
“Principles of Business Conduct” as developed by the International
Organisation of Securities Commissions for the best service
experience of our clients.

In our hotels, friendly and respectful services along with a
comfortable and clean environment build the basis of our
operations. To guarantee our service standards, multiple
guidelines governing the manner, conduct and appearance of the
employees are issued for internal reference. In Casa Real, daily
inspections of frontline employees on such are conducted by
managers to ensure they are presenting the best of our hotel to the
guests. We also strive to uphold a high standard of quality for our
hotel rooms. Policies and standards on how to clean and arrange
guestrooms are implemented and followed by our housekeeping
staff at all times. We also assure with our well-managed room
maintenance schedule that every guestroom is thoroughly cleaned
and maintained within a one-year period. Managers will examine a
number of guestrooms per day to ensure our high quality
standards are satisfied.

Feedback from our honourable guests is essential for the
continuous improvement of our operations. To gain a deeper
understanding on the individual experience of our guests,
feedback forms are placed at hotel rooms and lobbies for the ease
of guests to reflect on our operations and services. Together with
comments received from online booking platforms, the feedback
collected will be handled and discussed in the monthly
departmental meetings. With the effort of our dedicated
management and employees, all feedback received during the
Reporting Period was handled and resolved with due care in the
hotels.
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Under certain special circumstances, exchange of hotel rooms
might be requested by our guests. As ensuring guests’ satisfaction
is our top priority, we are open to room exchange whenever a
reasonable cause is suggested by the guest. To instruct our front
desk staff on the standard procedures and criteria of room
exchange, our hotels have devised a Room Exchange Procedure
for the staff to refer to when processing such request. All room
exchange was conducted professionally and diligently during the
Reporting Period.

Our hotels also attach great importance to safeguarding the health
and safety of our guests. All hotel equipment is regularly
maintained, while the water quality in the swimming pools are
closely monitored to secure guests’ well-being. 24-hours CCTV
and employee first-aid trainings continued to be in place to prevent
and mitigate accidents. In the unlikely event of guest injury,
discreet assistance and proper medical attention would be offered
to the affected guests. We also request our employees to keep
detailed records of every injury incident for management to review
and devise relevant improvement plans. In addition, all employees
are subject to, and must cooperate with inspections conducted by
the authorised security personnel for further strengthening the
security levels of the hotels. During the Reporting Period, 5 cases
of guest injury were reported and handled in Grandview earnestly.
We will endeavour to the best of our ability to protect our guests
from accidents and danger in the future.

Supply Chain Management

To achieve a competitive advantage in a sustainable manner, a
well-managed supply chain is necessary. With considerations to
the indirect environmental and social impacts we induced through
our procurement activities, we have devised several sustainable
practices and policies to manage and engage our suppliers.

Given similar quality and price of products, our hotels have a
preference for local suppliers as an act of supporting local
businesses while minimising environmental footprints caused by
long distance transportation. Energy efficiency and pollution level
of the procured equipment or machineries are taken into account
carefully to assure environmental compliance and optimised
resource consumption. Our hotels also regularly assess their
suppliers and maintain an updated supplier list to facilitate
selection and management of their suppliers.
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In strengthening our hotels’ supply chain management,
responsibilities of negotiation, decision making and quality
inspections are segregated into three departments to avoid over-
power of individual department. Every material equipment
purchase is reviewed and approved by management before the
order is placed to ensure the validity of the procurement.

CARING FOR OUR PEOPLE

Employee dedications attribute vastly to our brand image,
customer satisfaction, financial performance and consequently,
corporate success. The Group therefore embraces a “people-
oriented” approach to forge long-term, solid and good
relationships with its employees. By catering to the employees’
well-being and taking the initiatives to push forth their career
development, the Group aims at attracting, retaining and
cultivating the right talents. With the implementation of various
appropriate human resource policies, we are confident that our
motivated employees are able to offer their potential and capability
to sustain corporate prosperity, with their ever-enhanced esteem.

Employee Well-Being

Our employees are one of our Group’s most important and
valuable assets. Without their commitment, corporate success, let
alone daily operations, can never be achieved. To create positive
momentum amongst employees to work towards the Group’s
objectives, numerous policies are established to safeguard the
well-being of our employees, including their welfare, equal
opportunities, and health and safety.

Employee Welfare

We provide employees with a well-rounded remuneration package
with adequate recognition to individual contribution. Our strategic
and competitive remunerations entitle our employees to various
benefits including paid leaves, maternity leaves, employees’
compensation insurance, medical benefits and transportation
allowance. The hotels also offer free duty meals, staff quarters
accommodations, and ensure that all employees are assigned with
rest time whenever appropriate.

Employee’s individual contribution is also acknowledged under our
recognition scheme. Regular performance appraisals are
conducted to encourage employees’ continuous improvement. The
results of which will also be used as internal reference in times of
promotions and salary adjustments. This promote evidence-based
decisions that are made fairly according to individual competence
and qualifications.
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The Group also places strong emphasis on effective employee
engagement, which is intricately linked with the overall financial
success of the Group. In pursuit of employee engagement and the
continuous advancement of our human-oriented policies, listening
and respecting employees feedback is crucial. Adequate channels
are provided to our employees to reflect on us, and we will at all
times protect the confidentiality of the employees when complaints
or feedback is received.

Equal Opportunity

Our Group is an equal opportunity employer who strives to
eliminate all discrimination and harassment at the workplace. We
ensure that no employees or job applicants of the Group will be
treated less favourably in the course of employment on the
grounds of gender, age, disability, race, religion or sexual
orientation, amongst others. Any acts of discrimination or
harassment will not be tolerated in our Group. We also encourage
employees to proactively report to management when they
encounter such incident for internal investigation. Appropriate
disciplinary actions or legal actions will be taken to the accused if
favourable results are shown in the investigation.

Health and Safety

Health and safety of our employees lay the cornerstone of our
services. As a longstanding commitment to our employees’
occupational health and safety, we have adopted multiple policies
and guidelines to minimise health risks and prevent accidents at
the workplace.

Raising employees’ awareness towards occupational health and
safety is a significant constituent to our hotel management. General
safety guidelines and contingency plans for major accidents are
outlined in Staff Handbooks for employees to refer to. All new
recruits are required to undergo fire and security trainings, while
existing employees also have to attend various fire safety, first-aid,
occupational health, self-defence and typhoon management
trainings when necessary. In addition, safety posters are put up in
the workplaces as a reminder to always prioritise personal safety
before finishing job duties. We also encourage our employees to
participate in safety drills so as to familiarise themselves with the
procedures of evacuation.
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Employees’ mental wellness is also among our Group’s health and
safety agenda. Trainings on stress management are available for
our hotel employees to assist them to cope with work pressure
effectively. Various staff activities that aim at integrating work and
life in a compatible and balanced manner were also organised
during the Reporting Period. For more details of the events, please
refer to “Employee Activities” under section “Community
Investment” of this chapter.

In our hotel operations, we also cooperate with local regulatory
bodies for inspections on the safety conditions of our work
environment, especially in our kitchens. Together with the internal
inspections that we conduct, our hotels make immediate
improvements whenever a flaw is spotted. During the Reporting
Period, no non-compliance cases of occupational health and
safety standards were reported.

To construct a safe workplace, we continue to closely monitor the
performance of our equipment and machineries to ensure they do
not impose any physical danger to their users. Whenever
appropriate, we commission professional and accountable bodies
to perform checks on our appliances, and our fire and security
system. Pest control and related trainings are also regularly
implemented at the hotels to protect both our employees and our
guests from such biological threat.

Cultivate Talents

The growth of our employees steers and furthers the development
of the Group. The Group is therefore dedicated to formulating
effective training plans and policies for its employees to support
their continuous advancement.

Our financial services segment conducts internal trainings monthly
or bi-monthly to update our employees on relevant SFC regulations
and regulatory compliance issues. External trainings are also
arranged on an annual basis. The external training conducted
within the Reporting Period was in cooperation with a law firm. The
training provided new guidance to our management to interpret
the Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange and their relevant
regulations.
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At our hotels, we also attach great emphasis to employees’
training, especially for employees who interact with our guests
primarily, as they have direct influence on how our customers
perceive our hotels. To secure our service standards, as well as to
support our employees to make strides in their career journeys, our
staff receives regular internal trainings that comprise of a wide
range of practical skills and knowledge. They include customer
services related skills, industry language, conflict management,
food safety, fire safety and other practical skills for specific work
duties. During the Reporting Period, the hotels also collaborated
with local organisations, such as Macao Occupational Skills
Recognition System (“MORS”), Macau Hotel Association, Macao
Government Tourism Office and Civic and Municipal Affairs Bureau
to coordinate external trainings for its employees on essential skills
in hotel operations and management.

Labour Standards

Our Group straightly adheres to all applicable labour laws and
regulations in our employment. We forbid the recruitment of
individuals who are below the legal employment age, and restrict
any minors to work at workplaces that possess any significant
physical or chemical occupational risks. Upon recruitment, identity
proof of the candidate has to be provided to relevant departments
for verification and checking. If a false identity is provided, or
should the candidate fail to meet our legal employment
requirements, the recruitment procedure will be terminated
immediately. Our hotels are also pleased to provide necessary
assistance and coordination to the Macau government to perform
spot checks relating to our compliance with relevant labour laws.

During the Reporting Period, our Group was not aware of any issue
relating to child or forced labour.
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Community Investment

As an employer of choice, we attach great importance to engaging
and caring for our employees. As a responsible corporate citizen,
we extend our commitment to empowering and investing in the
community we operate in. During the Reporting Period, various
activities were held by the Group for the interest of our employees,
and for the well-being of the society.

Macau Tourism

Hospitality industry plays a vital role in supporting tourism in the
region. To enhance our hotel employees’ understanding on Macau
culture, Grandview participated in two tourism events — the World
Tourism Day organised by Macau Government Tourist Office
(“MGTQO”) and the Fun Fun Day co-organised by MGTO and the
Macau Hotel Association. Our colleagues’ knowledge on Macau
heritage, traditions and culture was greatly enhanced after the tray
race and heritage routes walks. Not only do we aim to inspire our
employees to appreciate local cultures through the events, we also
want to engage our guests through the employees and bring them
the best cultural experience of Macau during their stay.

Voluntary Activities and Donations

To develop a robust culture of community care in the Group, our
Group takes initiatives to arrange voluntary activities for our
colleagues. During the Reporting Period, a group of employees
from Grandview joined a charity visit organised by the Macau Hotel
Association to an elderly center. Our colleagues coordinated to
carry out entertainment and games for the elderly to enjoy and
play. Although it was the elderly who was supposed to be
entertained, the joy was mutual — both our colleagues and the
elderly had a wonderful time at the center.

Our care for the community also extends to donation. In Casa Real,
we donated a total of 2,222 light bulbs to a local charity — Caritas
Macau, after we transitioned our lighting system to LED. Grandview
also organised a donation campaign for old clothes and electrical
appliances. All items collected were sent to the Macau Salvation
Army, which will redistribute the donated goods to the needy
groups afterwards. The Group also made monetary donations to
various charities and organisations in Hong Kong, such as Po
Leung Kuk, Tung Wah Group of Hospitals and Yan Oi Tong
Limited. During the Reporting Period, the Group had donated more
than approximately HK$650,000 as a form of social investment.
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Employee Activities

Attending to the general well-being of our employees, the Group
arranges leisure activities regularly for our staff to enhance their
work-life balance and to improve our workplace liveliness. From
the activities, we also strive to show our employees how highly we
regard them as a part of our big family.

In Casa Real, birthday parties are held regularly to gather staff
together to celebrate their big days. Cake and food are provided
for the birthday employees to enjoy. The parties also serve as
excellent chances for colleagues from different departments to
acquaint each other and expand their social circle within the hotel.
Casa Real also organised an annual dinner to celebrate and
appreciate the hard work of its employees. Our employees and
management enjoyed a wonderful and relaxing evening with
excellent food and joyous entertainment. The dinner ended in high
spirits.

PROTECTING OUR PLANET

Our Group recognises its shared responsibility as a corporate to
conserve the environment. We are devoted to eliminating,
minimising and mitigating our environmental impacts in every
stage of our operations. Extending beyond our operating
boundaries, we also aim to influence our employees and our
guests to pursue a more sustainable way of living with our
environmental commitment.

In praising Grandview’s resolute effort in implementing green
strategies to preserve the environment, the Macao Environmental
Protection Bureau has awarded Grandview a merit award, which is
valid for three years, in the 2017 Macao Green Hotel Award.
Awarded for the second time since 2014, Grandview will continue
to take bold steps to perfect and consolidate its environmental
management.

During the Reporting Period, the Group complied with all
environmental laws and regulations.
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Energy Efficiency

In both our financial services and hotel and gaming services
operations, the most significant environmental impact arises from
energy usage. Energy consumption also continues to top as the
biggest contributor to the Group’s greenhouse gas (“GHG")
emissions. Since the environmental implication of reducing energy
consumption is sizeable, several measures are adopted to
continuously monitor and improve our energy performance.

In general, green office and energy saving practices are promoted
in all of our workplaces. Electrical appliances are required to be
turned off when they are not in use. Notes are posted next to
switches to remind employees to use energy responsibly. To better
evaluate our energy performance, the engineering department
from our hotels records and monitors the hotels’ electricity
consumption monthly to observe if there exist any unusual
consumption fluctuations or unreasonably high consumption rates.
Investigations will be carried out to abnormal trends when
discovered, followed by timely rectifications.

In addition, we take initiatives to replace some of our old
equipment with energy efficient alternatives at our hotel operations.
Several eco-friendly substitutes were employed to realise our
environmental commitment during the Reporting Period, including
the lighting system, air conditioning system and the water heating
system.

LED Lighting System

Since 2016, our hotels have been actively transitioning their
lighting systems to LED, which consumes considerably less energy
than the original lighting systems. During the Reporting Period,
Casa Real (excluding casino area) had completed its transition to
LED lighting fully, while Grandview had (excluding casino area)
also installed more than 2,500 LED light tubes and reached LED
coverage of more than 90%.
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Air Conditioning System

Air-conditioning and thermal comfort are among the most crucial
elements in constructing a comfortable stay for our guests.
Therefore, our hotels strive to optimise the efficiency of their air-
conditioning systems such that our hotels’ luxury and comfort will
not go against being green.

In Casa Real, we have strategically revamped our air-conditioning
system with thorough considerations to the new system’s
environmental impact and cooling performance. First, a new
inverter air-conditioner, which is capable of delivering precise
cooling while consuming less energy, was installed. It is estimated
that the energy efficiency of the inverter air conditioner is
approximately 5-10% more efficient than its old counterpart. In
addition, a new environmentally-friendly closed circuit air-
conditioning cooling tower was introduced and built at the hotel
roof. Separating fluid circuits, the water tower maintains the quality
of the cooling water, sustains system efficiency and reduces
system maintenance at the same time. Our last installation during
the Reporting Period was the air conditioner that utilises
environmentally-friendly refrigerant, which has a significantly
smaller global warming potential than ordinary refrigerants. The air
conditioner will start operating in June 2018. The hotel is optimistic
about the performance, stability and energy efficiency of its new
integrated air-conditioning system.

We also adopt other energy efficient policies that are just as
effective as hardware upgrades. In Grandview, air-conditioning is
always maintained at 25.5 degrees celsius. In winter or during cold
days, air-conditioning in guest rooms will not be turned on to
minimise energy usage and maximise thermal comfort.
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Water Heating System

Both of our hotels have set up a heat recycling system that
incorporates water heating system to air-conditioning system for
optimal energy outcome and performance. In fact, the system
installation in Casa Real was recently finished during the Reporting
Period. The system allows the heat generated from the air-
conditioning system to be recovered and reused for water heating.
The heated water will then be stored in tanks for immediate use. To
guarantee the reliable supply of hot water, Casa Real and
Grandview have installed tanks of capacity of 7.5 tonnes and 18
tonnes respectively to store hot water. With reference to past fuel
purchase records, the system has substantially reduced the
amount of virgin fuel and energy required for water heating —
Casa Real and Grandview have successfully cut down their diesel
consumption for water heating by 50% and 100% respectively.

In addition to the system upgrades, our hotels also actively
participated in environmental campaigns to spread the message
of environmental conservation to the public. During the Reporting
Period, the hotels continued to support WWF’s “Earth Hour” and
“Macau Energy Saving Week” organised by the Office for the
Development of Energy Sector of Macau by participating in the
“Lights Off Campaign”. Exterior lightings of the hotels were turned
off for one hour during the events to demonstrate the hotels’
dedication to energy conservation.

In recognition to our hotels’ commitment and outstanding
performance in energy saving, Casa Real and Grandview were
both awarded in the Macau Energy Saving Contest co-organised
by Companhia de Electricidade de Macau (“CEM”) and the Office
for the Development of Energy Sector. Grandview won the
Continuous Energy Saving Award (Hotel Group) for its recorded
continuous reductions in energy consumption between May to
October in 2015, 2016 and 2017. Casa Real continued to be
awarded the Excellence Award in Hotel Group B. This undoubtedly
encouraged our management and employees to persist their
steadfast effort in implementing low-carbon management at the
hotels.
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Waste Management

Waste issue is an imminent problem faced by many industries. In
an effort to improve resource efficiency and divert waste from
landfill disposal, our Group endeavours to manage our waste
properly through an integration of policies, reduction and recycling
initiatives, and green operation practices. Following the 3Rs
principles — Reduce, Reuse and Recycle, we separate our waste
according to their natures and always look for better ways to
manage them.

Reduce

A variety of green measures were adopted within our offices to
minimise our waste generation. To tackle waste at source, we
replace print-out copies with electronic ones whenever applicable.
In times when a print-out document is necessary, we recommend
our staff to use double-sided printing in order to fully utilise the
resource.

As in our hotel operations, we also promote the smart use of
resources. Toiletries are supplied on a need basis to avoid
wastage, while posters are put up in the staff canteen to publicise
the notion of cherishing food to reduce food waste. In Grandview,
we also separate food waste and send it to the Macau
Environmental Protection Bureau (Direccdo dos Servicos de
Protecgcao Ambiental) for further processing and recycling.

Reuse

Within our operations, we strive to reuse resources to the fullest of
our capability. After a guest checks out of a hotel room, our
housekeeping staff will collect and separate different wastes, such
as unused or leftovers of soaps amenities bottles and toilet paper
rolls for further repurposing. Internal reusing policies that fit the
respective resources’ nature were formulated and implemented. In
Grandview, soaps will be reused for housekeeping and cleaning
purposes, shower gel and shampoo will be used as hand soap in
public toilets, while toilet paper rolls will be re-utilised in staff
toilets.

In addition, old linens and guest towels that are no longer suitable
for guest use will be reprovisioned to the housekeeping
department, where they will be reused as cleaning towels.
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Recycle

We practice extensive waste separation and recycling throughout
our hotel operations. Currently, our recycling scope includes
plastics, metals, used batteries, carton boxes and paper. We
educate our employees on the identification of recyclables and
proper waste separation. Engaged service provider would collect
our recyclables for further processing regularly. During the
Reporting Period, Grandview had recycled approximately 14
tonnes of carton boxes and paper.

We also conduct festive recycling within our hotels. After Chinese
New Year, red packets collection boxes were placed in the back
office area of the hotels to facilitate recycling of such among our
employees. Grandview also organised moon cake boxes recycling
after Mid-Autumn Festival. All red packets and moon cake boxes
collected were sent to the Official Provisional Municipal Council of
Macau.

For other types of waste that are not applicable to the 3Rs
strategies, special procedures are adopted for proper
management. For example, the used cooking oil from our
restaurants will be collected and sent to a waste processing
service provider to ensure proper treatment before responsible
disposal.

The Group generated no hazardous waste during the Reporting
Period, while the consumption of packaging material is considered
immaterial to our Group’s operation and hence not disclosed in
this Report.
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Emissions Management and Mitigation

Our Group is dedicated to reducing emissions arise from our
operations, which are mainly generated by our cooking activities,
vehicles and machineries operations and energy consumption.
Measures and facilities are implemented and installed respectively
to ensure environmental compliance and minimal disturbance to
the surrounding community.

Several policies on the reduction of noise emissions are adopted
by our hotels. Before purchasing equipments, considerations on its
noise level have to be taken into account such that it will not violate
any environmental laws. Grandview also performs regular checks
on the noise level of our machineries to ensure that they fall below
75 dB.

Apart from noise emissions, stringent control is employed to keep
our cooking fume emission within a desirable and legal range.
Hydrovent, a water-recycling ventilation system for intercepting air
pollutants and grease particles, is installed in our kitchens to
process cooking smoke before discharging to the outer air.

As for our vehicles, we currently do not have the technical support
to monitor their exhaust gas emissions. However, we assure that all
vehicles are maintained and checked regularly such that their
emission level would comply with local environmental standards.

We are also concerned on the indoor air quality of our hotels.
Except for designated smoking rooms with individual ventilation,
smoking is banned in the casino floors and other public indoor
areas of the hotels. External professional bodies are contracted to
monitor and record our indoor air quality including particulates
concentration. Monitoring results are then submitted to relevant
government bodies for compliance check. No non-compliance
incidents were reported during the Reporting Period.
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Greenhouse Gas Emission

Greenhouse gas (“GHG”) emissions are also major air emissions
generated by our business activities. This year, we have
commissioned a professional consultancy, CKP Sustainability
Consultants, to monitor and calculate our GHG emissions during
the Reporting Period. Aiming to achieve transparency in our
carbon management, our Group is pleased to disclose our GHG
emissions data for the first time. The GHG emissions inventory was
assessed in accordance with local guidelines issued by Hong
Kong Government and with reference to the Greenhouse Gas
Protocol developed by the World Resources Institute and World
Business Council for Sustainable Development. Further breakdown
of the figures can be found in the “ESG Performance Table” on
page 63.
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Scope 1: Direct Emissions tCO.e— 0.00 1,230.07
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Scope 2: Energy Indirect Emissions tCO.e— 27.86 19,185.20
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GHG Emissions (Scope 1 & 2) tCO.e— 27.86 20,415.26
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The emission breakdown indicates that 94% of our GHG emissions
is generated by scope 2 energy indirect emissions, which reflects
our energy consumption. The Group acknowledges the importance
of improving our energy performance in curtailing our carbon
emissions, we have therefore implemented a variety of policies and
measures to strategically lower our energy consumption. Please
refer to “Energy Efficiency” section for further information. As for
direct emissions, it is mainly induced by burning of fuels on site for
cooking activities, water heating and vehicle operations. We are
committed to continuously mitigating this part of our emissions as
well.
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Water Management

Due to climate change, freshwater resource is becoming more
scarce and valuable. Our operations, especially in the hotel and
gaming services segment, therefore strive to incorporate various
water saving policies to lower our water consumption in pursuit of
sustainable water usage and management.

The water facilities used by the office of our financial services
operations are collectively managed by the building management
company. Sharing water facilities with other tenants in the building,
we cannot obtain our water consumption information during the
Reporting Period due to data limitation. Water consumption from
the financial services operations is hence not disclosed in this
Report. However, we strongly encourage the wise use of water
among our employees.

At our hotels, water is used domestically by our staff and guests,
and commercially for cooking, cleaning and housekeeping. We
have already upgraded our hardware by installing flow regulators
and water efficient toilets to continuously and reliably lower our
water consumption. To prevent water leakage, we also carry out
inspections to water pipes and water tabs regularly. The hotels
also endeavour to encourage and promote water conservation
among our employees and guests by putting up notes in the
kitchens and bathrooms.

Similar to electricity consumption, water consumption in the hotels
are recorded and analysed by the engineering department monthly
to inspect for unusual water consumption patterns. Investigations
and immediate remedial actions are required when an abnormal
pattern is found.

Our hotels are also rigorous in complying with effluent emission
regulations. In kitchens, all wastewater would pass through an oil
and grease interceptor to filter out oily impurities before disposing
for further treatment. A professional service provider was
commissioned to clean the interceptor regularly to maintain its
efficiency. The intercepted oil and grease will also be collected by
an external recycler for further treatment.
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Environmental Risks

As the abnormal climate trends become the new normal, it is vital
for corporations to manage their environmental risks and prepare
themselves to adapt to the new climate, which is becoming more
unpredictable than ever.

In August 2017, typhoon Hato raided across the South China Sea
and caused many casualties, destructions and loss of properties.
Macau, where our two hotels operate in, suffered tremendous loss
socially and economically during the typhoon’s arrival to the South
China coast. Electricity and water supplies were suspended due to
infrastructure failures while the coastal and low lying streets were
flooded.

Our hotel operations were also disrupted by the extreme weather
event. Despite the chaotic situation due to electricity and water
supply suspension, our well-trained employees managed to settle
our valuable guests with care and provided them with necessary
assistance in the critical time. Although the incident had destroyed
part of our properties, including windows, exterior lighting, rooftop
facilities and ventilation pipes, our swiftness in repairing and
replacing all damaged facilities had pushed our operations back
on track efficiently.

In the future, the Group will continue to manage its environmental
risks, review the appropriateness of its policies, and devise
relevant contingency and continuity plans for more extreme climate
events to come.
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Constructing Green Hotels with Our Guests

At the hotels, we always prioritise our guests’ preferences. Their
actions and preferences not only directly affect our operations, but
also indirectly influence our environmental performances. In light of
our guests’ potential in contributing to our sustainable future, we
strive to provide them with sufficient options to pursue a greener
stay at our hotels.

For guests who are staying for more than one night, notice cards
will be placed in their rooms to encourage them to consider their
environmental responsibility when deciding if they need fresh
linens and towels every day. By placing these environmental notes
in the guestrooms, we want to educate our guests on how they
could make their lifestyle greener, and to show them that personal
change can also be impactful to environmental preservation.

Our restaurants are also committed to driving our hotels greener
with the involvement of our guests. During the Reporting Period,
our hotels’ Chinese restaurants have replaced plastic bags with
eco-friendly reusable cloth bags. Despite the rising cost, the hotels
hope the transition from disposables to reusables could remind our
guests and customers the virtue of reusing precious resources.
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ESG PERFORMANCE TABLE ESG &M &K

Key Performance Indicators

Financial
Services

ol e

Hotel and
Gaming
Services

BERBEEE

Environmental B 5
GHG Emissions (Scope 1 & 2) tCOze— 27.86 20,415.26 20,443.12
RERBYR(BE—RD) WA LI EE
Scope 1: Direct Emissions tCO.e— 0.00 1,230.07 1,230.07
HE— - BEEHEN ME— A LiRE &
Scope 2: Energy Indirect Emissions tCOze— 27.86 19,185.20 19,213.05
HE_ - sREEFER M —SEALIRE 2
GHG Emission Intensity By Revenue tCO2e-/HKD’'000 0.00 0.03 0.01
RWAGTERRERBYNAE WE—S(CIREE

7571000
Electricity Usage' kWh 35,263.00 | 21,199,106.00 | 21,234,369.00
HEEE TR
Gas Usage kg Nil 96,698.86 96,698.86
MRERS N i
Gasoline Usage L Nil 2,153.57 2,153.57
FURFERE Pan i
Diesel Oil Usage L Nil 327,914.47 327,914 .47
SmmAE 7t i
Energy Usage MJ 126,946.80 | 92,032,333.52 | 92,159,280.32
BEIRERE KEH
Energy Intensity By Revenue MJ/HKD’000 0.05 134.91 29.79
RAGTEHREIREFERE JEEH 778000
Water Consumption? m3 N/A 325,143.13 325,143.13
FKE? SR AN
Waste Paper Recycled Tonnes N/A 14.05 14.05
EEAR B = 43 NiEM

REETEELT BB RAANNFE FY
EHES -
EEEMERT - & 6T KE TR
REHPORE K BRI AT -

! Electricity usage does not include the consumption of the rent-out '
spa area in Casa Real.

2 Daily average water consumption may be used to extrapolate  ?
missing water consumption data, when appropriate.
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The Directors of the Company (the “Directors”) have pleasure in
submitting their report and the audited financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 31 March 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 39 to the
financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2018 are set
out in the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other
Comprehensive Income on pages 92 to 93. The Board has
recommended the payment of final dividend for the year ended 31
March 2018 of HK2 cents per share (2017: HK2.5 cents). No
interim dividend was declared during the six months ended 30
September 2017 (six months ended 30 September 2016: nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the Group’s business, an analysis of the Group’s
performance (using financial key performance indicators), a
description of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the
Group, particulars of important events occurred since 31 March
2018, if any, and an indication of likely future development in the
Group’s business are provided in the Management Discussion and
Analysis of this annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Company’s environmental principles and practices are set out
in the section headed “Environmental, Social and Governance
Report” in this annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The Board considers that effective environmental protection
measures will not only contribute to environmental protection but
also reduction of the production cost. During the Year, the Group
has implemented various measures to reduce waste and pollution
and to effectively and efficiently use the resources.

Financial Services Operation

The Group’s financial services operations are fully automated and
waste-free. Looking forward, we will continue to adopt the
environmental friendly operation mode.
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Hotel and Gaming Operation

The Group is committed to minimising the environmental impact of
its operation. Since our business operates in 24 hours basis,
electricity consumption has always been a main concern for us.
We are hence gradually replacing lighting system with energy
saving LED light in the two hotels, which is beginning to yield
positive results in reducing electricity usage. In additional to that,
the Group is actively considering the installation of new air
conditioning system to lower energy consumption and noise level.
The Group’s professional team also regularly checks and closely
monitors the waste water system to ensure the sewage discharged
is adequately treated and complied with relevant laws and
regulations.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group has the greatest respect for the laws and regulations
which govern our businesses. We have appointed compliance
officer to oversee compliance with all relevant regulations for our
financial services business in Hong Kong. As for the gaming
business in Macau, the Group has adopted anti-money laundering
procedures in accordance to relevant regulations. Policies are well
communicated to relevant employees to ensure compliance with
all these anti-money laundering policies and procedures.

The Group has complied with all relevant laws and regulations
throughout the year.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The management firmly believes that staffs are the most valuable
asset of a company and are crucial to the company’s success. As
a caring employer, we offer competitive benefits to our staffs and
provide full spectrum training to familiarise our staffs with the
industry. We are also committed to provide our staffs a safe
working environment by strictly following operational manual
formulated with reference to the guidelines issued by the Macau
Labor Affairs Bureau.

The Group’s key hotel customers include online and traditional
travel agents. As a professional service provider, we are dedicated
to provide wonderful accommodating and entertainment
experience to our customers. Our well trained staffs create a safe,
clean and cozy environment to gain repeat customers.

BEREREE
AEBBNKHEEENRRELZFERERIK
BRI RN 24/ N ERABE - ENH
M—ERAEEZI2MTIFE - Bt - RAR
OB JE B A BT BE LED B R BRI R gt - A
FIAER D AEET EESEMAR ° FRILASN -
RER B LR E 8 2 KT 2= 3 R AR DARVE BE TR R
FEREZKF - AEE 2 EXEBRNERRER
FYIEFITKER - AREREE RIE)5KEEN
Wi THEBER AR

&7 AEBEER KRR

AEE+HERZFEERMEBERIER -
BRHCERBARTE EERMARTEZ2RR
BEB BT A EBAR - BURFIBEEHKM
5 ARECREBERZEZARARERERRF
BRMRAEEEETRFAER  UBRETHA
AZERRBEZBRRRER

AEBRANFEN—BEETHARBERNRD -

BES - EFRHER ZBEE

EREREEIRAARBEERE  HAFKY
ERER-FR—RZBLOBIMET  HMAE
TREAZRFNEMN  WiRHEEEIEE IR
BITHEE - HAIMEBBERRIRMSE TER
PR ZESI PRI EREFM O KB TREH
ZETHERE -

AEEBEZ T BT BRES L ERKERE -
FRBEERGHER RMAXEATPREHREH
EERRZER BRAZETIRER - ALA
EREREFREFERE  WIITFBENXE -

I - ~
—T—\FER



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EERWmE

We also established long-term good cooperation relationship with
suppliers up to over 10 years, to ensure stable supply, price and
quality of the product for our hotel operation in Macau.

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year ended 31
March 2018 is set out in note 6 to the financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Company and the
Group during the year are set out in note 37 to the financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity
on page 96 respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Details of the distributable reserves of the Company as at 31
March 2018 are set out in note 37 to the financial statements.

DONATIONS

Charitable donations made by the Group during the year ended 31
March 2018 amounted to approximately HK$658,500.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group are set out in note 18 to the financial statements.

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out in
note 39 to the financial statements.
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY T EMBEHRE

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group AEBEBEREAMBHEE 2 XEULREERAE
for the past five financial years, as extracted from the audited 2 X NEHFEAKSEKTERE Y2 /EEgE
financial statements and reclassified as appropriate, is set out as #5948 - HFw~ -

below:

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
—2-N\F “TtF "FT-AF "FT-EF _—T-mF

HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TAT TAT TR TAET

Turnover EER 3,093,546 2,878,897 3,115,050 2479,274 1,847,685

Profit before taxation B AT F 1,607,105 1,781,825 2,030,072 1,478,597 900,955

Profit attributable to owners =N A aprayil 1,348,626 1,484,943 1,700,374 1,259,636 771,060

Total assets BEHE 37,594,895 36,654,689 34,928,528 32,747,741  25873,931

Total liabilities BEEHE (16,955,535) (17,053,551) (16,300,305) (15,194,234)  (9,984,042)
Non-controlling interest FEE R (15,606) (19,871) (12,231) (19,299) (8,098)
Shareholders’ fund BERES 20,623,754 19,581,267 18,615,992 17,534,208 15,881,791

SHARE OPTIONS AND SHARE CAPITAL BRERRKRAKR

Details of the movements in the share options and share capital of 772 7] B8 M #E I I8 AN 6 (N ) 2515 0 Bl B 7%
the Company during the year are set out in notes 34 and 36 to the  $RFKMIFE34 K 36 °
financial statements respectively.

Share Options Scheme BREstal

The share option scheme adopted on 7 June 2004 expired on 6 R_ZEZNFNALBRNZERETEENRZ
June 2014. At the annual general meeting of the Company heldon ZE—M&XAXBEmR R_ZE—=FN A=+
20 August 2013, shareholders of the Company have approved the HER{ITZAQARBREEFAL  ARAFKRS I
adoption of a new share option scheme (the “Share Option /R —EFEIET 2| ([REREE]) -
Scheme”).

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide the BRIEFEIEEAARARRHBERERZETE
Company with a flexible and effective means of incentivising, JAMZEEELEE) - 2EE) - BN - REN K=k
rewarding, remunerating, compensating and/or providing benefits  IE{t&F] - AETL2EEZERK SR AMAME
to participants. To determine the eligibility of the participant, the — AIZHAREBMIEL B2 2 HEIR 2K TEKE -
Board may offer to grant an option to any participant who has

contribution to the Group.
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Options granted under the Share Option Scheme are subject to
such terms and conditions as may be determined by the Board at
its absolute discretion and specified in the offer of an option, which
terms and conditions may include: (A) vesting conditions which
must be satisfied before an option-holder’s option shall become
vested and capable of being exercised; and (B) the Board may, in
its absolute discretion, specify performance conditions that must
be achieved before an option can be exercised and/or the
minimum period for which an option must be held before it can be
exercised.

The option price will be determined by the Board at its absolute
discretion and notified to an option-holder. The minimum option
price shall not be less than the highest of: (A) the closing price of
the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheet on the offer date; (B) the average closing price of the Shares
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the
five business days immediately preceding the offer date; and (C)
the nominal value of the shares.

The total number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any
options to be granted under any other scheme must not in
aggregate exceed 10% of the aggregate of the Shares in issue as
at the adoption date. Options lapsed in accordance with the terms
of the Share Option Scheme and any other scheme will not be
counted for the purpose of calculating the 10% limit.

With the approval of the Shareholders in general meeting, the
Board may “refresh” the 10% limit provided that the total number of
shares which may be issued upon the exercise of all options to be
granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other scheme
under the limit as “refreshed” shall not exceed 10% of the Shares
in issue as at the date on which the Shareholders approve the
“refreshed” limit. Options previously granted under the Share
Option Scheme and option granted under any other schemes
(including those outstanding, cancelled and lapsed in accordance
with the terms of the relevant scheme, or exercised options) will
not be counted for the purpose of calculating the limit as
“refreshed”.
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The Board may, with the approval of the Shareholders, grant
options in excess of the 10% limit to participants specifically
identified. In such situation, the Company will send a circular to the
Shareholders containing a generic description of the specified
participants who may be granted such options, the number and
terms of such options to be granted and the purpose of granting
such options to the specified participants with an explanation of
how the terms of the options will serve the purpose. The total
number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the
Share Option Scheme and all outstanding options granted and yet
to be exercised under any other scheme shall not exceed 30% of
the Shares in issue from time to time. No options may be granted
under the Share Option Scheme and no options may be granted
under any other schemes if this will result in the limit being
exceeded.

The Board shall not grant any options to any participant which, if
exercised, would result in such participant becoming entitled to
subscribe for such number of shares as, when aggregated with
the total number of shares already issued or to be issued to him
under all options granted to him (including those options exercised
or outstanding) in any 12-month period exceed 1% of the shares in
issue at such date.

The Board may grant options to any participant in excess of the
individual limit of 1% in any 12-month period with the approval of
the shareholders in general meeting (with such participant and his
associates abstaining from voting). In such situation, the Company
will send a circular to the Shareholders and the circular must
disclose the identity of the participant, the number and terms of the
options to be granted (and previously granted to such participant).

An option under the Share Option Scheme which is vested and
has not lapsed may be exercised at any time during such period
notified by the Board as not exceeding 10 years from the offer
date. The exercise of options may also be subject to any conditions
imposed by the Board at the time of offer.

For the year ended 31 March 2018 and 2017, the Company had no
share option being granted, outstanding, lapsed or cancelled
pursuant to the Share Option Scheme.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

Other than the Share Options Scheme as disclosed in the above
paragraphs headed “Share Options Schemes”, no equity-linked
agreements were entered into by the Company during the year or
subsisted at the end of the financial year under review.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

The Bye-Laws of the Company provide that the directors for the
time being of the Company shall be indemnified and secured
harmless out of the assets of the Company from and against all
actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which
they shall or may incur or sustain by reason of any act done,
concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of their duty or
supposed duty in their respective offices except such (if any) as
they shall incur or sustain through their own willful neglect or
default respectively.

The Company has taken out insurance against the liability and
costs associated with defending any proceedings which may be
brought against the directors of the Company and its subsidiaries.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company
to offer new shares on prorate basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SHARES

During the year ended 31 March 2018, there were no purchases,
sales or redemptions of the Company’s listed securities by the
Company or any of its subsidiaries.

DIRECTORS
The Directors who held office during the year ended 31 March
2018 and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Chu, Nicholas Yuk-yui (Chairman)

Mrs. Chu Yuet Wah (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Chu, Kingston Chun Ho

Mr. Ho Chi Ho
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Independent Non-executive Directors
Dr. Wong Yun Kuen

Mr. Lau Man Tak

Ms. Lo, Miu Sheung Betty

In accordance with the bye-law 87(1), Mr. Chu, Kingston Chun Ho,
Mr. Lau Man Tak and Dr. Wong Yun Kuen will retire by rotation at
the forthcoming annual general meeting, and being eligible, will
offer themselves for re-election.

The term of office for each of the Independent Non-executive
Directors is the period up to his retirement by rotation and re-
election at annual general meeting of the Company in accordance
with the Company’s bye-laws.

The Company has received from each of Dr. Wong Yun Kuen, Mr.
Lau Man Tak and Ms. Lo, Miu Sheung Betty an annual confirmation
of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the
Company still considers the independent Non-executive Directors
to be independent.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The biographical details of Directors and senior management of
the Group as at the date of this report are as follows:

Chairman and Executive Director

Mr. Chu, Nicholas Yuk-yui, aged 65, holds a Bachelor's degree
in Accounting and a Master’'s degree of Business Administration
from the Louisiana State University. He has more than 20 years
experience in corporate finance, foreign exchange, lending,
securities and futures trading industries. He is a member of Hong
Kong Securities Institute and a responsible officer under the
Securities and Futures Ordinance for type 1 (dealing in securities)
and 2 (dealing in futures contracts) regulated activities. He is the
spouse of Mrs. Chu Yuet Wah and the father of Mr. Chu, Kingston
Chun Ho. He joined the Group in February 2006.
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Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director

Mrs. Chu Yuet Wah, aged 59, is the Chief Executive Officer and
an Executive Director of the Company. She is the co-founder of the
Group, she has over 20 years of experience in financial services
industry. Mrs. Chu has also been appointed as the Permanent
Honorary President and Vice Chairman of The Institute of Securities
Dealers, Vice Chairman of Hong Kong Securities Professionals
Association. Moreover, she is Member of National Committee of
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference, Permanent
Member of the Friends of Hong Kong Association, the Founder and
Permanent Honorary Chairman of The Chamber of Hong Kong
Listed Companies, Chairman (2015-16) and Advisory Board
Member (2016-17) of Po Leung Kuk, Standing Chairman of
Federation of Hong Kong Guangdong Community Organisations,
Chairman of the Hong Kong Federation of Dongguan Associations,
Permanent Honorary Chairman of Federation of Hong Kong Zhuhai
Community, Chairman of Aplichau Promotion of Tourism
Association, Chairman of The Aplichau KaiFong Welfare
Association, Honorary President of Hong Kong Army Cades
Association, Honorary President of Hong Kong New Arrivals
Services Foundation Limited and Director of Sun Yat-Sen University
Advisory Board. She received an Honorary Ph.D. degree in
Business Management from York University, the United States and
holds a Bachelor’'s degree in Science of Management from Golden
Gate University, the United States. Mrs. Chu is currently the
chairman and an executive director of Sincere Watch (Hong Kong)
Limited which is a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange. She is also the spouse of Mr. Chu, Nicholas Yuk-yui
and the mother of Mr. Chu, Kingston Chun Ho. She joined the
Group in April 2005.
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Executive Director

Mr. Chu, Kingston Chun Ho, aged 33, is an Executive Director of
the Company. Mr. Chu is also a licensed person under Securities
and Futures Ordinance for type 1 (dealing in securities) and type 6
(advising on corporate finance) regulated activities for the
Company’s wholly owned subsidiaries, Kingston Securities Limited
and Kingston Corporate Finance Limited respectively. Mr. Chu is a
Member of Guangxi Committee of The Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference, Member of General Committee of The
Chamber of Hong Kong Listed Companies, Vice President of Hong
Kong CPPCC Youth Association, Vice Director of Youth Committee
of HKCPPCC (Provincial) Members Association, Vice President of
Federation of HK Guangxi Community Organisations, Vice
Chairman of Hong Kong Guangdong Youth Association, Honorary
Chairman of Hong Kong Guangxi Youth Organisations and
Chairman of Youth Committee of Hong Kong Federation of
Dongguan Associations. Mr. Chu holds a Bachelor Degree of
Science in Business Administration from the University of Southern
California in the U.S.A. Mr. Chu is also an executive director of
Sincere Watch (Hong Kong) Limited (“Sincere HK”) since 29 May
2012 and the chairman and an executive director of Synergis
Holdings Limited since 9 March 2017, both companies are listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Chu is a director of
Sincere Watch Limited, the immediate holding company of Sincere
HK since 21 May 2012. Mr. Chu was a non-executive director of
New Concepts Holdings Limited from September 2016 to
November 2017, a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange. Mr. Chu is the son of Mr. Chu, Nicholas Yuk-yui and
Mrs. Chu Yuet Wah. Mr. Chu joined the Group in July 2010 and
was appointed as Executive Director on 21 August 2015.

Mr. Ho Chi Ho, aged 43, is an Executive Director of the Company.
Mr. Ho is responsible for origination and execution of corporate
finance transactions including mergers and acquisitions, corporate
and capital restructuring, business projects evaluation, and equity
and debt fund raising. Mr. Ho has extensive experience in banking
and capital markets, and also held senior position in corporate
management in a Hong Kong listed company. Mr. Ho holds a
Master degree in Business Administration from the Hong Kong
University of Science and Technology and a Bachelor degree in
Business Administration (Accounting and Finance) from The
University of Hong Kong. He is registered as a Responsible Officer
under the Securities and Future Ordinance for Type 6 (advising on
corporate finance) regulated activities. Mr. Ho had worked with the
Group from 2003 to 2007 and rejoined in August 2011. He was
appointed as Executive Director on 2 January 2014.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. Wong Yun Kuen, aged 60, received a Ph.D. Degree from
Harvard University, and was “Distinguished Visiting Scholar” at
Wharton School of the University of Pennsylvania. He has worked
in financial industries in the United States and Hong Kong for many
years, and has considerable experience in corporate finance,
investment and derivative products. He is a member of Hong Kong
Securities and Investment Institute. Dr. Wong is the chairman and
an executive director of Far East Holdings International Limited
and UBA Investments Limited, an executive director of Boill
Healthcare Holdings Limited (formerly known as Ngai Shun
Holdings Limited), a non-executive director of China Sandi
Holdings Limited and an independent non-executive director of
DeTai New Energy Group Limited (formerly known as Guocang
Group Limited), Kaisun Energy Group Limited, GT Group Holdings
Limited (formerly known as China Yunnan Tin Minerals Group
Company Limited), Synergis Holdings Limited and Tech Pro
Technology Development Limited. Dr. Wong was also an
independent non-executive director of Bauhaus International
(Holdings) Limited from October 2004 to December 20186,
Harmony Asset Limited from September 2004 to January 2015,
Kong Sun Holdings Limited from April 2007 to November 2014,
Huajun Holdings Limited (formerly known as New lIsland
Development Holdings Limited) from October 2010 to September
2014, KuangChi Science Limited (formerly known as Climax
International Company Limited) from June 2007 to August 2014
and Sincere Watch (Hong Kong) Limited from September 2012 to
December 2017. All the companies mentioned above are listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. He joined the Group in
June 2005.
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Mr. Lau Man Tak (“Mr. Lau”), aged 48, holds a Bachelor Degree
of Arts in Accountancy from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University.
He has more than 17 years of experience in finance and
accounting. He is an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants, a fellow member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants, a fellow member of the Hong
Kong Securities and Investment Institute and a fellow member of
The Hong Kong Institute of Directors. Mr. Lau is currently an
executive director and chairman of TEM Holdings Limited, a
company listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange and an
independent non-executive director of Synergis Holdings Limited,
a company listed on Main Board of the Stock Exchange. He is also
a non-executive director and chairman of REF Holdings Limited, a
company listed on Main Board of the Stock Exchange. He was also
an independent non-executive director of each of AMCO United
Holdings Limited from October 2010 to June 2015, KuangChi
Science Limited from March 2008 to September 2015, and Sincere
Watch (Hong Kong) Limited from June 2012 to December 2016,
which are companies listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange. He joined the Group in October 2005.

Ms. Lo, Miu Sheung Betty (“Ms. Lo”), aged 56, is a qualified
solicitor in Hong Kong and has over 29 years of experience in
general legal practice, with specialisation in conveyancing,
commercial and probate laws. Ms. Lo has been in active practice
since qualification and is currently a consultant of Messrs. K.C. Ho
& Fong, Solicitors & Notaries. She graduated from The University
of Hong Kong with a Bachelor Degree in Laws (LL.B.) in 1985. She
also holds a Postgraduate Certificate in Laws (PCLL). Ms. Lo is an
independent non-executive director of Sincere Watch (Hong Kong)
Limited since 19 June 2012. She is currently an independent non-
executive director of AEON Stores (Hong Kong) Co., Limited since
8 November 2013. She was also an independent non-executive
director of Eagle Legend Asia Limited from March 2012 to
December 2014. The securities of all of these companies are listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. She joined the Group in
September 2016.
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Senior Management

Mr. Lui Chun Pong, aged 49, joined the Group on 30 April 2018
and is the Chief Operating Officer of the Company. Mr. Lui
obtained a Bachelor degree of Arts from the University of Hong
Kong, a Master degree of Laws from the Chinese University of
Hong Kong, a Master degree of Accountancy from Charles Sturt
University in Australia and an Executive Master degree of Business
Administration from the City University of Hong Kong. He is a
Certified Public Accountant and a Certified Tax Advisor in Hong
Kong, and a Chartered Certified Accountant and a Chartered
Secretary in the United Kingdom. He has over 26 years of
experience in corporate accounting, financing and tax
administration in the real estate business like property
development, property investment and property management, in
addition to company secretarial practices of Hong Kong listed
companies. Mr. Lui held senior positions at a number of Hong
Kong Companies listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
Mr. Lui currently is a non-executive director of Hsin Chong Group
Holdings Limited and was an executive director of Synergis
Holdings Limited from December 2015 to March 2017, both
Companies are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Chan Chun Lam, aged 46, joined the Group on 4 April 2014
and is the Financial Controller and Company Secretary of the
Company. Mr. Chan holds a bachelor degree of Business
Administration in Accounting with honors from Hong Kong Baptist
University. Mr. Chan is a Certified Public Accountant (Practising)
and a fellow member of both the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Chan has worked for an International accounting
firm and a number of listed companies in Hong Kong. Mr. Chan
has over 20 years of professional experience in financial
management and auditing.
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Ms. Chan Yin Tong Cynthia, aged 67, is a director of Kingston
Securities Limited. Ms. Chan is responsible for promotion, sales
and marketing, recruitment and training of sales representative of
Kingston Securities. Ms. Chan has extensive experience in
securities broking, compliance, administrative functions, activities
in underwriting new issues, equity capital markets and project
financing. Prior to joining the Group, she was the Dealing Director
and Responsible Officer of Wintech Securities Limited and Koffman
Securities Limited principally responsible for securities broking,
compliance and administrative functions. In addition, Ms. Chan
also undertook activities in underwriting new issues, equity capital
markets and project financing. Ms. Chan has been working in
international securities firms and investment banks in the 1980’s.
Ms. Chan worked in Merrill Lynch (FE) Limited in 1989 and
Standard Chartered Securities Limited in 1993 and was also the
Assistant Vice President of Prudential Bache Securities Hong Kong
Limited in 1997. She is very experienced with the operations of the
Hong Kong securities market. Ms. Chan is a registered
Responsible Officer under Type 1 (dealing in securities) regulated
activities. Ms. Chan joined the Group in February 2006.

Mr. Wong Hip Keung Jimmy, aged 57, is the Director-Retail and
Corporate Sales of Kingston Securities Limited. Mr. Wong is
responsible for overseeing the dealing department which includes
both securities and futures products. He has a Bachelor Degree in
Accounting from the Golden Gate University in San Francisco, CA,
USA. With extensive experience in securities and capital markets,
he is specialised in securities & futures broking, compliance and
administrative functions. He is registered as a responsible officer
under Type 1 (dealing in securities) and Type 2 (dealing in futures
contracts) regulated activities. He joined the Group in October
1996.

Mr. Chan Kwun Wah Derek, aged 47, is the managing director of
Kingston Corporate Finance Limited. He is principally engaged in
leading and planning investment banking and financial
consultation services, including IPO sponsorship, structured
finance, merger & acquisitions, asset restructuring and corporate
governance advisory. He has earned over 19 years of experience
from a few renowned securities firms and global financial
institutions. He holds a Master of Business Administration in the UK
and a Bachelor’'s Degree in Business Administration in Canada. He
is registered as a responsible officer under the Securities and
Futures Ordinance for Type 1 & 6 activities. Mr. Chan had worked
with the Group from 2004 to 2008 and rejoined in January 2014.
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EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND THE FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Particulars of the Directors’ emoluments and of the five highest
paid individuals of the Group are set out in notes 16 and 17 to the
financial statements respectively.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Mrs. Chu Yuet Wah has entered into a service contract with the
Company for an initial term of 3 years which commenced on 1 April
2014, and will continue thereafter until terminated by either party
by giving not less than 6 months’ written notice.

All Non-executive Directors have executed a letter of appointment
with the Company for a term of one year which commenced on 1
April 2018, and subject to compliance with relevant requirements
of the Listing Rules, and will continue thereafter until terminated by
either party by giving not less than three months’ written notice.

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with
the Company which is not determinable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

As at 31 March 2018, none of the Directors are interested in any
business, apart from the Group’s businesses, which competes or
is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the businesses
of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Saved as disclosed in note 46 to the financial statements, no
contracts of significance to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party in which any Director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
year ended 31 March 2018 or at any time during the year.

Kingston Financial Group Limited
Annual Report 2018

18

EERAERESHFMALHME

BERAEERERSTFHNA LTSS DB
R BRERMFE16 217 ©

BEERBEL

FTRELTERARAITLRBAN A-F
—WENA-RENSRA=F - TREM—T
BT DNAEA BEBML LA KLY -

EEIFNTESCEHARARIZERNE  BZ
- \FOUA—-BERH—F AZETLMRA
ZHEERE  YHRERFEEN  BEER—
FELTIOR=ER 2 EmBAT AL -

BERNEERRBAFASERET2EFTEARN
RBRIMARBAA R —FERRNIEE BB LA
RERIEZRBEEL

EERNBFEREB 2ES

RZZE-N\F=ZA=+—H BEAKEEBK
BEERME A AR EEE RSB EBER K
FIRERBAR RS 2 X A o

EERGHNZER

PR B RSRRI S 46 TR B S - BB ME A
HMERSARREEANBELALRTLARE
E-F— \$ZASt - BULFEZEHANS
PITAERIRA LR Z BAA KRB EAES -



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
B RHWE

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the year ended 31 March 2018.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SECURITIES

At 31 March 2018, the following Directors had interests or short
positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) which would be required (a) to be notified to
the Company or the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8
of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which
they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFQO); or (b) pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in
the register referred to therein; or (c) to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the requirements of the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies:

Long positions in the Shares:

Number of shares
of the Company
AARRGH B
Personal Corporate

Name of Directors Interests Interests

EEHA

(EPN £ DA ERS

Mrs. Chu Yuet Wah - 10,157,205,895

T HELL (Note 1)
(Htat1)
Mr. Chu, Nicholas Yuk-yui - 10,157,205,895
RARWBEAE (Note 1)
(Htat 1)
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underlying Approximate
shares of the percentage of
Company Total shareholding
RN FEE BA
ROGEE By REBFD
3,750,000,000 13,907,205,895 102.15%
(Note 2)
(Htat2)
3,750,000,000 13,907,205,895 102.15%
(Note 2)
(Hfat2)
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Notes:

(1) As at 31 March 2018, of the 10,157,205,895 shares, 1,894,699,896
shares are held by Sure Expert Limited, 15,939,999 shares are held
by Kingston Capital Limited, 6,696,964,000 shares are held by Active
Dynamic Limited, 424,602,000 shares are held by Choose Right
Limited and 1,125,000,000 shares are held by Better Sino Limited, all
of which are controlled by Mrs. Chu Yuet Wah (“Mrs. Chu”). Mr. Chu,
Nicholas Yuk-yui (“Mr. Chu”), the spouse of Mrs. Chu is deemed to
be interested in these 10,157,205,895 shares.

(2)  As at 31 March 2018, Mrs. Chu, through Active Dynamic Limited
held 3,750,000,000 convertible preference shares conferring rights
to subscribe for up to HK$3,000,000,000 in aggregate in cash for
3,750,000,000 new shares at the conversion price of HK$0.80
(subject to adjustments) per share. Mr. Chu is deemed to be
interested in the 3,750,000,000 underlying shares held by Mrs. Chu.

Save for those disclosed above, no interests and short positions
were held or deemed or taken to be held under Part XV of the SFO
by any Director or the Chief Executive of the Company or their
respective associates in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Part XV of the SFO or pursuant to the Model Code or which are
required pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO to be entered in the
register referred to therein.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES
AND DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the section “Directors’ and Chief Executive's
interests and short positions in securities”, at no time during the year
ended 31 March 2018 was the Company or any of its associated
corporations a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors or
Chief Executive of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or underlying shares in, or debentures of,
the Company or any other body corporate, and none of the Directors
or Chief Executives, nor any of their spouses or children under the
age of 18, had any rights to subscribe the securities of the
Company, or had exercised any such rights during the year.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
B RHWE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 March 2018, the register of substantial shareholders
maintained by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO
shows that, the following shareholders had notified the Company
of relevant interests and short positions in the issued share capital
of the Company:

FERR

R-ZE-NF=ZA=1+—8 BEARAREES
EHEGPIFE B IR EFEZTERRELM
BR - TIBRREMAEARRE  RRENARQA
BERTRATHEBRER SRR ¢

Number of shares

of the Company No. of
AT RBEE underlying Approximate
Personal Corporate  shares of the percentage of
Name of Shareholders Interests Interests Company Total shareholding
A EEEA B4
BRREB A B ARz NEEE RGEE ny REBFS
Sure Expert Limited - 1,894,699,896 - 1,894,699,896 13.92%
(Note 1)(K1iE 1)
Active Dynamic Limited - 6,696,964,000 3,750,000,000 10,446,964,000 76.73%
(Note 2) (K17t 2)
Better Sino Limited (Note 3) - 1,125,000,000 - 1,125,000,000 8.26%
=B BRRAE(MaE3)
Notes: Hiat -
(1) Sure Expert Limited is wholly and beneficially owned by Mrs. Chu. (1)  Sure Expert Limited i E X + 2 B E A -

The interests of Mrs. Chu and Sure Expert Limited in the Company
are stated under the section headed “Directors’ and Chief
Executive’s interests and short positions in securities” above.

%+ R Sure Expert Limited R K 2 5] 2 ##5 # R
FX[EFRERTHABRESZ BmRAE]

—Fp e

(2)  Active Dynamic Limited is wholly and beneficially owned by Mrs.  (2)  Active Dynamic Limited HE L +2 B E51HH °
Chu. The interests of Mrs. Chu and Active Dynamic Limited in the ZF 244 K Active Dynamic Limited IR 2 6] 2 #E
Company are stated under the section headed “Directors’ and Chief HREX[EFERGRITEASRESRZ #m X
Executive’s interests and short positions in securities” above. KE]—Ep e

(3)  Better Sino Limited is wholly and beneficially owned by Mrs. Chu.  (3) (ZFEBRAGIHEL L2 ERE=HER - TL 1+

The interests of Mrs. Chu and Better Sino Limited in the Company
are stated under the section headed “Directors’ and Chief
Executive’s interests and short positions in securities” above.

Save for those disclosed above, the Company has not been
notified of any other relevant interests or short positions in the
issued share capital of the Company as at 31 March 2018.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EERWmE

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

Particulars of the retirement benefits scheme of the Group are set
out in note 33 to the financial statements.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION

1.

Renewal of Continuing Connected Transactions:
Provision of Brokerage and Financial Services

The terms of the Previous Brokerage Services Agreement
and the Previous Financial Services Agreements expired on
31 March 2017. In order for the Group to continue to provide
brokerage and financial services to the Relevant Directors
and their respective associates (where applicable), on 17
February 2017, (i) Kingston Securities and Kingston Futures
entered into the 2017 Brokerage Services Agreement with
the Chu & Li's Family for provision of brokerage services and
(i) Kingston Securities has entered into the 2017 Chu & Li's
Family Financial Services Agreement with the Chu & Li's
Family and the 2017 Financial Services Agreement with Mr.
Ho for provision of financial services for a term of three years
commencing from 1 April 2017 to 31 March 2020.

Details were set out in the Company’s announcement dated
17 February 2017 and circular dated 8 March 2017.

Details of the connected transactions entered into by the
Company during the year are set out in note 46 to the
financial statements.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
Details of events after the reporting date are set out in note 47 to
the financial statements.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the material related party transactions undertaken by the
Group in its normal course of business are set out in note 46 to the
financial statements.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the
Company’s total issued share capital was held by the public as at
the date of this report.

AUDITORS

The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018 of the
Company have been audited by BDO Limited, who will retire and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Chu, Nicholas Yuk-yui
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 June 2018
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR"S REPORT
B ZE RS

|IBDO

EEE 1 +852 2218 8288
{85 : +852 2815 2239

Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

25t™ Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central

Hong Kong
FATHEPR1115E
JkZeH>258

www.bdo.com.hk

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
KINGSTON FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Kingston
Financial Group Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together “the Group”) set out on pages 92 to 204, which comprise
the consolidated statements of financial position as at 31 March
2018, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as
at 31 March 2018, and of its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINON

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements” section of our report. We are independent of the
Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s “Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR"S REPORT
AR Gk s

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

IMPAIRMENT OF GOODWILL

As at 31 March 2018, as a result of its acquisition of Kingston
Capital Asia Limited in 2011, the Group had goodwill of HK$10,997
million relating to the cash-generating units engaged in securities
dealings, underwriting and placements, margin and IPO financing
services and corporate finance advisory services.

Management concluded that there is no impairment on goodwill.
This conclusion was based on a value in use model that required
significant management judgement with respect to the discount
rate and the underlying cash flows, in particular future revenue
growth. An independent external valuation was obtained in respect
of the impairment assessment on goodwill in order to support
management’s estimates.

We identified the impairment of goodwill as a key audit matter
because of the significant judgement involved in the determination
of recoverable amounts and the significance of carrying amounts

of goodwill to the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

Refer to Note 19 to the consolidated financial statements and the
accounting policies on Note 4 (c).

Our response:

Our procedures in relation to management’s impairment
assessment of goodwill included:

— Evaluating the independent external valuers’ competence,
capabilities and objectivity;

—  Assessing the valuation methodology;
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR"S REPORT
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KEY AUD'T MATTERS (continued)

IMPAIRMENT OF GOODWILL (continued)

—  Challenging the reasonableness of key assumptions based
on our knowledge of business and industry; and

— Reconciling input data to supporting evidence, such as
approved budgets and considering the reasonableness of
these budgets.

IMPAIRMENT OF ADVANCES TO CUSTOMER IN
MARGIN FINANCING

As at 31 March 2018, the Group had HK$20,582 million of
advances to customers in margin financing.

Management regularly reviewed the recoverability of advances to
customers in margin financing and made impairment when
required. This conclusion was based on the repayment status,
likelihood of full settlement and the fair value of pledged securities.

We identified the impairment of advances to customers in margin
financing as a key audit matter because of the significant
judgement involved and the significance of the carrying amounts
to the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

Refer to Note 24 to the consolidated financial statements and the
accounting policies on Notes 4(g)(ii).

Our response:
Our procedures in relation to management’s impairment
assessment of advances to customers in margin financing

included:

— Reviewing the fair value of pledged securities, repayment
history and financial background of customers;

—  Performing substantive tests on subsequent settlements;

— Reviewing the Group’s policy and practice in respect of
provision for doubtful debts.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR"S REPORT
AR Gk s

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

CONTINGENT LIABILITY

During the year, the Group was in dispute with the Macau Financial
Services Bureau about tax assessments on gaming revenue
generated by the Group’s two subsidiaries, amounted to HK$107.6
million. The Group lodged objection to the Financial Services
Bureau and submitted petitions to the Macau Court in making
appeals against the tax assessments under dispute.

No provision was recorded at 31 March 2018 for the tax disputes
as the management considered that such liability crystallisation is
not probable.

We identified contingent liability as a key audit matter because of
its significance to the consolidated financial statements and it
required the application of significant judgement related to the
probability of the success of the court appeal.

Refer to Note 44 to the consolidated financial statements and the
accounting policies on Note 4(m).

Our response:
Our procedures in relation to the contingent liability included:

—  Discussing with management to understand the nature of
dispute and reviewing correspondence with Macau Financial
Services Bureau and the Court;

— Obtaining a letter from the Group’s external legal counsel
regarding the progress of litigation, including the view of the
legal counsel on the probable outcome of the litigation and
the magnitude of potential exposure.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR"S REPORT
BNz AR &

OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s
annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

DIRECTOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the
directors in discharging their responsibility in this regard.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR"S REPORT
AR Gk s

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is made
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

— ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional missions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

—  Obtain and understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
control.

—  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR"S REPORT
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

ST

ATEME NTS (continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or if,
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter of when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Lee Ka Leung, Daniel

Practising Certificate Number PO1220

Hong Kong, 28 June 2018
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND
UTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

4o AAB oL Ty

A AY

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #HZ_-F

H b 2 B U a

37R

PP+ — Ll B | /T

2018 2017
—E-NEF —t&F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Revenue Wz 7 3,093,546 2,878,897
Other income H AW A 8 39,647 29,743
3,133,193 2,908,640
Inventory consumed FERTFE (22,167) (21,871)
Staff costs 8 T A 9 (264,966) (274,407)
Gaming commission ER A (92,526) (91,470)
Broker commission & AE (45,284) (46,955)
Interest expenses for securities brokerage, BHLLL BHERRE
underwriting and placements, REEREBRAFAEE
margin and IPO financing operations MEEBZFERL (264,144) (247,090)
Depreciation e (105,457) (118,001)
Impairment loss on advances to customers MEFBENRESHE
in margin financing RIEEE (430,573) (58,754)
Administrative expenses THHX (125,654) (110,856)
Other operating expenses Hhe g = (138,105) (153,619)
(1,488,876) (1,123,023)
Finance income BhE WA 14,972 8,139
Finance cost BhE AN 10 (30,300) (20,200)
Fair value (loss)/gain on held for BIEEBEHRECAFAE
trading investments (E518) Wzs (12,331) 19,665
Exchange gain PE 5 W 2= 4,579 2,736
Amortisation By 20 (14,132) (14,132)
(37,212) (3,792)
Profit before taxation M T B % A 12 1,607,105 1,781,825
Taxation | 11 (252,744) (289,242)
Profit for the year FRER 1,354,361 1,492,583
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND
UTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

= e N

nV\

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #HZ—-F

H b2 W s

ES

— L = o

2018 2017
—E-—N\E —E—+tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Profit for the year F IR T 1,354,361 1,492 583
Other comprehensive income HEfa2miA 15
Item that will not be reclassified to EBresaHnEEEs
profit or loss: HA -
Surplus/(deficit) on revaluation of Eﬁ%ﬂ%if@&%%’—z
leasehold land and buildings BtR (AL 128,099 (172,486)
ltem that may be reclassified subsequently Hign[geEH ‘*EZ:T Fagd
to profit or loss: HE -
Unrealised (loss)/gain arising from change AHRPERERATEED)
in fair value of available-for-sale EAZKRER
investments (B8), Wz (138) 108
Other comprehensive income/(loss) FREMEEWA(EE)
for the year, net of tax HIBRTHIE 127,961 (172,378)
Total comprehensive income for the year FR2EWAELE 1,482,322 1,320,205
Profit for the year attributable to: L FREF
Owners of the Company RAREEA A 1,348,626 1,484,943
Non-controlling interests FEFEAE i 2 5,735 7,640
1,354,361 1,492,583
Total comprehensive income EEEmB AL :
attributable to:
Owners of the Company ZA/NCIE/ SN 1,476,587 1,312,565
Non-controlling interests ey i 5,735 7,640
1,482,322 1,320,205
Earnings per share (cents per share) SEREF (Z&A) 14
— Basic — %Z’S 7.77 8.55
— Diluted —EE 7.77 8.55
LR
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CUNSULIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e B R &

As at 31 March 2018 “R=—ZE—N\FE=A=+—8H

PARE: 2017
—E-N\F —ZT—tF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET T
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - R MK 18 2,848,724 2,799,525
Statutory deposit for financial SRR ER 2 EEIZS
services business 10,281 7,147
Goodwill BES 19 10,996,683 10,996,683
Intangible assets B EE 20 266,157 280,289
14,121,845 14,083,644
Current assets REEE
Inventories =& 21 2,390 2,322
Available-for-sale investments A EERE 22 410 548
Held for trading investments HBEEEKRE 23 192,805 134,955
Advances to customers in margin MEFPRNREBSME
financing 24 20,582,355 19,468,948
Trade and other receivables B 5 N E U AR SR 25 152,521 151,920
Tax recoverable EEEE 44 97,175 97,231
Cash and bank balances He RIRTTESR
— held on behalf of customers —REPFEAE 26 2,049,601 2,410,359
Cash and bank balances e RIRTTEEH
— general accounts — —RERP 27 395,793 304,762
23,473,050 22,571,045
Current liabilities REEE
Trade and other payables B 5 REMBEIRK 28 2,284,507 2,616,461
Amounts due to shareholders R IE R FIE 29 4,219,911 2,311,911
Loan from a related company KE—KEE B3 30 7,142,999 7,948,861
Subordinated loans ‘IEER 31 700,000 700,000
Bank loans RITERK 32 1,710,000 2,005,834
Tax payable FER TR 65,217 59,623
16,122,634 15,642,690
Net current assets REBEEFE 7,350,416 6,928,355
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBARSE 21,472,261 21,011,999
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CONSULIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

a M IFIAIR

nVT\

As at 31 March 2018 A==

g — O

2018 2017
—E-—N\E —tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Non-current liabilities kRBERE
Bank loans RITEX 32 640,000 1,230,000
Deferred tax liabilities FEEIEAE 35 192,901 180,861
Total non-current liabilities ERBEEATE 832,901 1,410,861
Total liabilities BEAE 16,955,535 17,053,551
Net assets EEFE 20,639,360 19,601,138
Capital and reserves EXK#E
Share capital — ordinary shares REAN — EiEpL 36 272,290 272,290
Share capital — non-redeemable IR 7R — ] &R AT R AR
convertible preference shares B 36 75,000 75,000
Reserves (G 20,276,464 19,233,977
Total equity attributable to owners of QA REEAEGEREZELE
the Company 20,623,754 19,581,267
Non-controlling interests FEIERER 15,606 19,871
Total equity EREE 20,639,360 19,601,138
On behalf of the Board REREER
Chu, Nicholas Yuk-yui Chu Yuet Wah
KRB FTHE
Director Director
EBEE E-
SHESHMERBRA

:é—ﬂiiﬁ
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CUNSE!'I\DALEE% g;ATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31‘March 2018 HE—ZT—NF=A=+—HILFE

Equity attributable to owners of the Company
LNGE 2PN 43

Share

capital —

non-

Share  redeemable
capital —  convertible Share Capital Property  Investment  Exchange Non-
ordinary  preference premium  redemption  Contributed  revaluation  revaluation  fluctuation Retained controlling

shares shares account reserve surplus reserve reserve reserve earnings Total interest
Bx—
FIRE
& — TER ki EXRE nE  REER &i)ﬁiﬂ
EER iR HER i 2 Eftfif i REEA @it FERER  RReE
(Note 38) (Note 38) (Note 38) (Note 38)

HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 { HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000
TR AT BT T FEL TEnL %7 TR T ThT FET

At1 April 2016 R=E-XEMA-A 272,290 75000 11,739,980 466 814 1,544,268 1352 (23,169) 5004991 18615992 12231 18,628,223
Profit for the year FRET - - - - - - - - 1,484,943 1,484,943 7,640 1,492,583
Other comprehensive income ~ £RE 2 EUA

for the year . . . . - (172489) 108 B - (2am) S (2am)

Total comprehensive income  ERZEUAEE

for the year - - - - - (172,486) 108 - 1,484,943 1,312,565 7,640 1,320,205
Realised upon depreciation RIBRBFEREE

based on revalued amountof ~ AATEHER

land and building - - - - - (45,472) - - 45472 - - -
Payment of dividend EHRE - - - - - - - - (347,290) (347,290) - (347,290)
At 31 March 2017 RoB-t&

=A=1-A 272,290 75000 11,739,980 466 814 1,326,310 1,460 (23,169) 6,188,116 19,581,267 19871 19,601,138

At1 April 2017 R-E-tEmA-A 272,290 75,000 11,739,980 466 814 1,326,310 1,460 (23,169) 6,188,116 19,581,267 19,871 19,601,138
Profit for the year ERER - = = = = = - - 1,348,626 1,348,626 5,735 1,354,361
Other comprehensive income £ REHZEUA

for the year = = = = = 128,099 (138) = = 127,961 = 127,961

Total comprehensive income  ER2EKAEE

for the year - - - - - 128,099 (138) - 1,348,626 1,476,587 5,735 1,482,322
Realised upon depreciation BIBRETERSE

based on revalued amountof ~ RTEREH

land and building = = = = = (39,808) = = 39,808 = = =
Payment of dividend KRS - - - = = - - = (434,100) (434,100 (10,000) (444,100)

At 31 March 2018 RZZ-NF
ZB=1-A 212,290 75000 11,739,980 466 814 1,414,601 1,322 (23,169) 7,142,450 20,623,754 15,606 20,639,360
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

/\VT\/\EE \ / ;}zﬁ%%

For the year ended 31 March 2018 HE—T— \FE=A=+—HIIFE

2018 2017
—E2-N\F —E—+F
HK$°000 HK$'000
TEx FHET
Cash flows from operating activities REEXEBABRAERE
Profit before taxation [ 5 A v ) 1,607,105 1,781,825
Adjustments for: MRy EEEHFE -
Finance cost BB 30,300 20,200
Finance income AMERA (14,972) (8,139)
Dividend income AR EMA (176) (265)
Amortisation s 14,132 14,132
Depreciation e 105,457 118,001
Gain on disposal of property, HEME - BE K& W
plant and equipment - (300)
Written-off of property, plant and equipment VI - BB KRR - 2
Impairment loss on advances to customers in AEFANMREBCRHENNES
margin financing, trade and other receivables N HAth U BR 3R 2 R BB 18 430,573 58,754
Bad debts (recovery)/written-off AR (W E), MR (1,005) 1,401
Fair value loss/(gain) on held for BIEEBIREZ A EER
trading investments (Yrzs) 12,331 (19,665)
Operating profit before working capital changes 438 & & # &A1 2 & L% 2,183,745 1,965,946
(Increase)/decrease in inventories FEOEM,FY (68) 405
Increase in held for trading investments BIEEE®REHM (70,181) (369)
Increase in statutory deposit for SRER ZETIRESIEN
financial business (3,134) (1,904)
Increase in advances to customer in margin AEFAMRBLEEULE S
financing and trade and other receivables K H A R U AR FRIE N (1,543,576) (1,039,513)
Decrease/(increase) in cash and bank balances 3¢ RR7T4E68m 2 (3L N)
— held on behalf of customers —REFPESE 360,758 (840,866)
(Decrease)/increase in trade and B o5 N EMEMERR
other payables CRA) /180 (331,954) 864,446
Cash generated from operations REXBERE 595,590 948,145
Income taxes paid ERIETEH (252,522) (489,896)
Net cash from operating activities REEGMSR S F5 343,068 458,249

sy g7



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

2 A A 32 B
%ﬁé?ﬂ%ﬂiuwgiﬁi

For the year ended 31“March 2018 HZE-_ZE—-N\F=A=1+—HIFE

Cash flows from investing activities
Payment for the purchase of property,

REFHRERLRE
XNBEME BELRHBER

2018
—B-N\F

HK$°000
FET

2017

—

HK$'000
TAT

plant and equipment (9,089) (23,497)
Proceeds from disposal of property, TEHEWE  MEMKREE
plant and equipment A - 300
Interest received B U F 8 14,972 8,139
Dividend received B U 8 176 265
Net cash from/(used in) investing activities WEEBAE, (AR FHE 6,059 (14,793)
Cash flows from financing activities METHIERERE
Increase/(decrease) in amounts due to JFEAH AR SR FRIEE hn, (R 4)
shareholders 1,908,000 (10,000)
(Decrease)/increase in loan from KE—RBERAREHK
a related company R A),/# (805,862) 769,623
Repayment of from bank borrowings EERITEE (885,834) (700,166)
Interest paid ERFE (30,300) (20,200)
Dividend paid BT S (434,100) (347,290)
Dividend paid to non-controlling interests BT SRR AR R AR R (10,000) -
Net cash used in financing activities BEEBATRAIRE F5E (258,096) (308,033)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents RekBEeSEBREINFE 91,031 135,423
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year F#3R& MKIREEHEER 304,762 169,339
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year FRI|EG MRS EMBAAE
(note 27) (Ktst27) 395,793 304,762
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BT8R R T 7k

CORPORATE INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated as an exempted company
with limited liability in Bermuda on 10 April 1996 under the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda. The Company’s shares
have been listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) since 23 July 1996. The
address of its registered office and principal place of
business of the Company are Clarendon House, 2 Church
Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda and Suite 2801, 28th Floor,
One International Finance Centre, 1 Harbour View Street,
Central, Hong Kong, respectively.

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective
1 April 2017

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of Deferred
Tax Assets for
Unrealised Losses

Amendments to HKFRS 12,
Disclosure of Interests
in Other Entities

Annual Improvements
to HKFRSs
2014-2016 Cycle

Amendments to HKAS 7 — Disclosure Initiative

The amendments introduce an additional disclosure
that will enable users of financial statements to evaluate
changes in liabilities arising from financing activities.

The adoption of the amendments has led to the
additional disclosure presented in the notes to the cash
flow statement.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A 75 2k I

100

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(continued)

(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective
1 April 2017 (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 12 — Recognition of Deferred
Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses

The amendments relate to the recognition of deferred
tax assets and clarify some of the necessary
considerations, including how to account for deferred
tax assets related to debt instruments measured of fair
value.

The adoption of the amendments has no impact on
these consolidated financial statements as the Group
has no deferred tax assets.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle
— Amendments to HKFRS 12, Disclosure of
Interests in Other Entities

The amendments issued under the annual
improvements process make small, non-urgent
changes to standards where they are currently unclear.
They include amendments to HKFRS 12, Disclosure of
Interests in Other Entities, to clarify that the disclosure
requirements of HKFRS 12, other than the requirements
to disclose summarised financial information, also apply
to an entity’s interests in other entities classified as held
for sale or discontinued operations in accordance with
HKFRS 5, Non-Current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations.

The adoption of the amendments has no impact on
these consolidated financial statements as the Group
has no interests in other entities.

Kingston Financial Group Limited
Annual Report 2018
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BT8R R T 7k

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective
The following new/revised HKFRSs, potentially relevant
to the Group’s financial statements, have been issued,
but are not yet effective and have not been early
adopted by the Group. The Group’s current intention is
to apply these changes on the date they become

effective.

Amendments to HKFRS 2

HKFRS 9
HKFRS 15

Amendments to HKFRS 15

Annual Improvements to

HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23

Amendments to HKFRS 9
HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKFRSs

Classification and Measurement
of Share-Based Payment
Transactions’

Financial Instruments?

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers!

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (Clarifications to
HKFRS 15)"

Amendments to HKFRS 1, First-
time Adoption of Hong Kong
Financial Reporting
Standards’

Foreign Currency Transactions
and Advance Consideration'

Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments?®

Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation?
Leases?

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle?

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

January 2018

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

January 2019
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 765 R 2= P

2 ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective (continuea)
Amendments to HKFRS 2 — Classification and
Measurement of Share-Based Payment Transactions
The amendments provide requirements on the
accounting for the effects of vesting and non-vesting
conditions on the measurement of cash-settled share-
based payments; share-based payment transactions
with a net settlement feature for withholding tax
obligations; and a modification to the terms and
conditions of a share-based payment that changes the
classification of the transaction from cash-settled to
equity-settled.

HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets.
Debt instruments that are held within a business model
whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows (the business model test) and
that have contractual terms that give rise to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding (the contractual cash flow
characteristics test) are generally measured at
amortised cost. Debt instruments that meet the
contractual cash flow characteristics test are measured
at Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income
(“FVTOCI”) if the objective of the entity’s business
model is both to hold and collect the contractual cash
flows and to sell the financial assets. Entities may make
an irrevocable election at initial recognition to measure
equity instruments that are not held for trading at
FVTOCI. All other debt and equity instruments are
measured at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss
(“FVTPL”).

1 02 Kingston Financial Group Limited
Annual Report 2018
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BT8R R T 7k

2 ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective (continuea)
HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments (continued)

HKFRS 9 includes a new expected loss impairment
model for all financial assets not measured at FVTPL
replacing the incurred loss model in HKAS 39 and new
general hedge accounting requirements to allow
entities to better reflect their risk management activities
in financial statements.

HKFRS 9 carries forward the recognition, classification
and measurement requirements for financial liabilities
from HKAS 39, except for financial liabilities designated
at FVTPL, where the amount of change in fair value
attributable to change in credit risk of the liability is
recognised in other comprehensive income unless that
would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch. In
addition, HKFRS 9 retains the requirements in HKAS 39
for derecognition of financial assets and financial
liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 765 R 2= P

2 ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective (continuea)
HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments (continued)

Based on the Group’s financial instruments and risk
management policies as at 31 March 2018, the
directors of the Company anticipate the following
potential impacts on initial application of HKFRS 9:

Classification and measurement:

Investment funds classified as available-for-sale
financial assets carried at fair value. These investment
funds are qualified for designation as measured at
FVTOCI under HKFRS 9 and the Group elects this
option. For these financial assets, the fair value gains or
losses accumulated in the investment revaluation
reserve will no longer be subsequently reclassified to
profit or loss under HKFRS 9, which is different from the
current treatment under HKAS 39. This will affect
amounts recognised in the Group’s profit or loss and
other comprehensive income but will not affect total
comprehensive income.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of the standard may not have a material
impact on the Group’s other financial assets and
liabilities.

Impairment:

The directors of the Company anticipate the application
of the standard may have a material impact on
impairment assessment in respect of the Group’s
financial assets. The expected credit loss model may
result in early provision of credit losses which are not
yet incurred in relation to the Group’s financial assets at
amortised cost. However, it is not practicable to provide
a reasonable estimate of that effect until a detailed
review has been completed.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2 ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective (continuea)
HKFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with
Customers
The new standard establishes a single revenue
recognition framework. The core principle of the
framework is that an entity should recognise revenue to
depict the transfer of promised goods or services to
customers in an amount that reflects the consideration
to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goods and services. HKFRS 15 supersedes
existing revenue recognition guidance including HKAS
18 Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and
related interpretations.

HKFRS 15 requires the application of a 5 steps
approach to revenue recognition:

e Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

e Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the
contract

e Step 3: Determine the transaction price

e Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to each
performance obligation

e Step 5: Recognise revenue when each performance
obligation is satisfied

HKFRS 15 includes specific guidance on particular
revenue related topics that may change the current
approach taken under HKFRS. The standard also
significantly enhances the qualitative and quantitative
disclosures related to revenue.

Amendments to HKFRS 15 — Revenue from
Contracts with Customers (Clarifications to HKFRS
15)

The amendments to HKFRS 15 included clarifications
on identification of performance obligations; application
of principal versus agent; licenses of intellectual
property; and transition requirements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2 ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective (continuea)
Amendments to HKFRS 15 — Revenue from
Contracts with Customers (Clarifications to HKFRS
15) (continued)
The Group has various types of revenue and income.
Interest income forming, a significant component of the
Group’s revenue, is not under the scope of HKFRS 15.
The Group has assessed the impact of HKFRS 15 on
the remaining revenue and does not expect that the
application of the standard will have a significant
impact on recognition or measurement of income from
majority of these services. However, the application of
HKFRS 15 may result in more disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle
— Amendments to HKFRS 1, First-time Adoption of
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards

The amendments issued under the annual
improvements process make small, non-urgent
changes to standards where they are currently unclear.
They include amendments to HKFRS 1, First-time
Adoption of Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards,
removing transition provision exemptions relating to
accounting periods that had already passed and were
therefore no longer applicable.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2 ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective (continuea)
HK(IFRIC)-Int 22 — Foreign Currency Transactions
and Advance Consideration
The Interpretation provides guidance on determining
the date of the transaction for determining an exchange
rate to use for transactions that involve advance
consideration paid or received in a foreign currency
and the recognition of a non-monetary asset or non-
monetary liability. The Interpretations specifies that the
date of the transaction for the purpose of determining
the exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the
related asset, expense or income (or part thereof) is the
date on which the entity initially recognises the non-
monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from
the payment or receipt of advance consideration.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 — Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments

The Interpretation supports the requirements of HKAS
12, Income Taxes, by providing guidance over how to
reflect the effects of uncertainty in accounting for
income taxes. Under the Interpretation, the entity shall
determine whether to consider each uncertain tax
treatment separately or together based on which
approach better predicts the resolution of the
uncertainty. The entity shall also assume the tax
authority will examine amounts that it has a right to
examine and have full knowledge of all related
information when making those examinations. If the
entity determines it is probable that the tax authority will
accept an uncertain tax treatment, then the entity
should measure current and deferred tax in line with its
tax filings. If the entity determines it is not probable,
then the uncertainty in the determination of tax is
reflected using either the “most likely amount” or the
“expected value” approach, whichever better predicts
the resolution of the uncertainty.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 7% R 2= P

2 ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective (continuea)
Amendments to HKFRS 9 — Prepayment Features
with Negative Compensation
The amendments clarify that prepayable financial
assets with negative compensation can be measured
at amortised cost or at fair value through other
comprehensive income if specified conditions are met
— instead of at fair value through profit or loss.

HKFRS 16 — Leases

HKFRS 16, which upon the effective date will supersede
HKAS 17 “Leases” and related interpretations,
introduces a single lessee accounting model and
requires a lessee to recognise assets and liabilities for
all leases with a term of more 12 months, unless the
underlying asset is of low value. Specifically, under
HKFRS 16, a lessee is required to recognise a right-of-
use asset representing its right to use the underlying
leased asset and a lease liability representing its
obligation to make lease payments. Accordingly, a
lessee should recognise depreciation of the right-of use
asset and interest on the lease liability, and also
classifies cash repayments of the lease liability into a
principal portion and an interest portion and presents
them in the statement of cash flows. Also, the right-of-
use asset and the lease liability are initially measured
on a present value basis. The measurement includes
non-cancellable lease payments and also includes
payments to be made in optional periods if the lessee
is reasonably certain to exercise an option to extend
the lease, or to exercise an option to terminate the
lease. This accounting treatment is significantly
different from the lessee accounting for leases that are
classified as operating leases under the predecessor
standard, HKAS 17.

In respect of the lessor accounting, HKFRS 16
substantially carries forward the lessor accounting
requirements in HKAS 17. Accordingly, a lessor
continues to classify its leases as operating leases or
finance leases, and to account for those two types of
leases differently.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BT8R R T 7k

2 ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective (continuea)
HKFRS 16 — Leases (continued)
The Group is in the process of making an assessment
of the potential impact on its consolidated financial
statements. So far, the most significant impact identified
is that the Group will recognize new assets and
liabilities for its operating leases. In addition, the nature
of expenses related to those leases will now change as
HKFRS 16 replaces the straight-line operating lease
expense with a depreciation charge for right-of-use
assets and interest expenses on lease liabilities.

Except for HKFRS 9, HKFRS 15 and HKFRS 16, the
Group is not yet in a position to state whether these
new pronouncements will result in substantial changes
to the Group’s accounting policies and financial
statements.

3 BASIS OF PREPARATION
(a) Statement of compliance
The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable HKFRSs,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations (hereinafter collectively referred to as
the “HKFRSs”) and the disclosure requirement of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements included applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the”Listing Rules”).

Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost basis, except certain
properties and financial instruments, which are
measured at fair values or revalued amounts as
explained in the accounting policies set out in note 4.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A 75 2k I

3

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

(c)

(d)

Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the process
of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity
or areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the consolidated financial statements are
disclosed in note 5.

Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$"), which is the same as the functional
currency of the Company and all values are rounded to
the nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

110

(a)

Business combination and basis of
consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the
financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”). Inter-company transactions
and balances between group companies together with
unrealised profits are eliminated in full in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of impairment on the asset transferred, in
which case the loss is recognised in statement of profit
of loss and other comprehensive income. The results of
subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year
are included in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income from the effective dates of
acquisition or up to the effective dates of disposal, as
appropriate. Where necessary, adjustments are made
to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies in line with those used by other
members of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 765 e 2 Bf 7

4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4 FESTBER®
(continued)
(a) Business combination and basis of (a) XBEHRGEEE®W

consolidation (continued)

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is accounted
for using the acquisition method. The cost of an
acquisition is measured at the aggregate of the
acquisition-date fair value of assets transferred,
liabilities incurred and equity interests issued by the
Group, as the acquirer. The identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed are principally measured at
acquisition date fair value. The Group’s previously held
equity interest in the acquiree is re-measured at
acquisition-date fair value and the resulting gains or
losses are recognised in statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income. The Group may elect, on
a transaction-by-transaction basis, to measure the non-
controlling interest that represent present ownership
interests in the subsidiary either at fair value or at the
proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets. All other non-controlling interests are measured
at fair value unless another measurement basis is
required by HKFRS. Acquisition-related costs incurred
are expensed unless they are incurred in issuing equity
instruments in which case the costs are deducted from

equity.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at acquisition date fair value.
Subsequent adjustments to consideration are
recognised against goodwill only to the extent that they
arise from new information obtained within the
measurement period (a maximum of 12 months from
the acquisition date) about the fair value at the
acquisition date. All other subsequent adjustments to
contingent consideration classified as an asset or a
liability are recognised in statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 ¥k I

4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

112

(a)

Business combination and basis of
consolidation (continued)

Contingent consideration balances arising from
business combinations whose acquisition dates
preceded 1 January 2010 (i.e. the date the Group first
applied HKFRS 3 (2008)) have been accounted for in
accordance with the transition requirements in the
standard. Such balances are not adjusted upon first
application of the standard. Subsequent revisions to
estimates of such consideration are treated as
adjustments to the cost of these business combinations
and are recognised as part of goodwill.

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that do
not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the
Group’s interest and the non-controlling interest are
adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests
in the subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount
by which the non-controlling interest is adjusted and
the fair value of the consideration paid or received is
recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners
of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit
or loss on disposal is calculated as the difference
between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration received and the fair value of any
retained interest and (ii) the previous carrying amount
of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the
subsidiary and any non-controlling interest. Amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income
in relation to the subsidiary are accounted for in the
same manner as would be required if the relevant
assets or liabilities were disposed of.

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-
controlling interests that represent present ownership
interests in the subsidiary is the amount of those
interests at initial recognition plus the non-controlling
interest’s share of subsequent changes in equity. Total
comprehensive income is attributed to non-controlling
interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interest having a deficit balance.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(b) Subsidiaries

(c)

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company is
able to exercise control. The Company controls an
investee if all three of the following elements are
present: power over the investee, exposure, or rights,
to variable returns from the investee, and the ability to
use its power to affect those variable returns. Control is
reassessed whenever facts and circumstances indicate
that there may be a change in any of these elements of
control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment loss, if any. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend
received and receivable.

Gooduwill arising from business
combinations

Goodwill is initially recognised at cost being the excess
of the aggregate of consideration transferred and the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests over
the fair value of identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities acquired.

Where the fair value of identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities exceed the fair value of
consideration paid, the excess is recognised in
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income on the acquisition date, after reassessment.
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B 75 ¥k I

4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(c) Goodwill arising from business

114

combinations (continued)

Goodwill is measured at cost less impairment losses.
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill arising
from an acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant
cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from
the synergies of the acquisition. A cash-generating unit
is the smallest identifiable group of assets that
generates cash inflows that are largely independent of
the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets.
A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment annually, and
whenever there is an indication that the unit may be
impaired.

For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a financial
year, the cash-generating unit to which goodwill has
been allocated is tested for impairment before the end
of that financial year. When the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit is less than the carrying
amount of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to
the unit first, and then to the other assets of the unit pro-
rata on the basis of the carrying amount to each asset
in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is
recognised in statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income and is not reversed in
subsequent periods.

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the value in use of the cash generating
units to which goodwill has been allocated. The value in
use calculation requires the directors to estimate the
future cash flows expected to arise from the cash-
generating unit and a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4

(continued)

(d) Property, plant and equipment

FESTHE
(d) Y% BERRE

The land classified as being held under finance leases
and buildings thereon are stated at valuation less
subsequent accumulated depreciation. Fair value is
determined by an independent firm of qualified property
valuers. Revaluations are performed with sufficient
regularity to ensure that the carrying amount of these
assets does not differ materially from that which would
be determined using fair values at the end of the
reporting period.

Changes arising on the revaluation of leasehold land
and buildings held for own use are generally dealt with
in other comprehensive income and are accumulated
separately in equity in the property revaluation reserve.
The only exceptions are as follows:

(a) when a deficit arises on revaluation, it will be
charged to statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income to the extent that it
exceeds the amount held in the reserve in respect
of that same asset immediately prior to the
revaluation; and

(b) when a surplus arises on revaluation, it will be
credited to statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income to the extent that a deficit
on revaluation in respect of that same asset had
previously been charged to statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income.

Other items of property, plant and equipment are stated
at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses. Historical cost includes expenditure
that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the
items.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 ¥k I

4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(d) Property, plant and equipment (continued)

116

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost or
valuation of items of property, plant and equipment,
less their estimated residual value, if any, using the
straight line method over their estimated useful lives as
follows:

—  Leasehold land classified as held under finance
leases is depreciated over the unexpired
term of lease.

—  Building situated on leasehold land are
depreciated over the shorter of the unexpired
term of lease and their estimated useful lives,
being no more than 50 years after the date
of completion.

—  Leasehold improvement, furniture,
fixture and equipment

—  Motor vehicles 20%—-33%

—  Yacht 10%

10%-50%

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are
charged to statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income during the year in which they
are incurred.

An asset is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if its carrying amount is higher than the asset’s
estimated recoverable amount.

Upon the disposal of property, the relevant portion of
the revaluations reserve realised in respect of previous
valuations is released from the property revaluation
reserve to retained earnings.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment is the difference between the net sale
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant
asset, and is recognised in statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(e) Leasing

(U]

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to lessee. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
and arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised as
an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

The total rentals payable under the operating leases
are recognised in statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the
lease term. Lease incentives received are recognised
as an integrated part of the total rental expenses, over
the term of the lease.

Inventories

Inventories comprise food and beverage, consumable
and other goods of hotel and are stated at the lower of
cost and net realisable value. Cost is calculated using
the first-in, first-out basis. Net realisable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business less the estimated costs necessary to make to
the sales.
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

118

(continued)

(g) Financial instruments

U

Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets at initial
recognition, depending on the purpose for which
the asset was acquired. Financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss are initially measured
at fair value and all other financial assets are
initially measured at fair value plus transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financial assets. Regular way
purchases or sales of financial assets are
recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. A regular way purchase or sale is a
purchase or sale of a financial asset under a
contract whose terms require delivery of the asset
within the time frame established generally by
regulation or convention in the marketplace
concerned.

Loans and receivables

These assets are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. They arise principally
through the provision of goods and services to
customers (trade debtors), and also incorporate
other types of contractual monetary asset.
Subsequent to initial recognition, they are carried
at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any identified impairment losses.

Available-for-sale financial assets

These assets are non-derivative financial assets
that are designated as available-for-sale or are
not included in other categories of financial
assets. Subsequent to initial recognition, these
assets are carried at fair value with changes in
fair value recognised in other comprehensive
income, except for impairment losses and foreign
exchange gains and losses on monetary
instruments, which are recognised in statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(g9) Financial instruments (continued)

U

Financial assets (continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets (continued)

For available-for-sale equity investments that do
not have a quoted market price in an active
market and whose fair value cannot be reliably
measured and derivatives that are linked to and
must be settled by delivery of such unquoted
equity instruments, they are measured at cost less
any identified impairment losses.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
These assets include financial assets held for
trading and financial assets designated upon
initial recognition as at fair value through profit or
loss. Financial assets are classified as held for
trading if they are acquired for the purpose of sale
in the near term.

Financial assets may be designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss if
the following criteria are met: (i) the designation
eliminates or significantly reduces the inconsistent
treatment that would otherwise arise from
measuring the assets or recognising gains or
losses on them on a different basis; (ii) the assets
are part of a group of financial assets which is
managed and its performance evaluated on a fair
value basis according to a documented
management strategy; or (iii) the financial asset
contains an embedded derivative that would need
to be separately recorded.

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair
value, with changes in fair value recognised in
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income in the period in which they arise.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 765 R 2= P

4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4 FESTBER®
(continued)
(g9) Financial instruments (continued) (99 E@MITHEw)
(i) Impairment loss on financial assets (i) ERMEERESSE

The Group assesses, at the end of each reporting AEERSHREFRIHEESHE
period, whether there is any objective evidence EAMEBRERERHEMEED
that financial asset is impaired. Financial asset is HEE - EFERETBEEAR
impaired if there is objective evidence of NAEREEREE —TANZIE
impairment as a result of one or more events that EHEHHARME MABSZE
has occurred after the initial recognition of the HEBReMEE Mt RKRE
asset and that event has an impact on the BB ZTERAAEER
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset AlZemEEHRRE  RESE
that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of EaedE

impairment may include:

1. significant financial difficulty of the debtor; 1. BEEALBEREMBEE
2. a breach of contract, such as a default or 2. ERAH PIRESHE
delinquency in interest or principal RABHARSK

payments;

3. granting concession to a debtor because of 3. HRNEBALIRE K E
debtors’ financial difficulty; MEEFAERER :

4. it becoming probable that the debtor will 4, FEBAREBAUEBEEH
enter bankruptcy or other financial ESGETEMPSEAR -

reorganisation.

1 2“ Kingston Financial Group Limited
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B75 R M ot

4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(g9) Financial instruments (continued)

(ii)

(iif)

Impairment loss on financial assets (continued)
An impairment loss is recognised in statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income
when there is objective evidence that the asset is
impaired, and is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the original effective interest rate.
The carrying amount of financial asset is reduced
through the use of an allowance account. When
any part of financial asset is determined as
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance
account for the relevant financial asset.
Impairment losses are reversed in subsequent
periods when an increase in the asset’s
recoverable amount can be related objectively to
an event occurring after the impairment was
recognised, subject to a restriction that the
carrying amount of the asset at the date the
impairment is reversed does not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.

Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities
depending on the purpose for which the liabilities
were incurred. Financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are initially measured at fair
value and financial liabilities at amortised costs
are initially measured at fair value, net of directly
attributable costs incurred.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost, including
trade and other payables and loans and
borrowings, are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest
method. The related interest expense is
recognised in statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income. Gains or losses are
recognised in statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the amortisation
process.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 ¥k I

4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(g) Financial instruments (continued)

(iv) Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset
or financial liability and of allocating interest
income or interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
or payments through the expected life of the
financial asset or liability, or where appropriate, a
shorter period.

(v) Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs.

(vi) Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset where
the contractual rights to the future cash flows in
relation to the financial asset expire or where the
financial asset has been transferred and the
transfer meets the criteria for derecognition in
accordance with HKAS 39. Financial liabilities are
derecognised when the obligation specified in the
relevant contract is discharged or cancelled or
expires.

(h) Cash and cash equivalents

122

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
on hand, demand deposits with banks and other
financial institutions, and short-term, highly liquid
investments that are ready convertible into known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been
within three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank
overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management are also
included as a component of cash and cash equivalents
for the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B75 R M ot

4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(i)

@)

Impairment of non-financial assets other
than goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment
intangible assets, and investments in subsidiaries to
determine whether there is any indication that these
assets have suffered an impairment loss or an
impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists
or may have decreased. If the recoverable amount (i.e.
the greater of the fair value less costs to sell and value
in use) of a non-financial asset is estimated to be less
than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately. Where an impairment loss subsequently
reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased
to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, to the
extent that the increased carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment
loss is recognised as income immediately.

Employee benefits

(a) Short term employee benefits in the form of
leave
Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlement to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

1)

124

Employee benefits (continued)

(b)

(c)

Retirement benefit costs

The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefits
scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for all its
employees in Hong Kong. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic
salaries and are charged to statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of
the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme
are held separately from those of the company in
an independently-administered fund. The Group’s
employer contributions vest fully with the
employees when contributed into the MPF
Scheme. The company’s contributions to the MPF
Scheme are recognised as an expense in
statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as incurred.

For all its employees in Macau, fixed contributions
are made based on the employment term and are
charged to profit and loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the
retirement security system.

Obligations for contributions to social security
fund are recognised as an expense in statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
as incurred.

Share-based payments

Employees (including directors) of the Group
receive remuneration in the form of share-based
payment transactions, whereby employees render
services as consideration for equity instruments.
Details regarding the share-based payments are
set out in note 34.

Kingston Financial Group Limited
Annual Report 2018

4

FESTHER
() EETEFN @@
(b) EARBRAA

(c)

AREBRBERHELTE B
PIREREERBEERERETE
Rtz B RINER
sHE(TeEesraEll) - fauzE
BEARFTENLLFN - ELRR
EaeiEe st 8RN B8
REMEERERNRG - 8ES
AR EERARREED R
B ABUEREIESER K
SEZBETHFNEBRES TS
FHEREGNEEGREEE - N
RA|ARTRE T B HHRRNEE
FREZMEMEEKRER X

ARRREZERRFIEBREM
R R - WA BAH
FARIR IR R IR IR Bl & 2 45 Bl P A
TRER BBz -

AtEREESHRZET R
EERR B MEMEERER
XHH

URAD REM 2
AEBEREE (BRESR) URN R
EMIN 2R ZHAERHE -
R - B BIR AR AR BN
TR - BRI AERZ M
FHIBEENMIEES4
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(k)

4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
(i) Employee benefits (continued)

(d) Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised on the earlier
of when the Group can no longer withdraw the
offer of those benefits and when the Group
recognises restructuring costs involving the
payment of termination benefits.

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the
success of the Group’s operations. Share-based
payments to employees and others providing similar
services are measured at the fair value of the equity
instruments at the grant date. Share-based payments
to parties other than employees (and those providing
similar services) are measured at the fair value of the
goods or services received, unless that fair value
cannot be estimated reliably. If the Group cannot
estimate reliably the fair value of the goods or services
received, the Group is required to measure the fair
value by reference to the fair value of the equity
instruments granted.

For share options granted under the Scheme, the fair
value of the services rendered in exchange for the
grant of the options is recognised as an expense and
credited to a share-based payment reserve under
equity. The total amount to be expensed over the
vesting period is determined by reference to the fair
value of the options granted at the grant date. At the
end of the reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
become exercisable. It recognises the impact of the
revision of the original estimates, if any, in statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, and a
corresponding adjustment to the share-based payment
reserve over the remaining vesting period.
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(k) Share-based payments (continued)

126

U]

At the time when the share options are exercised, the
amount previously recognised in the share-based
payment reserve will be transferred to share premium.
The proceeds received net of any direct attributable
transaction costs are credited to share capital (nominal
value) and share premium. When the share options are
forfeited or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the
amount previously recognised in the share-based
payment reserve will be released directly to retained
earnings.

Income tax
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from net profit as
reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income because it excludes
items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years, and it further excludes profit
or loss items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax
rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on the temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities in the financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences, and
deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities
are not recognised if the temporary difference arises
from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction
that affects neither the tax profit nor the accounting
profit.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

U]

(m)

Income tax (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period when the liability is
settled or the asset is realised. Deferred tax is charged
or credited to the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, except when it relates to items
that are recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case, the deferred tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity respectively.

Provisions and contingent liabilities
Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group or the Company has
a legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a
past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value of
money is material, provisions are stated at the present
value of the expenditure to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(n) Revenue recognition

128

Brokerage commission is recognised on a trade date
basis when the relevant transactions are executed.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a
time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding
and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the
rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial asset
to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Underwriting fee and placing fee are recognised as
income in accordance with the terms of the
underwriting and placing agreements or deal mandate
when the relevant significant acts have been
completed.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when
the shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been
established.

Handling fee income is recognised when the relevant
transactions have been arranged or the relevant
services have been rendered.

Revenue arising from service provided for gaming
operations in mass market halls, electronic gaming
halls and VIP rooms is recognised when the relevant
services have been rendered and the Group is entitled
to the share of gross win and gross loss in respect of
the operating performance from the gaming operator.

Revenue from hotel accommodation are recognised
upon the provision of the accommodation services.

Revenue from food and beverage sales and other
ancillary services are recognised upon the provision of
goods and services.

Kingston Financial Group Limited
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

/ﬁﬁ&#&% lzﬁ 33

4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(n)

(o)

(p)

Revenue recognition (continued)
Service income is recognised when the services are
provided.

Rental income under operating leases is recognised on
a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis on the
principal outstanding at the applicable interest rate.

Foreign currencies

Transactions entered into by the group entities in
currencies other than the currency of the primary
economic environment in which they operate (the
“functional currency”) are recorded at the rates ruling
when the transactions occur. Foreign currency
monetary assets and liabilities are translated at the
rates ruling at the end of reporting period. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.
Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the translation of monetary
items, are recognised in statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income in the period in which
they arise.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs attributable directly to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets which
require a substantial period of time to be ready for their
intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost
of those assets. Income earned on temporary
investments of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on those assets is deducted from
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs
are recognised in statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income in the period in which they are
incurred.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(q) Related parties
(i) A person or a close member of that person’s
family is related to the Group if that person:

(a)

(b)

(c)

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of key management personnel
of the Group or the Company’s parent.

(i) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions apply:

(a)

The entity and the Group are members of
the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of the employees of the
Group or an entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (i).

1 3“ Kingston Financial Group Limited
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(q) Related parties (continuea)

(r)

(i)

(continued)

(g) A person identified in (i)(a) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
key management personnel of the entity (or
of a parent of the entity).

(h) The entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the
entity and include:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

that person’s children and spouse or domestic
partner;

children of that person’s spouse or domestic
partner; and

dependents of that person or that person’s
spouse or domestic partner.

Intangible assets

(M)

Acquired intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are initially
recognised at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is fair value at
the date of acquisition. Subsequently, intangible
assets with finite useful lives are carried at cost
less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses.

Amortisation is provided on a straight-line basis
over their useful lives as follows. Intangible assets
with indefinite useful lives are carried at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. The
amortisation expense is recognised in profit or
loss. The estimated useful live states as follows:

Mining licenses 24 years
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 = M A

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(r) Intangible assets (continuea)

(ii) Impairment

Intangible assets with finite lives are tested for
impairment when there is an indication that an
asset may be impaired (see the accounting
policies in respect of impairment of non-financial
assets other than goodwill above).

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY AND CRITICAL
ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS

The preparation of these consolidated financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenue,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities, at the reporting date. However,
uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the
future. Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated
and are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to
be reasonable under the circumstances. Key sources of
estimation uncertainty are as follows:

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

In accordance with HKAS 16, the Group estimates the useful
lives of property, plant and equipment in order to determine
the amount of depreciation expenses to be recorded. The
useful lives are estimated at the time the asset is acquired
based on historical experience, the expected usage, wear
and tear of the assets, as well as technical obsolescence
arising from changes in the market demands or service
output of the assets. The Group also performs annual reviews
on whether the assumptions made on useful lives continue to
be valid.

Kingston Financial Group Limited
Annual Report 2018

4

FEEHER @

( BREE®
(i) HE
ERAIERFH B EETZ
& E IR AT BE R (B B SR T TR
BAR(R EXBE@EBEAIINZ
EEMEERMBE I EFBER) o

EHFREREZEERRRE
Ze

HRAMBHRRZEBREREEEFLRAY
EmEmilas  BX  BERBBURMAE
BRABBEREHREARAZ SR HIE - K&t
KB - A - ZEBRJERMAEFFETEE
HE: AJEESHFUIFEEENABARRE
ZIREEIEHEAFE - b5t RHE 58
A REENBELEREEMRAE  BER
BRBATEHRKEHZAERY - ARG
AT RERR 2 EERRHINNT

V¥ BERRBZIERFH
BIEEB G ERNE16S  AEBED
X BEMRBZAERAEH  UEBEHKT
ANRZTER R RBABER A%
BREEELSR  BHAR  BREREE U
EEMatRAmSHRLRNEEERAEMB
B USRI EREY - ARE TS EF
fEARE - AHIER & T B F B ER R 2
BINARE



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BT8R R T 7k

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY AND CRITICAL
ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS (continued)

Useful lives of intangible assets

In accordance with HKAS 38, the Group estimates the useful
lives of intangible assets in order to determine the amount of
amortisation expenses to be recorded. The useful lives are
estimated at the time the asset is acquired/transferred based
on the lease term. The Group also performs annual reviews
on whether any change in local regulation to reflect useful
lives.

Estimated fair value of leasehold properties

The fair value of each hotel property individually is
determined at the end of the reporting period by independent
professional valuers using the income approach whereby the
incomes derived from the hotel and casino operations with
regard to past trading accounts and the rental income
derived from existing tenancies on the property interest are
capitalised at an appropriate rate of return with due
allowance for outgoings and expenses wherever applicable.
This methodology is based upon estimates of future results
and a set of assumptions as to income and expenses of the
property and future economic conditions. The fair value of
each leasehold property reflects, among other things, rental
income from current leases and assumptions about rental
income from future leases in the light of current market
conditions. The fair value also reflects, on a similar basis, any
cash outflows that could be expected in respect of the

property.

Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating units to
which goodwill has been allocated. The value in use
calculation requires the directors to estimate the future cash
flows expected to arise from the cash-generating unit and a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 765 R 2= P

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY AND CRITICAL
ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS (continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets other than
goodwill

If a triggering event occurs indicating that the carrying
amount of an asset may not be recoverable, an assessment
of the carrying amount of that asset will be performed.
Triggering events include significant adverse changes in the
market value of an asset, changes in the business or
regulatory environment, or certain legal events. The
interpretation of such events requires judgement from
management with respect to whether such an event has
occurred.

Upon the occurrence of triggering events, the carrying
amounts of non-financial assets are reviewed to assess
whether their recoverable amounts have declined below their
carrying amounts. The recoverable amount is the present
value of estimated net future cash flows which the Group
expects to generate from the future use of the asset, plus
residual value of the asset on disposal. Where the
recoverable amount of non-financial assets is less than its
carrying value, an impairment loss is recognised to write the
assets down to its recoverable amount.

The impairment assessment is performed based on the
discounted cash flow analysis. This analysis relies on factors
such as forecast of future performance and long-term growth
rates and the selection of discount rates. If these forecast
and assumptions prove to be inaccurate or circumstances
change, further write-down or reversal of the write-down of
the carrying value of the non-financial assets may be
required.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BT8R R T 7k

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY AND CRITICAL
ACCOUNT'NG JUDGEMENTS (continued)
Impairment loss on advances to customers in
margin financing, trade and other receivables
Management regularly reviews the recoverability of advances
to customers in margin financing, trade and other
receivables. Appropriate impairment for estimated
irrecoverable amounts is recognised in profit and loss when
there is objective evidence that the amounts is not
recoverable.

In determining whether allowance for bad and doubtful debts
is required, the Group takes into consideration the aged
status and likelihood of collection. Specific allowance is only
made for receivables that are unlikely to be collected and is
recognised based on the estimation of the future cash flow
expected to receive and a suitable discounted rate in order
to calculate the present value.

Income taxes and deferred taxes

The Group is subject to taxation in the Macau and Hong
Kong. Significant judgement is required in determining the
amount of the provision for taxation and the timing of the
related payments. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is
uncertain during the ordinary course of business. Where the
final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such difference will have
impact on the income tax and/or deferred tax provisions in
the period in which such determination is made.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 765 R 2= P

6 SEGMENTAL INFORMATION
For management purposes, the Group is organised into
business units based on their services, and has seven (31
March 2017: seven) reporting operating segments as follows:

Financial services segments:

— Securities brokerage, underwriting and placements
segment is the provision of brokerage, underwriting
and placements services for dealings in securities on
recognised stock exchanges.

— Margin and initial public offering (“IPO”) financing
segment is the provision of credits in these
transactions.

—  Other financial services mainly include provision of
corporate finance advisory services, futures brokerage
and asset management.

Hotel and gaming segments:

— Hotel ownership and management segment is the
operation of hotels and provision of hotel management
services.

— Food and beverage segment is the operation of
restaurants in hotels.

— Gaming segment is the provision of services to casinos
run by the license holder Sociedade de Jogos de
Macau, S.A (“SJM”) in hotels.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 765 e 2 Bf 7

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (continuea)

Securities investment segment:

— Securities investment segment is the trading of listed
securities.

No operating segments have been aggregated to form the
above reportable operating segments.

Management monitors the operating results of its business
units separately for the purpose of making decisions about
resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment
performance is evaluated based on a measure of adjusted
earnings before interest, income tax, depreciation and
amortisation (adjusted EBITDA). Interest income and
expenditure and certain income and expenses (including
depreciation, amortisation, finance cost, taxation, gain on
disposal of property, plant and equipment and exchange
gain) are not included in the result of each operating
segment that is reviewed by the management. Other
information provided, except as noted below, to the
management is measured in a manner consistent with that in
the consolidated financial statements.

Revenue between segments are carried out on terms
equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length transactions.
The revenue from external customers reported to the
management is measured in a manner consistent with that in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 = M A

6 SEGMENTAL |NFORMAT|ON (continued) 6 ﬁiﬁﬁ*ﬂ‘w
Operating segments ES Sk
The following tables represent segment information of the TREVARNEBREEBEBIRH AEES B
Group provided to the Group’s management for the year REE-_ZE—\FE_E—+F=A=+—
ended 31 March 2018 and 2017, respectively. BIEFEzDMEER -
For the year ended 31 March 2018 BE-—ZT—-NFZA=+—HILEE

Securities
brokerage, Hotel
underwriting Margin Other Financial  ownership
and and IPO financial services and Food and Securities
placements financing services business management beverage Gaming  investment

oy (O REER
BER HRRM AR SREH BERER RRR
RE RERE e 2% REE et B #E5RE At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEn T TiEn T T TiEn T TiEgn T

Segment Revenue AEhE

External customers NbEPR 360,544 1,964,949 85,870 2,411,363 181,423 27,232 473,528 - 3,093,546
Inter-segment HER 16 - 990 1,006 55,438 - 8,732 - 65,176
360,560 1,964,949 86,860 2,412,369 236,861 27,232 482,260 - 3,158,722

Adjusted EBITDA ERERAR - FEH
REREHAER 335,222 1,171,888 66,095 1,573,205 119,763 (10,198) 184,824 (12,140) 1,855,454
Segment Assets PEEE 33,919,569 2,372,290 353,074 451,895 192,805 37,289,633
Capital expenditure -] 270 6,239 935 1,645 - 9,089
Segment Liabilities FEEE 12,710,352 212,618 11,990 52,804 - 12,987,764
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6 SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (continued) 6 DEER
Operating segments (continued) ES Sk 1C))
For the year ended 31 March 2017 Bz_E—tFE=F=+—HIFE

Securities
brokerage, Hotel
underwriting Margin Other Financial ownership
and and IPO financial services and Food and Securities
placements financing services business  management beverage Gaming investment

2

& RERE % 3% & t
HK$ 000 ! HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK§ 000

BT T

Segment Revenue SRUE

External customers HNERE 293,920 1,879,222 32,967 2,206,109 152,968 21,125 492,095 - 2,878,897
Inter-segment il 32 - 1,200 1,232 57,433 - 9,264 - 67,929
293,952 1,879,222 34,167 2,207,341 210,401 21,125 501,359 - 2,946,826

Adjusted EBITDA LARKAIS - AR
TERBSEMER 269,720 1,449,936 11,927 1,731,583 98,219 (10,682) 185,393 19,906 2,024,419
Segment Assets PEEE 33,100,776 2,183,507 392,231 516,846 134,955 36,328,315
Capital expenditure BEAYH 616 13,482 2452 6,947 - 23,497
Segment Liabilities PEEE 14,774,163 198,623 10,313 40,983 - 15,024,082
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A 75 2k I

6 SEGMENTAL |NFORMAT|ON (continued) 6

Operating segments (continued)

Reconciliations of segment revenues, adjusted EBITDA,

assets and liabilities

DEER @
ES Sk 1))
SRS KFABKRTFE FISH - 78
REBEHARR  BEEREEBEZHE

2018 2017
—ZE-N\F —E—tF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Segment revenue ok 3,158,722 2,946,826
Elimination of inter-segment revenue B b lnl s (65,176) (67,929)
Consolidated revenue mEe 3,093,546 2,878,897
Adjusted EBITDA ERBKFIE - FTER -
EREHAZT 1,855,454 2,024,419
Other income =N 14,085 1,569
Interest income F B YA 686 362
Exchange gain P& 5, W = 4,579 2,736
Corporate staff costs NRIB TA (30,296) (30,251)
Corporate overhead NaElEERX (87,514) (64,975)
Depreciation e (105,457) (118,001)
Amortisation B4 (14,132) (14,132)
Gain on disposal of property, LEYE - BB REE
plant and equipment W - 300
Written-off of property, plant and equipment 42 - B &R &R - 2
Finance cost BhE R AN (30,300) (20,200)
Taxation BIE (252,744) (289,242)
Profit for the year £ R REF 1,354,361 1,492,583
Segment assets DHEEE 37,289,633 36,328,315
Intangible assets mEEE 266,157 280,289
Available-for-sale investments Al ERE 410 548
Unallocated corporate assets OB AREE 38,695 45,537
Total assets EEH#E 37,594,895 36,654,689
Segment liabilities PEEE 12,987,764 15,024,082
Amounts due to shareholders FERTRR R SRIA 3,929,911 2,021,911
Unallocated corporate liabilities N /NCIN=E = 37,860 7,558
Total liabilities EERE 16,955,535 17,053,551

1 4” Kingston Financial Group Limited
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6 SEGMENTAL |NFORMAT|ON (continued) 6
Operating segments (continued)
Reconciliations of segment revenues, adjusted EBITDA,
assets and liabilities (continued)
For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and
allocating resources between segments:

° all assets are allocated to reportable segments other
than intangible assets, available-for-sale investments
and assets used jointly by reportable segments.

° all liabilities are allocated to reportable segments other
than amounts due to shareholders and liabilities for
which reportable segments are jointly liable.

Geographical segment information

The Group’s financial services are located in Hong Kong and
the other operations are mainly located in Macau of The
People’s Republic of China (“PRC”).

The Group’s non-current assets by geographical location of
the assets are detailed below:

%ﬁ ﬁﬁt

DR - KHBKRFFE - IEHR - T8
RBENARR  BEREEIHER@)
RERPBERARIRERESENE

c REFEE THRUERERZES
BHAEAZEEIN  FEEAEEH
RE2HHME -

]}

o BREMNERFERZHRDEHLRAE

A FEREESRELHS
-
BESERN

AREE 2 RRBLNEEL - MEAMEZR
TRaRPEARLME (THE )R -

AEEERDEEREEMTERE DB ZFF
EUNNE

2018 2017

—E-NF —E—tF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FHBT

Hong Kong & 10,998,772 11,001,822
Macau SR PY 2,846,635 2,794,386
Canada mex 266,157 280,289
Total non-current assets (Note) ERBEELE (M) 14,111,564 14,076,497

Note: Non-current assets exclude statutory deposit for financial
services business.

Wist ERBEETEELBRBEFEEZEER

TR TR 1M
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6 SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (continued) 6

Operating segments (continued)
Information about major customers

Revenue from customers of corresponding years contributing
over 10% of total revenue of the Group are as follows:

SJM (Note)

ES k)
FEERFAN

B 10% 2 BRI

2018
—EB-N\F

HK$°000
FERT

SBIE (K aE) 473,528

HEFEARBER 2B h AR E A

2017
—E—+tF
HK$'000
FHBT

492,095

Note: Revenue from gaming segment

7 REVENUE

Bt - KEIEFE S M
7 WEH

2018
—E-—N\F

HK$°000
FET

2017
—ET—+F
HK$'000
T

Financial services business SRR ES
— securities brokerage, underwriting — BHERL  BHEEEE
and placements 360,544 293,920
— margin and IPO financing — REE MR LARAEERE 1,964,949 1,879,222
— other financial services — HAth & BhAR TS 85,870 32,967
Hotels and gaming business BIE RER R
— room rental —ZEHEe 168,695 141,067
— food and beverage — B R 27,232 27,725
— gaming revenue — ERE 473,528 492,095
— other rental income — HaHES WA 12,728 11,901
3,093,546 2,878,897

1 42 Kingston Financial Group Limited
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BTSRRI ot

8 OTHER INCOME

8 HflA

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—+F

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET THIT

Handling charge FEE 24,360 24,927

Dividend income s BA 176 265

Bad debts recovery W [B] £2 B 1,005 35

Management fee income EEBWA 60 240
Gain on disposal of property, LEYE - BEK

plant and equipment BBz W - 300

Compensation income HERKA 9,774 -

Sundry income FEIEULA 4,272 3,976

39,647 29,743

9 STAFF COSTS

Staff costs (including directors’
remuneration)

9 BIA

2018
—E-N\F

HK$°000
FET

BTIRA(BRESEHE)

2017

—E—+F

HK$'000
THIT

— salaries, wages and other benefits — He  TERHEHMEFR 263,580 272,999
— contributions to defined contribution — TEEHFURIRE IR

retirement plan 1,386 1,408

Total staff costs 8 TR ARAR%E 264,966 274,407

10 FINANCE COST

Interest on amount due to a shareholder

10 AE N

2018
—s-Nn&

HK$°000
FRT

R — BB ERRIBZF A 30,300

2017

—T—+F

HK$'000
TAT

20,200

EHNELREBFR QA
“E-N\FER

143



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A 75 2k I

11 TAXATION 11 H18
PLRE: 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET T
Current tax: BIHARRIE -

Hong Kong profits tax BEFEH 258,027 288,353
Macau complementary tax RFIPTSH R 2,450 354

(Over)/under provision in respect BEFE (RERE) BET R
of prior years (2,305) 629
Deferred tax EERITE (5,428) (94)
252,744 289,242

144

(a)

(b)

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided for the year
ended 31 March 2018 at a rate of 16.5% (2017: 16.5%).

Macau Complementary Tax has been provided for the
year ended 31 March 2018 at a rate of 12%
(2017:12%). Two Group’s wholly owned subsidiaries,
Good Start Group Limited and Target All Investments
Limited received tax notices issued by Macau Financial
Services Bureau dated 18 May 2016 and 24 October
2016 respectively, assessing Good Start Group
Limited’s Macau Complementary Tax payable for the
year of assessment 2011 and 2012 to be approximately
HK$24,400,000 and HK$25,400,000 respectively, and
Target All Investments Limited’s Macau Complementary
Tax payable for the year of assessment 2013 and 2014
to be approximately HK$3,800,000 and HK$6,300,000
respectively. No respective tax provision has been
made for previous and current years. The tax payment
was included in tax recoverable, the details are in
stated note 44 contingent liabilities.

Income tax arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at
the rates prevailing in respective jurisdictions.

Kingston Financial Group Limited
Annual Report 2018

(a)

(b)

2T N\FE=ZA=F+—BHIFE "
BEEFNEHEEMRE165% (22—
F 1 16.5%) FT IR -

2T N\F=ZA=t+—HLFE"
RS HAREERME12% (=
—HF 12%)FHREE - AREMR
2 & i B 2 BGood Start Group
Limited & EHHEGR A A0 B E
BV BRBEHBHA-_T—RF
AR+ NHEZE—XR"F+A=-+H
Az MBEmE - 5 TGood Start
Group Limited A —ZE ——F R -
—ZERBFECEMBRMFBERT
i o Bl 4 £&24,400,000% T K
25,400,000 70 U RFEEHEE
BRARNVR-ZE—=ZFER_ZT—NF
AMEE 2 EMRPITEHE TR D B
#7/3,800,0007% 7T £2.6,300,000/8 7T °
AREBITERBAEFERAFEE
BEBIERE MRS ATRE R
1B HEEA M4 RAEE -

W E R R B 2 SRR
RUEIES 2 BATH A -
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11 TAXATION (continued) 11 ﬁIE (&)
(d) The taxation for the year can be reconciled to the profit (d) iﬁqﬁlﬁjgﬁgﬁ?g\%@#&ﬁ{mi\ﬁuy
before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit R ANBBANS NSRS

or loss and other comprehensive income as follows:

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—F

HK$’000 HK$'000

Profit before taxation

FRET THET

B 75 AT A 1,607,105 1,781,825

Tax calculated at domestic tax rate

AT R 16.5% T &

of 16.5% 2| 265,172 294,001
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries REMBEERES

operating in other jurisdictions MEARBETR 2B (10,102) (8,659)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses AR A S 2 B 2 54,934 72,769
Tax effect of non-taxable income BARBWRAZ HIFE (55,097) (68,194)
Deferred tax assets not recognised AERBELERIBEEE 447 4
(Over)/under provision in prior years BEFE (RERE)

BIETE (2,305) 629

Others Hib (305) (1,308)
Taxation for the year FRHIE 252,744 289,242

12 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION
Profit before taxation has been arrived at after charging the BB RDEAM SR THIER -
following:

12 BRFADER

2018 2017
—2-N\FE —Tt%F

HK$°000 HK$'000
FHT TR

Auditor’s remuneration
Marketing, advertising and

promotion expenses

Operating lease charges

Z AN BN & 2,290 2,200
g BEERHERY

80,259 92,819

waHEle 30,987 30,490

%%J%A:ﬁizlﬁgégi 145



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 = M A

13 DIVIDEND

No interim dividend was declared for the six months ended
30 September 2017 and 2016.

13

The Board has recommended the payment of final dividend
of HK2 cents per share for the year ended 31 March 2018
(2017: HK2.5 cents per share).

EARNINGS PER SHARE

14 14

Hn/%\

BESRHEE T —+FR-_ZT—RFNHA
E—T—EJJ:/\,f.H ZEP/HEHX/%\ °
EEREIMNBE T N\F=ZA="1— EI

IFFEIRN KRR EGR2BI(ZF—
F o GR2.58) -

BREF

Basic earnings per share FRYEREF 7.77 8.55
Diluted earnings per share TS A 7.77 8.55
(a) Basic earnings per share (a) BREXRER
The earnings and weighted average number of ordinary FEERERBRER BT RE
shares used in the calculation of basic earnings per AR ANFEFHE T

share are as follows:

2018 2017
—E-NE —E—tF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHIT
Profit for the purpose of basic earnings STEERELRERNZ
per share by 1,348,626 1,484,943

Weighted average number of ordinary shares 3@ A% H1#E F £ 13,614,480,666 13,614,480,666
Weighted average number of non-redeemable 7~ ] & [a] 7] #2 f& A8 5 IR

convertible preference shares A1 £ 3,750,000,000  3,750,000,000
Weighted average number of shares for the SAEBRERRBRZ KRG

purpose of basic earnings per share NS5 £L 17,364,480,666  17,364,480,666

Kingston Financial Group Limited
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7 1% #&i‘% Bﬁ R

14 EARN'NGS PER SHARE (continued) 14 Hﬁn@.*u%
(b) Diluted earnings per share (b) EREERER
Diluted earnings per share is equal to the basic HREBEE S NER_T—+LF=
earnings per share as there were no dilutive potential A=+ —BHILFRITEDETELH
ordinary shares in issue during the year ended 31 BTRER WEREEARTEGRE
March 2018 and 2017. RENEE
15 OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 15 HtZ2EWA

2018 2017
—E-N\F S
Before tax Tax Aftertax Before tax Tax After tax

B BB B#& gl #IB i
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
TExn TRz FEx  TEr  TAT  TER

Surplus/(deficit) on revaluation of ~ ERFELIHREFT

leasehold land and buildings &8/ (B4) 145567  (17,468) 128,099  (196,006) 23520  (172,486)
Unrealised (loss)/gain arising from  A[fE HERE A FEE

change in fair value of EECRER

available-for-sale investments (B518) izt (138) - (138) 108 - 108
Other comprehensive income Hip2EBA 145,429  (17,468) 127,961  (195898) 23520  (172,378)

16 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 16 EEM<

An analysis of remuneration paid and payable to directors of HE - N\EER-_FT—+EFE=A=+—H
the Company for the year ended 31 March 2018 and 2017 IFE  CNEREMEAAREZEEZME T
and is set as follows: PO

Salaries,
allowances Discretionary  Retirement
Directors’  and benefits bonus scheme 2018
fee in kind payment  contribution Total

A Rfsfea BU:E  —F-0F

Eshe RENNG BES H &%
HK$’000 GLE HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TERL TER TERL

Executive directors HTES

Mr. Chu, Nicholas Yuk-yui FARREE - 15,091 15,000 12 30,103
Mrs. Chu Yuet Wah FRELL - 22,891 30,000 18 52,909
Mr. Chu, Kingston Chun Ho REERE - 3,468 1,102 53 4,623
Mr. Ho Chi Ho EREE - 2,538 1,680 18 4,236

Independent non-executive directors BIFHTES
Dr. Wong Yun Kuen FEEEL 240 . - . 240
Mr. Lau Man Tak BER A 240 - - - 240
Ms. Lo, Miu Sheung Betty* BYELL 240 - - - 240
720 43,988 47,782 101 92,591

eFZepmERMAERA
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16 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued) 16 EEME )

Salaries,
allowances  Discretionary Retirement
Directors” and benefits in bonus scheme 2017
fee ' payment  contribution Total
A BiEA BIREE ZEtF

#5088  RED 1% #3 At
HK$'000 ’ HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
57 BT FaR TER FER

Executive directors HiTES
Mr. Chu, Nicholas Yuk-yui KABLE - 15,052 15,000 18 30,070
Mrs. Chu Yuet Wah ZRENL - 22,852 40,000 18 62,870
Mr. Chu, Kingston Chun Ho REERE - 3,341 752 50 4,143
Mr. Ho Chi Ho fEREE - 2,3% 1872 18 4,286
Independent non-executive directors BUFHTES
Dr. Wong Yun Kuen EHEET 240 - - - 240
Mr. Lau Man Tak BE st 240 _ _ _ 240
Mr. Yu Peter Pak Yan* KpCEE" 100 - - - 100
Ms. Lo, Miu Sheung Betty* EELL 140 - - - 140
720 43,641 57,624 104 102,089
* Mr. Yu Peter Pak Yan retired on 1 September 2016 and Ms. * R EEOR = E—NENH—HIEF -
Lo, Miu Sheung Betty was appointed on the same effective T 1 2 1 R B H E (L A 7 IEH,
date to replace his position as an Independent non-executive TTEHUEERECESE -
director.

1 48 Kingston Financial Group Limited
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17 INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST 17 BREHFAL
EMOLUMENTS
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, 3 (2017: IEGEmHALTH =ZB(ZE—+F: N0
4) are directors whose emoluments are disclosed in note 16. H)BREER FEZHEERME163E -
The emoluments in respect of the remaining 2 (2017: 1) ERf—Z(ZT—+tF: —B)mEeHALTZ
highest paid individuals are as follows: MEmT -
PLRE: 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Salaries and other emoluments e REME S 15,311 11,258
Retirement scheme contributions RIRET S 36 18
15,347 11,276
The emolument of the above individual was within the FiAZZBEN FATEHE :

following band:

2018 2017

—E-NF —T—tF

Number of Number of

person person

AEK

Nil to HK$10,000,000 Z % 10,000,000/8 7T 2 -

HK$10,000,001 to HK$15,000,000 10,000,001 % 7T £ 15,000,000 # 7T - 1

No emoluments were paid or payable to the above highest HE2-T—\Frh_E—+F=A=+—H

paid individual as an inducement to join the Group or as WFE o BER s ESEH ATk EA

compensation for loss of office during the year ended 31 e EARSENBEAER 2 BRI BERHE
March 2018 and 2017. 18 -
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18 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

18 % -

R =R R

Leasehold Leasehold
land and improvement,
buildings furniture,
held for fixture and Motor
own use equipment vehicles Yacht
BEERZ HENE
HEt #£5. ﬁfﬂ 0 . ‘
REF HERRE AE e
HK$'000 HK$_'OOO HK$'000 HK$'000
AL TEL FAL THL
Cost or valuation XA (HE
At 1 April 2016 RZE-"ENA—H 3,037,620 392,184 4,752 25,730 3,460,286
Additions NE - 22393 1,104 - 23,497
Disposal k= - - (415) - (415)
Written-off MR - () (336) - (341)
Adjustment on revaluation BHAR (286,030) - - - (286,030)
At 31 March 2017 RZB—+F=A=+—H 2,751,590 414572 5,105 25,730 3,196,997
Representing: RE:
Cost A - 414572 5,105 25,730 445 407
At 2017 valuation EZE—tFhE 2,751,590 - - - 2,751,590
2,751,590 414572 5,105 25,730 3,196,997
At 1 April 2017 RZE—+EMA—H 2,751,590 414572 5,105 25,730 3,196,997
Additions NE - 9,055 34 - 9,089
Written-off ek - (34) - - (34)
Adjustment on revaluation EhHE 61,530 - - = 61,530
At 31 March 2018 RZE-\F=A=1—H 2,813,120 423,593 5,139 25,730 3,267,582
Representing: RE:
Cost A - 423,593 5,139 25,730 454,462
At 2018 valuation B-E-\EHE 2,813,120 - - - 2,813,120
2,813,120 423,593 5,139 25,730 3,267,582
Accumulated depreciation ,\uﬁﬁ%
At 1 April 2016 R-E—~ENA—H - 346,206 4529 19,514 370,249
Charge for the year FRMBR 90,024 24,983 420 2574 118,001
Eliminated on disposals REERHHE - - (415) - (415)
Eliminated on written-off AR - ) (336) - (339)
Adjustment on revaluation ERE (90,024) - - - (90,024)
At 31 March 2017 —Z—+F5=A=+-H - 371,186 4198 22,088 397,472
At 1 April 2017 A\—E—+ENA—H - 371,186 4198 22,088 397,472
Charge for the year ERMB 84,037 18,637 217 2,566 105,457
Eliminated on written-off WL = (34) = = (34)
Adjustment on revaluation EERE (84,037) - - - (84,037)
At 31 March 2018 RZE-\F=A=1—H - 389,789 4,415 24,654 418,858
Net book value FEFE
At 31 March 2018 N-—E-\F=ZA=1+—H 2,813,120 33,804 724 1,076 2,848,724
At 31 March 2017 R-E—+F=ZA=1+—H 2,751,590 43,386 907 3,642 2,799,525
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18 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)
(a) The leasehold land and buildings held for own use are
situated in Macau.

(b) The Group’s leasehold land and buildings for own use
were revalued as at 31 March 2018 and 2017. The
valuations were carried out by AA Property Services
Limited, an independent valuer who holds recognised
and relevant professional qualifications and has recent
experience in the location and category of the
leasehold land and buildings being valued. The
Group’s management has discussion with the surveyors
on the valuation assumptions and valuation results
when the valuation is performed at each reporting date.

18 W% BERRE

(a)

(b)

FHEEAZHAE L RIBFAIHRPT

AEEFEERZHELHEETR

—NFR-F-EF=A=1+—
BETER - EfhmBI(AEMERE
MERBEBRAFET  BREMEERD
FAERARMEEERER  LHMAH
Tﬁfﬂi;iiiﬁz&%%b—ﬁﬁﬁiﬁz%&i‘ﬁ?ﬂﬁ

g AEEEEECS RS ]ME
EIH)%ETﬂETEH Eﬁi/ﬁﬂiﬁﬂﬁﬁmﬁimﬁ
BRZEREES

R esa 101
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18 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)
(b)  (continued)

The following table gives information about how the fair
value of leasehold land and buildings are determined
(in particular, the valuation techniques and inputs
used), as well as the fair value hierarchy into which the
fair value measurements are categorised (Level 1 to 3)
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair

value measurements is observable.

Fair value
hierarchy

AVFEER

Valuation technique(s)
and key input(s)

HERHREERARE

18 ¥% - BERR®E @

(b) (&)

2 AT
2R

Significant unobservable inputs

EXTUERRAZE

TERHIBARREAFEFEZBA
Bz BEREENMETEE L
EEFZAFELEEMERZMEE
g M N BUR) AR X FHERTEFrE
ER(FE—BREE=FH)

Relationship of unobservable
inputs to fair value
TAREGABEE
AVEZBR

As at 31 March 2018
RZZ-\F=ZA=1—H

Level 3
SRR

Properties in Macau

EAREAES

152

Annual Report 2018

Income capitalisation approach

The key inputs are:
(1) Capitalisation rates;
(2) Daily room rates;

(3) Monthly casino performance;

BABTRERE

TERABER
(1) BRERE,
(2 EESHESD,
() BhLER%E:

Kingston Financial Group Limited

Capitalisation rates, taking into account of
the capitalisation of rental income
potential, nature of the property, and
prevailing market condition, of 7% to
50%.

FE RS WABNZBRERER - 1)
EMBMATIR BREAZRT%E
50% °

Daily room rates of HK$599 to HK$652 in
average for the base level.
EAERBRBESTHNF59ELE
6528 7T

Monthly casino performance of HK$2.5
million to HK$12.7 million in average.
fEI58 A 2B TN F2,500,0008TE
12,700,000 % T ©

The higher the capitalisation rate,
the lower the fair value.

BREAERMS A TEME-

The higher the daily room rate, the
higher the fair value.

FEEAMESHS  ATELS -

The higher the monthly casino
performance, the higher the fair
value.

BSERARENS  RTELR -
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18 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 18 Y% - BERRE =
(continued)
(b)  (continued) (b) (&)

Fair value Valuation technique(s) Relationship of unobservable
hierarchy and key input(s) Significant unobservable inputs inputs to fair value

TABRWARER
AVHEER HERNREEBARE EXTUEERAZE APEZBE

As at 31 March 2017
R-E—+tF=A=1+—H

Properties in Macau  Level 3 Income capitalisation approach Capitalisation rates, taking into account of  The higher the capitalisation rate,
RPIE E=HE the capitalisation of rental income the lower the fair value.
The key inputs are: potential, nature of the property, and BREAREYS  ATEHE-
(1) Capitalisation rates; prevailing market condition, of 7% to
(2) Daily room rates; 29%.

(3) Monthly casino performance; &t RAEWAZH 2 BITERER - 1)
EWERBIMR  BREAERBTRE

WABTERE 29% °

TEHAYES Daily room rates of HK$547 to HK$607 in  The higher the daily room rate, the
(1) BRELRE, average for the base level. higher the fair value.

(2) ®FEHMS,; EAXEGRMBE VAN T47ETE ¥REAMASHE A TEYES o
() BEEA%E: 607 /87T ©

Monthly casino performance of HK$1.08  The higher the monthly casino

million to HK$13.81 million in average. performance, the higher the fair
BI5BARETHNT 1,080,000 TE  value.
13,810,000/ 7T © BSERAREER  RTEMR -
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18 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)

(b)

154

(continued)

The fair value of leasehold land and buildings for own
use in Macau as at 31 March 2018 and 2017 are
measured using valuation techniques with significant
unobservable inputs and hence were classified as
Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.

Fair value measurements and valuation
processes

In estimating the fair value of the Group’s leasehold
land and buildings, the Group uses market-observable
data to the extent it is available. Where Level 1 inputs
are not available, the Group engages third party
qualified valuers to perform the valuation of the Group’s
leasehold land and buildings. At the end of each
reporting period, the management of the Group works
closely with the qualified external valuers to establish
and determine the appropriate valuation techniques
and inputs for Level 3 fair value measurements. The
Group will first consider and adopt Level 2 inputs where
inputs can be derived observable quoted prices in the
active market. When Level 2 inputs are not available,
the Group will adopt valuation techniques that include
Level 3 inputs. Where there is a material change in the
fair value of the assets, the causes of the fluctuations
will be reported to the board of directors of the
Company.

There were no changes in valuation techniques during
the year.
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18 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)
(b)  (continued)

The movements during the year in the balance of Level

3 fair value measurements are as follows:

Opening balance (level 3 recurring

18 W% BERBE

(%)
B= AR
o

(b)

TEHBRB I ENED

2018
—B-—N\F

2017
—tF
HK$'000
TAT

HK$°000
FET

SR (B RIS

fair value) NEE) 2,751,590 3,037,620
Depreciation charge for the year FRNTEER (84,037) (90,024)
Surplus/(deficit) on revaluation of BHEETHREEFZ

leasehold land and buildings (Note 15)  Z#4 (E54t) (K3t 15) 145,567 (196,006)
Closing balance (level 3 recurring HiR&ER (BRI E

fair value) NEE) 2,813,120 2,751,590

(c) As at 31 March 2018, the gross amount of revaluation
gain was HK$145,567,000 (2017: deficit
HK$196,006,000). After tax of valuation gain,
HK$128,099,000 (2017: deficit of HK$172,486,000) has
been recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the property revaluation reserve of the
Group and the balance was recognised in statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

(d) The Group has pledged leasehold land and buildings
held for own use with carrying amounts of
approximately HK$2,200,000,000 (2017:
HK$2,140,000,000) to secure bank loans of the Group,
as disclosed in note 32(b), at the end of the reporting
period.

(e) Had these properties held for own use been carried at
cost less accumulated depreciation, the carrying
amounts would have been HK$1,231,816,000 (2017:
HK$1,270,617,000).

NEFE=ZA=+—8" EffkK
£145567,0008 L (=ZF—+
F 41 196,006,00058 7T ) © KR 1%
1B Y 25 128,099,000 T (- FE—+
£ B4 172,486,00078 T) DA E At
FPEMAER  WEAEBE 2 MES
HREBE BB TEZREMS
ﬁqﬁl i‘%ﬁgwu‘)

(c) M=—Z—
A RE

2

AN EE 32(b) FTIREE - 1A i&iﬂﬁﬂi
REBE AL B FTERERITEFIRE
Bk ™ 18 4£92,200,000,000 % 75( - =
—+ 4 : 2,140,000,00078 7T ) 2 ¥ 1E
ERAEE L NETF -

BRERZEFIEAAWERK AR R
& 7 R Bl BRE A B E B
1,231,816,000% 7T( = & — + F:
1,270,617,00087T) °

THES

BEBEERAE
—E-N\FEFER
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19 GOODWILL 19 BE

2018 2017
—E-NE —ET—+F

HK$°000 HK$'000
FET TAT

B EREE

Carrying amount of goodwill

10,996,683 10,996,683

The carrying amount of goodwill relating to the cash-
generating units engaged in securities dealings, underwriting
and placements, margin and IPO financing services and
corporate finance advisory services are HK$3,628,905,000,
HK$7,148,237,000 and HK$219,541,000 respectively. For the
purposes of the goodwill impairment test, its recoverable
amount was determined based on a value in use calculation,
covering a detailed 5-year budget plan plus an extrapolated
cash flow projections applying a steady growth rate
subsequent to this 5-year plan, with a discount rate of
approximately 13.69% (2017:12.66%).

As at 31 March 2018, The Directors performed an impairment
test for the goodwill. The recoverable amount for the cash-
generating units engaged in securities dealings, underwriting
and placements, margin and IPO financing services and
corporate finance advisory services are HK$4,222, 000,000,
HK$21,346,000,000 and HK$430,000,000 respectively.

The key assumptions used in the budget plan are:

(i) the annual growth rates of revenue were estimated
ranging from 7% to 12%, 7% and 8% (2017: ranging
from 7% to 12%, 7% and 8%) for securities services,
margin and IPO financing and corporate finance
advisory services respectively throughout the 5-year
budget plan. Cash flow beyond the five-year period are
extrapolated using an estimated growth rate of 3%
(2017: 3%).

(i)  that gross margins will be maintained at their current
levels throughout the 5-year budget plan.

The Group management’s key assumptions have been
determined based on past performance and its expectations
for the market’s development. The discount rates used are
pre-tax and reflect specific risks relating to the relevant
businesses.
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19 GOODW"_L (continued) 19 %%*‘
Apart from the considerations described in determining the BEXAEFReELAENFRERZES
value in use of the cash-generating units above, the Group’s BRERZEI  AEETIERBIREI T ABEM
management is not currently aware of any other probable HherEH T BE 2 NnEES) -

changes that would necessitate changes in its key estimates.

The directors concluded that the CGUs demonstrate EEBH  ARARSELSBNETEME
sufficient cashflow projections that justify the carrying value SREBHMERSEAIHHEREE -
of the goodwill, accordingly, no impairment loss is provided At REZE-_Z—/N\F=A=1+—HILF
for the year ended 31 March 2018 (2017: nil). EEERRERERE( S ——tF &)
20 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 20 BLEE
HK$’000
FET
Cost R
At 1 April 2016, 31 March 2017, RZZFE—ARFWUNA—H - Z—+t5F
1 April 2017 and 31 March 2018 =A=+—8 - ZZE—+FmA—H
kZE-NF=RA=+—H 322,685
Accumulated amortisation S
At 1 April 2016 RZE—RFMWH—H 28,264
Amortisation g 14,132
At 31 March 2017 and 1 April 2017 RZZE—tF=A=+—8BK
—E—+FWA—H 42,396
Amortisation e 14,132
At 31 March 2018 RZE-NEF=ZA=+—H 56,528
Net book value REEE
At 31 March 2018 R=EB-N\E=HA=+—H 266,157
At 31 March 2017 R-ZZE—tF=A=+—H 280,289
The intangible assets represented the costs of the 15 B EERMBS1I5H M TIEET A &
subsurface mineral permits acquired which were A BRAFFAIERRERNBEZT—+F
f— p— — E=d e =
subsequently transferred into leases during the financial year ZASTBEMBFEREERE

ended 31 March 2017.
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20 |NTANG|BLE ASSETS (continued)
The 15 permits were initially granted by the Saskatchewan
Ministry of Energy and Resources, currently known as the
Ministry of the Economy of Saskatchewan, in 2008 to
prospect for subsurface mining in Elk Point, Saskatchewan,
Canada with area of approximately 3,989.95 square
kilometres.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, there is no change in
the estimated lease term and the intangible asset is
amortised on a straight-line basis over its estimated useful
life of 24 years.

21 INVENTORIES

Food and beverage and
hotel operating supplies

20 B|ILEE =)

T B IR OB A A TR B2 TR 20 (3R T8 12 Hr W8 1
BEEED BN _ZESZNFR L1575
AEE - LAEDERBAER b K HT R HUR A Elk
Point M T&473,989.95F 75 A B 7 i THEEE ©

BE_T-N\F=ZA=+t—RALFE &t
HE ,HNEEEE“@J ML EERERENE
EET AL A B 24 F N #8H -

21 78

2018 2017
—ZE-N\F —ET—+F

HK$’000 HK$'000
FET THAT

B R RHA KB 5S4 B &

2,390 2,322

22 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

Investment funds, at fair value

BRERES BAVE

22 THHERE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$'000

HK$°000
FiB7 BT

410 548

The available-for-sale investments are denominated in United
States dollars and there is no public market for the
investments.

The fair value is based on net asset value of the investment
funds at the end of the reporting period. During the year
ended 31 March 2018, a deficit arising on change in fair
value of approximately HK$138,000 (2017: fair value gain of
HK$108,000) was recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the investment revaluation
reserve.
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23 HELD FOR TRADING INVESTMENTS 23 BFEEERE
2018 2017
—EB-N\F —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTER FAT
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong, REB LM ZBRAES  EME

at market value 192,805 134,955
Changes in fair value of financial assets at fair value through BRAFEFABRIEMEZERAZ @/RE
profit or loss and other comprehensive income are EXNTFEEHEN GG ERREMEEKE

recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and FIER o

other comprehensive income.

24 ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS IN MARGIN 24 PMEFAMNREESHE
FINANCING

PLRE: 2017
—E-N\F —T 4
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET THBIT
Directors of subsidiaries and their B AR ZESZNHEBME AL
associates 117,442 77,597

Other margin financing customers ERFEEBERP 20,961,400 19,458,100
Less: Allowance for doubtful debt o REREME (496,487) (66,749)

20,582,355 19,468,948
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24 ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS IN MARGIN 24 MEFBMNARELSHE @
FlNANClNG (continued)

The movements in impairment loss on advances to customers
in margin financing, all assessed individually, are as follows:

U T BEERIER2EHEZ AR BMR
EERENEREED -

2018 2017

—E2-N\F —E—F

HK$°000 HK$'000

FHET FHT

At the beginning of the year REH] 66,749 20,642
Impairment loss recognised BRI EEE 430,573 58,754
Bad debt written off EERMER = (12,647)
Impairment loss reversed B EREEE (835) -
At the end of the year RE#& 496,487 66,749

Advances to customers in margin financing are repayable on
demand and carry interest at approximately Hong Kong
Dollar Prime rate plus 3%. Margin clients are required to
pledge securities collateral to the Group in order to obtain
credit facilities for securities trading. The amount of credit
facilities granted to them is determined by the discounted
value of securities accepted by the Group.

At 31 March 2018, total market value of securities pledged as
collateral in respect of the loan to other margin financing
customers was approximately HK$84,466,301,000 (31 March
2017: approximately HK$75,132,966,000).

No ageing analysis is disclosed for advances to customers in
margin financing as, in the opinion of the directors, an ageing
analysis is not meaningful in view of the business nature of
securities dealings and margin financing.
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Annual Report 2018

AEFPRMNRESHMEABERER - WK
HERBETHRBEFNEMIESE - RES
BEPARASBEMESERR  UBES
RHEREERE BTYRFLEERES
MIRAKERN  EFRRRERTE

RZE—N\FZA=Z+—H ' EAEMHRE
CRERFMEERERR DR EESE
T1E4) 584,466,301,0008 T ( —ZE —+F
=A=+—H : 475,132,966,0007& ) °

BEERR ENEFRXFIERBEBMEZE
BHE - BREOMUE|EER - WAL ERER
BEPAMNRESBE ZRE DT -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R Pl 5

25 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 25

B 5 & Hfth B W AR X

2018 2017
—ZE-N\F —E—+tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FH&IT
Trade receivables from financial RE 2 BRE DI
services segments Z 5 EWERFK 36,370 34,683
Trade receivables from hotel and REEE RIEX D EE
gaming segments B 5 e BR 3K 59,205 67,555
Other receivables, deposits and HaEUERF - ZE2 Rk
prepayments TRt EIE 56,946 49,682
152,521 151,920

Trade receivables from financial services

segments

Accounts receivable arising from
the ordinary course of
business of dealing in securities:

ErXHHREBBRESL
2 FEUERAR -

2018

REEMRE D E2E S BEIRR

2017

—E-N\F —T—+F

HK$°000
FET

HK$'000
THAT

Cash clients = 9,959 13,715
Clearing house EEFT 7,839 8,590
Brokers and dealers BERR5E 673 623
Accounts receivable arising from BEEAHNARERBREESE

the ordinary course of business Z FEWARFK -

of dealing in futures contracts:
Clearing house EERT 10,571 7,128
Accounts receivable arising from RHUATEIAERTEBBREEE

the ordinary course of 2 FEUARSK

business in the provision of:
Corporate finance advisory services b 2 B T A ) AR 75 7,328 4,627

36,370 34,683

EHNELREBFR QA
“E-N\FER
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25 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (coninves)y 25 B Z K HMEWERF =

Trade receivables from financial services
segments (continued)

The settlement terms of accounts receivable attributable to
dealing in securities are one or two days after trade date,
and those of accounts receivable attributable to dealing in
futures are one day after the trade date. All accounts
receivable from cash clients are not past due at the reporting
dates for which the management believes that no impairment
allowance is necessary in respect of these balances as there
has not been a significant change in credit quality and the
balances are considered fully recoverable.

Accounts receivable from clearing houses, brokers, dealers
and corporate finance clients are current.

Trading limits are set for customers. The Group seeks to
maintain tight control over its outstanding accounts
receivable in order to minimise credit risk. Overdue balances
are regularly monitored by management.

Trade receivables from hotel and gaming
segments

The Group generally allows an average credit period of 30
days to its customers. The following is an ageing analysis of
trade receivables at the end of the reporting period:

RESEEBE D B E 5 BURRR @

EHFXHREBBEREANRZ S AR —=
MERERS - mEEHERIGREIRRAIZA
RRZAMWER—BAREN - IBREEFZ
EUERNRE YL EAaL  TEER
5 ANEEERYBEAEE  BEEE
SIBARER 2B - BRI F R
SHERRE R

JEYAEEFT - 852 - KPP REEREERP
ZERRBENEEE -

AEEREPRAX SR - NEEE B
REIEHE W R EERYERN - BB EER
BREEHE - BEEEHERANER -

REBERBEIE2ESBERRN
REBE-—RETEPIOBHZFHEER-

UTRESRUEARBERR KK D
#r

2018 2017

—E-N\F —F—tF

HK$°000 HK$000

FET FHET

0-30 days 0ZE30H 44,644 50,365
31-60 days 31E60H 11,321 11,687
61-90 days 61290 H 75 907
Over 90 days 90 B EA E 26,549 27,980
82,589 90,939

Allowance for doubtful debt RIRE A (23,384) (23,384)
59,205 67,555
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25 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (coninued) 25
Trade receivables from hotel and gaming

segments (continued)

The movements of impairment loss on trade receivables of

the hotel and gaming segments are as follows:

At beginning and end of the year ) B FF 4%

B 5 REAMBE IR )
REBEERBEIBZE S BERIEK
(%)
BERERESEZE S RECEFRERBEZ
BEmT

2018
—B—N\F

2017
—E—+tF
HK$'000
TET

HK$°000
FET

23,384 23,384

The following is an ageing analysis of trade receivables by
due date at the end of the reporting period:

AT REZFRUEFRMEHRIZIHAZ
5z BREE AT

2018 2017

—E-N\F —ET—+F

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FH&TT

Neither past due nor impaired RiZ:Sabt R 44,644 50,365
Past due but not impaired: DA HAB FERE -

Less than 1 month past due wEDR1EA 11,321 11,687

1 to 3 months past due wEI1 = 31E A 75 1,298

Over 3 months past due WHE3ME A A £ 3,165 4,205

14,561 17,190

59,205 67,555

The balances which are past due but not impaired relate to a
number of customers who have a good track record with the
Group, or are active during the year.

The balances of other classes within trade and other
receivables of the Group are neither past due nor impaired.
Management considers that the credit risk associated with
these receivables is minimal.

ERHEERECERESREAEEAR
HHEEREINENERCEFPBR -

REE 285 REMBYERRT - EiER
2SR BBHSORE - EEERS  &F
FEUSR R 2 B ERERBRE

EHNELREBFR QA
“E-N\FER
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26 CASH AND BANK BALANCES HELD ON

BEHALF OF CUSTOMERS

The Group maintains segregated trust accounts with
authorised institutions to hold clients’ monies arising from its
normal course of business. The Group has classified the
clients’ monies as cash and bank balances held on behalf of
customers under the current assets section of the
consolidated statement of financial position and recognised
the corresponding accounts payable (note 28) to respective
clients on the grounds that it is liable for any loss or
misappropriation of clients’ monies. The cash held on behalf
of customers is restricted and governed by the Securities
and Futures (Client Money) Rules under the Securities and
Futures Ordinance.

27 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

26 REFEFEZRERRTE

AEBERRBARBFRRBIULERRP - U7
ER—REBEBETEEZEPHIA - A&
B ER P RED B REA MBI KRP
MBEERTREFPHEZRE RIRITHE
B WARBEAE P RIBZ EARKHEM
e EEEZ AR - R 2 A AR (Y

128) REFHAZREIETLFRBER
PIE T A LHE (RFEFIE) 48 BIFTR & &
HE o

27 BEehREEHEER

2018 2017

—ZE-N\F —E—+tF

HK$°000 HK$'000

F&T T

Time deposits TEEFZ 48,628 36,583

Cash at bank and in hand FITRFERE 347,165 268,179

Cash and cash equivalents in the RERE B REKZ

consolidated statement HehIREFEBEEE

of financial position 395,793 304,762

Cash at banks at floating rates based on daily bank deposit
rates. Short term deposits during the year are made for
varying period of between 1 day and 3 months depending on
the immediate cash requirements of the Group, and earn
interest at respective short term time deposits rates. The
carrying amounts of the cash and cash equivalent
approximate their fair value.
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28 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

28 EFRHEMEMNRNK

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Trade payables from financial KESRRBE LA

services segments B SRR 2,112,096 2,480,424

Trade payables from hotel and REEERIEEDEE
gaming segments B SRR 14,466 14,621
Other payables and accruals HAth e AR T & A 157,945 121,416
2,284,507 2,616,461

Trade payables from financial services segments

Accounts payable arising from the
ordinary course of business
of dealing in securities:

EEXHHEHEGREESE
ZIES R

2018
—B-N\F

HK$°000
FET

RETMBRES B 2E 2 BARR

2017

—T—+F

HK$'000
THAT

Cash clients ReEP 318,265 976,696
Margin clients REEGRFP 1,731,404 1,482,139
2,049,669 2,458,835
Dividend payable to clients ENEPRE 1,667 28
Clearing house HEEFT 42,948 8,914
Accounts payable arising from the HEAHNBEERBIEESE
ordinary course of business of 2 EMBRF
dealing in futures contracts:
Clients E9 17,768 10,418
Accounts payable arising from the RHUATEIERETEBBEEE
ordinary course of business in the 2 EMBRF
provision of:
Corporate finance advisory services b S B T S AR 7% 44 36
Asset management services BEEERE - 2,193
2,112,096 2,480,424
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28 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continueq) 28 EZRHMEMEKRR @
Trade payables from financial services segments xB ﬁ pﬂﬂﬁi% PEZEZREMARIR @

(continued)

The settlement terms of accounts payable attributable to
dealing in securities are one or two days after the trade date,
and those of accounts payable attributable to dealing in
futures are one day after trade date.

No ageing analysis is disclosed for payables to margin
clients as, in the opinion of the directors, an ageing analysis
is not meaningful in view of the business nature of securities
dealings and margin financing.

As at the 31 March 2018, included in accounts payable was
an amount of approximately HK$2,049,601,000 (2017:
approximately HK$2,410,359,000) payable to clients and
other institutions in respect of trust and segregated bank
balances received and held for clients and other institutions
in the course of the conduct of regulated activities.

Trade payables from hotel and gaming segments
The following is an ageing analysis of trade payables at the
end of the reporting period:

BERGEEENERENL S BHE—
MEREN MEEHE EEEH%MJZ
KRR S5BHE—BAREN -

EERB ENEFXHMRBERELE
BIHEE - REOMALEEE  WABREES
FAEMNRES TP KR REDMN -

R-ZE—N\FZA=1+—0B BNEXRERE
B & P R H 4th # 4#% BR 30 %Y 2,049,601,000
BIL(ZZE—+1F : #92,410,359,0007T)
HRRETZRE T BRETIREL REM
R LB 2 EE R BRI T4 -

REBERBEIE2ESENRN
UTREZRERNERNRERARZERED
AT

2018 2017

—E-N\F —FtF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET THT

0-30 days 0&30H 9,901 8,978
31-60 days 312 60H 4,130 3,466
61-90 days 61£E90H 249 724
Over 90 days Q0 HM E 186 1,453
14,466 14,621
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29 AMOUNTS DUE TO SHAREHOLDERS

29 ENRRME

2018 2017
—E-N\fF —E—+F

HK$’000 HK$000

FHxT T

Better Sino Limited EFERAF (a) 1,190,000 1,190,000
Mrs. Chu Yuet Wah T RELZL (b) 3,029,911 1,121,911
4,219,911 2,311,911

(a)

The amount is non-interest bearing, unsecured and
repayable on demand.

The loan of HK$1,010,000,000 (2017: HK$1,010,000,000)
is unsecured, interest bearing at the rate of 3% per
annum and repayable on the third anniversary of
drawdown (i.e. on or before 31 March 2020). This loan
is subject to review at anytime and to the lender’s
overriding right of withdrawal and immediate repayment
on demand. The remaining balance of
HK$2,019,911,000 (2017: HK$111,911,000) is
unsecured, interest bearing at the rate of 3% per
annum and repayable on demand.

(a)

BRAFE/TE  BERLBERE
KEE

2(1,010,000,000/8 (=T —+F :
1,010,000,00078 7)) 2 B AR
NFFERIEFEMRIEREE=A
FEIZE_FBF=A=+—Hz2H)
B - ZENARERERN  TZRA
ERARERALEERE R Z
BMEHEF - £2%E2,019,911,000/8 7 ( =
T —+ 5 :111,911,000/8 7T ) 8l A £
I - LUWEFRIE B R AEEKE
;\% °

EHNELREBFR QA
“E-N\FER
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30 LOAN FROM A RELATED COMPANY
The loan is due to Kingston Finance Limited which has
common directors and shareholders with the Group. The loan
is unsecured, interest bearing at the rate of 2% per annum
(2017: 2% per annum) and repayable on demand.

31 SUBORDINATED LOANS

30 RE—XBELQLFER

ERTENENEM AR AR FIA -

AEAEEAARESERBR -
BEA REMNR2E(ZF
R2E)HENAREREE -

REEX

31

N
BRERR
—tF FF

Draw date 2018 2017
REE A —E-N\F —E—+F
HK$°000 HK$'000
THET FAT
Loan from Mr. Lee Wai Man 30 Jan 2004 P+1% 250,000 250,000
KEFEXEEZERK —ETMEF REBHNEX
—A=+A mni1E
20 Feb 2004 1.5% 150,000 150,000
e YUt S 1.5[E
—HA=+H
Revolving loan from Mrs. Chu Yuet Wah 24 May 2010 1.5% 300,000 300,000
REFAEL L ZERER —E-ZF 158
AA-+MAH
700,000 700,000

The subordinated loans of the Group are interest bearing,
unsecured and repayable on demand.
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32 BANK LOANS 32 RITER
PARE:] 2017
—E-NE —ZtF
HK$°000 HK$'000
F#&xT THIT
Secured bank loans: ﬁ?ﬁﬁfﬁ?_
Money market loans and It iﬁ% &1@1& N
revolving loans (a) 1,620,000 1,535,000
Term loans TEHIE R (b) 730,000 1,320,000
Unsecured bank loans: EEFIRITER
Corporate tax loan TEBREER = 380,834
2,350,000 3,235,834
Repayable: B AT ERRR A (B
Within one year —FR 1,710,000 2,005,834
More than one year, —FRETHBBMRF
but not exceeding two years 90,000 90,000
More than two years, WERBTBBARF
but not exceeding five years 270,000 270,000
After five years RFE% 280,000 870,000

2,350,000 3,235,834

Amount due within one year included t AREBIBEZ —FRERIE

in current liabilities (1,710,000) (2,005,834)
Amount due after one year —F 1B ERNIE 640,000 1,230,000
Notes: Hiat
(a) The bank loans of the Group were secured by marketable (a) AEEZRITERIURFSZFEHT

securities of approximately HK$7,259,478,000 (2017: KEE[E 2 H1BE5H#)7,259,478,000 7T (=
approximately HK$6,414,393,000) pledged to the Group by T — L F : 476,414,393,000;8 L)  1E1E
margin financing customers, a bond at value of approximately #744,183,000/8 ;w( = £ — £ F: 4
HK$44,183,000 (2017: approximately HK$46,512,000) and 46,512,000 ;¢ ) < & % K B E 4
certificates of deposit at value of approximately 47,950,000 w( = £ — £ F: 4
HK$47,950,000 (2017: approximately HK$48,470,000). The 48,470,000 7T ) 2 7 K FE (EHELR © fﬁfﬂ?
bank loans bear floating interest rates ranging from 0.93% to L FE)FFFEINT0.93EZ2.77E (=
2.77% per annum (2017: 0.82% to 1.82%). *1‘:*# C0.82/EE1.82)F)5FE

%%J%Aiﬂzlﬁgéj& 1 ﬁg



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 765 R 2= P

32 BANK LOANS (continued) 32 ﬁE{ffﬁ%’ik (%)

Notes: (continued)

(b)  The term loans of approximately HK$730,000,000 (2017:
approximately HK$1,320,000,000), bearing floating interest
rates ranging from 2.42% to 3.24% per annum (2017: 2.86% to
3.32%) were secured by:

a. the pledge of leasehold land and buildings held for own
use with carrying amounts of approximately
HK$2,200,000,000 (2017: approximately
HK$2,140,000,000);

b. shares of two subsidiaries;

C. corporate guarantee from a subsidiary;

d. a charge over operating bank accounts of two
subsidiaries;

e. assignment of income and receivables arising from
commercial operations of two subsidiaries.

33 EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(“the MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees employed
under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance. The MPF scheme is a defined contribution
retirement plan administered by independent trustees. Under
the MPF scheme, the employer and its employee are each
required to make contributions to the plan at 5% of the
employee’s relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly
relevant income of HK$30,000 from 1 June 2014 onwards.
Contributions to the plan vest immediately.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in Macau were
members of state-managed retirement benefit schemes
operated by the Macau government. The Group was required
to contribute a certain percentage of its payroll to the
retirement benefit scheme to fund the benefits. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement benefit
scheme was to make the required contributions under the
scheme.

1 7“ Kingston Financial Group Limited
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(b) EHIEF49730,000,0008 7L ( —F—+4F :
#91,320,000,000% 7T ) 1% ) F FI| F 1T
242]E E324[B( —F — L F : 286F %=
332/2)5F8 U TFHEIEEHER -

a.  HHEREIEHA) 5 2,200,000,000% T
T F— L 4F : #92,140,000,000%
TL)ZHEFEERZHE L RIET

b. IEX VAP, ‘s

c. FRE—FKBARFZLEIER:

d.  EBHBKHEAFZ SERITHRS

e. HEMZIMWEARIEFEEREELNK
AR JEW IR -

33 EERKEF

AEBRE TSR HIERATBETENES A%
ERRBENZEZBEI2HEBFIMELES
TE([RFERETE) - B2 E AEREMH
SORRETE]  ABUEEATE - R
TFTE BERERESAEZREEBBK
A5%REFEIERER - AT —HFN
A—BEEAEBWA LR A30,000%7T -
METEIEL 2 RS -

AEBEE TRFMB AR 2 EEYRRFR
fFeE e MR ERRRENTE 22 8% -
AEBAREMNFHFEZETAD LREK
& MIETBI AR o A KB A R KAE NG S
ZWE— B ERREZA BIELHR -
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34 SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 34 UG AEBINIXRE

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on 20
August 2013, shareholders of the Company have adopted a
new share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”).

Pursuant to the Share Option Scheme, the total numbers of
shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options to
be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option scheme adopted by the Company must not in
aggregate exceed 10% of the aggregate of the Shares of the
Company in issue on the date of adoption. The Company
may renew this 10% limit with shareholders’ approval
provided that such renewal may not exceed 10% of the
shares in the Company in issue as at the date of the
shareholders’ approval.

The total number of shares of the Company which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options to be granted
and yet to be exercised under the Share Option Scheme and
all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under any other share option scheme adopted by the
Company should not exceed 30% of the shares in issue from
time to time.

Unless approved by the shareholders of the Company in
general meeting, the total number of shares of the Company
issued and to be issued upon the exercise of the options
granted to each participant (including both exercised and
unexercised options) under the Share Option Scheme and
any other share option schemes adopted by the Company in
any 12-month period must not exceed 1% of the shares of
the Company in issue.

The period within which the options must be exercised will be
specified by the Company at the time of grant. This period
must expire no later than 10 years from the date of grant of
the options. The exercise of options may also be subject to
any conditions imposed by the Company at the time of offer.

RIZZE—=F N \AZ+THRBITZRRAFKRRE
BFERE  ARBRED KA A RE
atEl([FERrEstEl ) -

RIBBIE S RITEREBREEIR
AR BIRANZ AT E BT SR Z P
BEREEMA TRITZRODEE  AHTE
BBARRNEAAM2HMEHEITRND 2
10% > AR B A AEBGBERA & TEET I
10% REE - EEBEF TNSEBAREREERR
HAERBARREBHITRDZ10% °

R ERAERT &K TR AR RITEZA
BARITEBBE RRIEA R R HRA 2 EFE
BRI D R E R RITE Z PIA RTT
ERB R TT I A] T 3IT Z AR B 48
2 NMEBB TR ERITRG Z30% -

BRIENIRR A S EARR BRI A - PEW
1218 A @A - EREERE S MR
Rz EEmERES SR TR28E 2
PR (B EITE M RTTRE 2 EAHE) 1T
FERD BT TREITZARABRMD AL -
TEBARRREHITRMZ 1% °

FERREAETTE Z RS BARRIRE L E
HRIE o s HR AR B AR B HIHEET 10
FAEM - TEBRETAEZRRARQR
RIZ2 BRRFRTE Z A EM -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 765 R 2= P

34 SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 34

172

(continued)

The subscription price for the shares of the Company to be
issued upon exercise of the options shall be no less than the
higher of (i) the closing price of the shares of the Company
as stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by the
Exchange on the date of grant; (ii) the average closing price
of the shares of the Company as stated in the daily quotation
sheets issued by the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
for the five business days immediately preceding the date of
grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the share of the Company
on the date of grant. The subscription price will be approved
by the board of directors at the time the option is offered to
the participants.

For the year ended 31 March 2018 and 2017, the Company
had no share option being granted, outstanding, lapsed or
cancelled pursuant to the Share Option Scheme.

Kingston Financial Group Limited
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35 DEFERRED TAXATION 35 ELEFIE
The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) FA - REESUMBIRARER ZELERIEE
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position E/ (B ERHs REZFHNAT

and the movements during the year are as follows:

Revaluation
Accelerated of leasehold
tax land and Unused
depreciation buildings tax losses Total

mE EREI#k KB
BEHE RBRF2ER BEBR st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TAT TET

At 1 April 2016 RZE—RFMNA—H 3 (210,582) 6,104 (204,475)
Credit to other FPAEHMEERA

comprehensive income - 23,520 - 23,520
Credit to consolidated FTAGE R

income statement (3) 6,201 (6,104) 94
At 31 March 2017 RZE—tH=A=+—4 - (180,861) - (180,861)
Charge to other SPAHMEEKA

comprehensive income - (17,468) - (17,468)
Credit to consolidated SEARRE WK

income statement - 5,428 - 5,428
At 31 March 2018 RZE-N\F=A=+—4H - (192,901) - (192,901)
At 31 March 2018, the Group has unused tax losses of RZE-—NF=ZA=+—H KEEFHKE
approximately HK$120,652,000 (2017: HK$120,397,000) W’ R HE M 2 KB A B IEEIE
available for offset against future profits. No deferred tax #) £A120,652,000%8 o — & — & F:
asset has been recognised (2017: No deferred tax asset has 120,397,000 7T) © B3 7 A T8 RI R 2%
been recognised) in respect of the tax losses due to the BB - M ES TR IBSEEREERIBEE
unpredictability of future profit streams. The unrecognised —T—tF WERRELRBLE) - K
tax losses may be carried forward for a period of: TR IBE BRI T 5 B 458

2018 2017
—B-N\F —T—+%F

HK$°000 HK$'000
FRET THT

Indefinitely PR HA 120,652 120,397
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36 SHARE CAPITAL 36 JxA

2018 2017
—EB-N\E “E—+F
Amount Amount

Number of x| Number of -]
shares HK$°000 shares HK$'000
RHEE FERT BB TAT

Ordinary shares of HK$0.02 ~ S E(E0.028 L2 L&

Authorised: EERA
At 1 April 2017/2016 and R-B—+%&/
31 March 2018/2017 —E-RNEFERA-ARK
—“E-N\E/
—E—+4=A=+—H 24,750,000,000 495,000  24,750,000,000 495,000
Issued and fully paid: BERITRARKAK
At 1 April 2017/2016 RZF—tF/ZT—RF
mA—A 13,614,480,666 272,290  13,614,480,666 272,290
At 31 March 2018/2017 RZT—N\F/ZT—+F
=A=+-H 13,614,480,666 272,290  13,614,480,666 272,290

Non-redeemable convertible 7~ A] B8 B AT AR (B 2 IR
preference shares

Shares of HK$0.02 each FREE 0.02 Bz KkiH
Authorised: EERA
At 1 April 2017/2016 and W=E—+4E/
31 March 2018/2017 “E-RENA-BR
—T-N\F/
—T—+E=R=+—H 5,250,000,000 105,000 5,250,000,000 105,000
Issued and fully paid: BEIRMRBKA
At 1 April 2017/2016 RZE—t+5 /25— 1F
mA—A 3,750,000,000 75,000 3,750,000,000 75,000
At 31 March 2018/2017 WZE-N\F/ZZ—tF
=A=+—-8H 3,750,000,000 75,000 3,750,000,000 75,000

1 74 Kingston Financial Group Limited
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36 SHARE CAPITAL (continued) 36 HQZIK /2 )

Non-redeemable convertible preference shares
The fair value assessment of the convertible preference
shares (“CPS”) was carried out by AA Property Services
Limited, an independent professional valuer. The basis for
determining the fair value of CPS at HK$2,395,106,000 at the
date of completion is as follows:

The fair value of the CPS is estimated by using Black-Scholes
Option Pricing Model.

Risk Free Rate: The CPS are denominated in Hong Kong
Dollars. The risk free rate is determined by making reference
to the Exchange Fund Notes of comparable terms issued by
the Hong Kong Monetary Authority.

Terms and Conditions: The face value and coupon of the
CPS and other relevant terms and conditions are considered.

Conversion Options Calculation: (i) Stock Price = HK$1.05;
(i) Exercise Price = HK$0.8; (iii) Risk Free Rate = 2.732%; (iv)
Expected Option Period = 10.005 Years; (v) Expected
Volatility = 87.825%; (vi) Option Type = Call; (vii) Expected
Dividend Yield = 0%.

Capital Management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that the group
companies will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to stakeholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

The capital structure of the Group consists of subordinated
loans, loan from a related company, amounts due to
shareholders, bank loans and equity attributable to equity
holders of the Company, comprising paid up capital/share
capital and reserves. The Directors of the Group review the
capital structure regularly. As part of this review, the Director
considers the cost and the risks associated with each class
of the capital.

A EE R E LR

AT EL R ([T RELRR]) 2 AT ERT
HIRBE EEHEMRDYEBRERA
RIETT - B A 202,395,106,0007% 7T 2 7]
BBELABRNTRE B 2 A FE 2 EEN
T

A EER A ETERMB R — &F
BHTHIRE E AR A AR -

ERERAN R - ARRE R TIABTTEHE ©
BERBRANXD2EAEESHEERELY
BARALRIGERZINEESBEHFMET °

Rk B Mkt - BET RATBRREER 2 mER
SRS R A K H At 48 R 1450 B fek A

R HARE S B 7% ¢ () IRB =1.0578 7T : (i)
71F B=08% T (iVE A B N XK=
2.732% ; (iv) TEHRHARE F HE = 10.0054F : (v)
Y& HAR 18 = 87.825% ; (vi) HARESE Bl = 3288 -
(vii) TEEAR B & =0% °

EXER

AEBEREEN - BB BEESEE
wmEZ P8 ERAEEE TSR AFE
gE - FARRESEERAAZER -

AEE 2 EREBERREER  KE—%
BERR BN - BABRERFNE - |RITER
RARRRGHAANREERZ(BRERE
KOBRALER) AEBEEEHRRTE
KeEE - ERARRNZ -8y  EFER
BERERZRAR M RE -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 = M A

36 SHARE CAP'TAL (continued)
Capital Management (continued)
Based on the recommendation of the directors, the Group
will balance its overall capital structure through the payment
of dividends, new share issues as well as the issue of new
debt or the redemption of existing debt.

The Group monitors capital using gearing ratio, which is net
debts divided by total equity attributable to owners of the
Company. Net debts include amounts due to shareholders,
loan from a related company, bank loans and subordinated
loans, less cash and bank balances — general accounts and
time deposits. The gearing ratio as at the end of the reporting
period is as follows:

BEAREE )
AEBSREEZHESR  BRRME
B BT REBEITHERERIREE
%o W EAREEBEEREE -

AEERBEEABRLEX(AEHFRGKA
REEBEANEIEEGAR) EEEX - B
FREEEREMNERFIA - KA —REAERT]

ZEF - RITERRREERR S MIRTT
R — _EE}E'WE,H)H_/ c RIE IR
ZEEAGBLENT

2018 2017

—B-N\F —E—+F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Net debts B FE 14,017,117 13,891,844
Total equity attributable to owners RATEE ANE(LERRTE

of the Company 20,623,754 19,581,267

Gearing ratio BEEARLE 0.68 0.71

Several subsidiaries of the Group (the “Regulated
Subsidiaries”) are registered with Hong Kong Securities and
Futures Commission (“SFC”) for the business they operate in.
The Regulated Subsidiaries are subject to liquid capital
requirements under Hong Kong Securities and Futures
(Financial Resources) Rules (“SF(FR)R”) adopted by the SFC.
Under the SF(FR)R, the Regulated Subsidiaries must maintain
their liquid capital (assets and liabilities adjusted as
determined by SF(FR)R) in excess of statutory floor
requirement or 5% of their total adjusted liabilities, whichever
is higher. The required information is filed with the SFC on a
regular basis and the Group has complied with those
requirements during the year.
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37 RESERVES
The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior year are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 96 of
the financial statements.

37 f#E
AEMPNEER F—FEIHESERY
BEHONHRRE LI B2 D RS
=25 -

Share Capital

premium Contributed redemption Retained

Company account surplus reserve earnings

b N gl Bz REEA

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TR TR TAT
At 1 April 2016 RZE—RFMA—H 11,739,980 69,332 466 176,432 11,986,210
Profit for the year FREF - - - 501,132 501,132
Payment of dividends IEARR 2 - - - (347,290) (347,290)
At 31 March 2017 RZE—+F=HA=+—H 11,739,980 69,332 466 330,274 12,140,052
Profit for the year FNm A - - - 536,743 536,743
Payment of dividends IR AR - - - (434,100) (434,100)
At 31 March 2018 RZBE-N\E=A=+—H 11,739,980 69,332 466 432,917 12,242,695

(a) The share premium account represents the excess of
proceeds received over the nominal value of the

Company’s shares issued, less share issue expenses.

The contributed surplus represents the difference
between the nominal value of the Company’s shares
issued and the value of net assets of the underlying
subsidiaries acquired. Under the Companies Act 1981
of Bermuda (as amended), a company may not declare
or pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of
contributed surplus, if there are reasonable grounds for
believing that (i) the Company is, or would after the
payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as they become
due; (ii) the realisable value of the Company’s assets
would thereby be less than the aggregate of its
liabilities and its issued share capital and share
premium account.

Capital redemption reserve arises from the reduction of
the nominal value of the issued share capital of the
Company upon the cancellation of the repurchased
shares.

Property revaluation reserve represents gain/loss
arising on the revaluation of properties.

Investment revaluation reserve represents gain/loss
arising on the revaluation of available-for-sale
investments.

(b)

(e)

B tn i (B AR 38 AR A 7] 2 WP 1S 5K 3R
SRR EEZ 28 RN
BITH) o

BMBERIEA QR ETRO EER
PR E M B AR EEFEMEM
ZER - REBABRE-NAN—FQF
EIERT) - WA EEEMAE A
I A BB B R IR A 1R 4 ) (E0E 21| BB
BE(WVARREEZAEREERS
At ERNEEE - 2 BITRAREND
mERRBE AR TRBEIRK

IR - BESMARSREHDIK -

B 7R ol 3 4 5 A 5 85 P B [m A4 T
BIRARRE TR ZEEMES °

MEELREBEREELEBEMEREGL 2K
/5

REEMFERBEELEIHEERE
Sz kB -

EHNELREBFR QA
“E-N\FER
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38 HOLDING COMPANY STATEMENT OF

38 EZERDE ZHBMRR R

FINANCIAL POSITION

31.3.2018 31.3.2017
—E-—N\E —T—+tF
=R=+—H =H=+—H
Notes HK$’000 HK$’'000
HtaE FET AT
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - WENMERE 2 377
Investments in subsidiaries KRB AR Z2®E 16,541,769 14,790,513
16,541,771 14,790,890
Current assets RBEE
Deposits and prepayment e RIERRIE 11,085 9,859
Amount due from a subsidiary FEU— M B A 5 ZE 409,235 399,184
Cash and bank balances Be RIBTTHES
— general accounts — —RERP 12,886 19,974
433,206 429,017
Current liabilities REBaE
Other payable and accruals HEiEMNBRERNETER 2,303 1,901
Amounts due to shareholders FERTAR R SRIA 3,929,911 2,021,911
Bank loans RITER 55,317 48,000
Tax payable FERFIIR 4,095 4,753
3,991,626 2,076,565
Net current liabilities REBAEEFEHE (3,558,420) (1,647,548)
Total asset less current liabilities BEERRBAR 12,983,351 13,143,342
Non-current liabilities FRBERS
Bank loans IRITER 393,366 656,000
Total non-current liabilities ERBEEATE 393,366 656,000
Total liabilities BEE%E 4,384,992 2,732,565
Net assets EEFE 12,589,985 12,487,342
Capital and reserves EXR#E
Share capital — ordinary shares REAN — E@pk 36 272,290 272,290
Share capital — non-redeemable [ A — A EE [l
convertible preference shares A #A ARAE S AR 36 75,000 75,000
Reserves & 37 12,242,695 12,140,052
Total equity B 12,589,985 12,487,342

1 78 Kingston Financial Group Limited
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39 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries
which principally affected the results, assets or liabilities of
the Group. The class of shares held is ordinary unless
otherwise stated.

39 RBARZERE
TREZFFEVEARMER  EERA
2B RS - RRAEBAEIN -
R 45 BB R AR -

Name of company

DRAEH

Place of
incorporation/

registration and
operation
SR BER
e

Proportion of ownership interest
BERERERLA

Particulars of
registered/ issued
and paid up share
capital
Tt/ ERTR
BRBRAFE

Group’s  Held by
effective the
interest Company
x5EE NG
BRELR 58

Held by a
subsidiary
HEAT
22|

Principal
activities

FEXR

Bebright Limited British Virgin Islands  US$1 100% 100% - Investment holding
LHAERRE RERURS 1% REER
Futuremind Holdings British Virgin Islands  US$1 100% - 100%  Investment holding
Limited RERUES IE REZR
GR Casa Real Holdings British Virgin Islands ~ US$5 100% - 100%  Investment holding
Limited RERLES 5% RERK
GR Casa Real Company ~ Macau MOP100,000 100% - 100%  Operating Casa Real
Limited Hotel
EXERBERRAA R 100,000 27T BEEREREE
Glory State Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100% - Investment holding
BB BT REER
Golden Resorts Group Hotel Macau MOP100,000 100% - 100%  Operating Grandview
Investment Limited Hotel
BEEEEERERRAR A 100,0002P97T BERBBE
Goventure Finance Limited” British Virgin Islands ~ US$1 100% 100% - Operating casino in
RBELES = hotels
RBIER LS
Next Champion Limited British Virgin Islands  US$1 100% 100% - Investment holding
RERUES 1% REER

EHNELREBFR QA
“E-N\FER
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39 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 39 RMBRARZRE®

Proportion of ownership interest

BERERLH
Place of Particulars of
incorporation/ registered/issued Group’s Held
registration and and paid up effective by the Heldbya
Name of company operation share capital interest Company subsidiary Principal activities
SR Bk B/ EROR r5E ApE WEAR
REER BEh BRBRAFE BERER =20) BE IEEH
New Times Entertainment ~ Macau MOP100,000 100% - 100%  Operating casino in
Limited @ hotels
MERREBR AT R 100,0002F97T RBIERLHES
Golden New Times Club ®  Macau HK$32,500,000 80% - 80%  Operating casino in
EoHHAEZES® BP9 32,500,000 T hotels
RBIEE 285
Golden New Times 28 Macau MOP10,000,000 100% - 100%  Operating casino in
Club® BP9 10,000,000} 7T hotels
BEHRA28EEg NEESERS
Target All Investments British Virgin Islands  US$1 100% 100% - Operating casino in
Limited * EERTHES =V hotels
ERREFRAR" NS
Good Start Group Limited " British Virgin Islands ~ US$1 100% 100% - Operating casino in
RBREAHE = hotels
NEESEHS
Crystal Sea Group Limited * British Virgin Islands ~ US$1 100% 100% - Investment holding
RBEAHE 1% and operating
Golden Times Club*
in hotel

REERRNEELE
BERREEE"

Noble Brand Limited # British Virgin Islands  US$1 100% 100% - Trading of listed
RBRAHE 1% securities
BEELMES
Right Business Limited * British Virgin Islands  US$100 100% 100% - Investment holding
BEBRAR RBRAES 100%7T RERK
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39 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

39 RMBLARZRE =

Proportion of ownership interest

BREERLA

Group’s Held

effective by the Held by a
interest Company subsidiary Principal activities
EEE A28 HEAT

Place of Particulars of
incorporation/ registered/issued
registration and and paid up
Name of company operation share capital
SRR EER  HER/EROK
EIEL mEnE BRRAFE
Kingston Securities Limited Hong Kong HK$5,000,000,000
EMEEFERAA 5 5,000,000,000 7T
Kingston Futures Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$15,000,000
eMNEHEBRATF BE 15,000,000/ 1
Kingston Corporate Hong Kong HK$11,000,000
Finance Limited BB 11,000,000/ 70
HNERBRERERAA
Kingston Asset Hong Kong HK$5,000,000
Management Limited &8 5,000,000/
SHEEEEBRBRAA
Canada United Potash Canada CAD50,000,100
Limited nex 50,000,100 /07
# Companies operate principally in Hong Kong instead of their

respective places of incorporation/establishment.

Companies operate principally in Macau instead of their
respective places of incorporation/establishment.

@ Golden New Times 28 Club and Golden New Times Club are
registered in Macau as business enterprises under the control
of and were operated by New Times Entertainment Limited.

BR#ER okl BE IEXH

100% - 100%  Dealing and advising
in securities and
margin financing

EHRHRERE
NRRECRE

100% - 100%  Dealing in futures
contracts

HEARNRH

100% - 100%  Provision of corporate
finance advisory
services

RECEHNBER
R

100% - 100%  Provision of asset
management
services

RRHUAEEE R

100% - 100%  Investment holding
RERK

# TEREEMFAEAZAME T KL
W E EE 2 2NA]

. TEFRFIMFAEAZAMA T K
W E EE 2 2NA]

°  ExHEABEEEREDHHAEE®S
HRBPIBLREELF AL
RERRRIZEHRAEE -
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40 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 40 HEBRERERME
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities: METHELEEZHE

Amounts Loan from
Dividend due to arelated  Subordinated
Bank loans payable  shareholders company loans

RE-X
BRITEX EffRE EBARRHE HBELREN REEK
HK$'000 HK$/000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR i TR THETL ThT

As at 1 April 2017 RZE-tEMA-A 3,235,834 - 2,311,911 7,948,861 700,000
Advances from a related company e NGEE - - - 6,569,601 -
Repayment to a related company A-FEERAED - - - (7,375,463) -
Repayment of bank borrowings BRRTEES (19,150,834) - - - -
Proceeds from bank borrowings i F*E}?ﬁ’%?—i 18,265,000 - - - -
Repayment {0 a shareholder —2RRER - - (92,000)
Advances from a shareholder -4 Hﬁ% - - 2,000,000 - -
Dividend paid to shareholders of ERARERERS

the Company - (434,100) - - -
Dividend paid to non-controlling interests B YR RIER & - (10,000) - - -
Interest paid on securities brokerage, PEHLL  BEREE

underwriting and placements, marginand ~ RES RERAFEE

IPO financing operations BEEKEANE (60,594) - (26,.959) (154,841) (21,750)
Interest paid BRFIE - - (30,300) - -
Total changes from financing cash flow BERLRERYEE (946,428) (444,100) 1,850,741 (960,703) (21,750)
Non-cash transactions: *REX5H
Dividend declared BEERKRE - 444,100 - - -

Interest expenses for securities brokerage, EHEL - HEREE
underwriting and placements marginand ~ FEE R ERAHEE

IPO financing operations BEEHFERY 60,594 - 26,959 154,841 21,750
Finance cost BEKAK - - 30,300 - -
As at 31 March 2018 RZE-NE=R=1-H 2,350,000 - 4,219,911 7,142,999 700,000
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41 OFFSETTING FINANCIAL ASSETS AND
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
The following tables present details of financial instruments
subject to offsetting, enforceable master netting
arrangements and similar agreements.

M EBEEEHEERESHAE

TREINAIFEEZ SR TA - AJRFBIATT
ZRFREE L MR RE ZFE -

Financial assets subject to offsetting
UTEEZERER
Related amounts not offset in the
consolidated statement of
financial position
BERGANBRRZEH
ZEBLE

Gross amount
of recognised
financial
liabilities offset

Gross amount
of recognised
financial
assets

oRASHE
EEAE
HK$000
T

inthe
consolidated
statement of
financial
position
RiRE

B MHR%
RHCRI
LREREE
HK$'000
THT

Net amount
of financial
assets
presented
in the
consolidated
statement
of financial
position
R&RE
B %
25|z &R
EERE
HK$'000
THEL

Financial
instruments
other than
cash collateral

REERR
W2
$BIR
HK$'000
AL

Cash
collateral

received Net amount

ek
Efm
HK$'000
TR

R
HK$'000
TR

At 31 March 2018 RZE-N\F
=f=t+-H
Type of financial assets SREERH
Trade receivable REBEEEY
from HKSCC B AW 130,259 (130,259) - - - -
At 31 March 2017 R-T—t%
=R=1-8
Type of financial assets SREEES
Trade receivable REEEEEY
from HKSCC BHRNE 138,677 (138,677) - - - -

THES

BMEBEBRAQA]
“E-N\FER
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41 OFFSETTING FINANCIAL ASSETS AND N BETHEERSBEREWw
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (continuea)

Financial liabilities subject to offsetting
TFEHzeNEE
Related amounts not offset in the
consolidated statement of
financial position
BERGEUBRARES
ZHEHLE

Grossamount  Net amount
of recognised of financial
financial liabilities
assets offset presented

Gross in the in the
amount  consolidated  consolidated Financial
of recognised statement statement  instruments Cash
financial of financial of financial other than collateral
liabilities position position cash collateral received  Netamount
i) A&
BEMRRR  BEMRR  Be#E#R
ERZER EHECRR 252 &R Wz gkEne
BEAE LSREERER SRR SRIA ER R B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THL THL TEL THIL THET THT

At 31 March 2018 RZE-N\&
ZA=t+-A
Type of financial liabilties SRHARER
Trade payable REBREE
from HKSCC B BREER 173,207 (130,259) 42,948 - - 42,948
At 31 March 2017 RZE—+%
ZA=t+-AR
Type of financial liabilities SREEEA
Trade payable REBELE
from HKSCC BHRMAER 147 591 (138,677) 8,914 - - 8,914
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41 OFFSETTING FINANCIAL ASSETS AND
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (continued)
The tables below reconcile the amounts of trade and other
receivables and trade and other payables as presented in
the statement of financial position:

M HEEHEERESHAEE®

TRERMHIRARMZINE 5 M EAM R
FRRELE 5 R H MR RR AR $15R

2018 2017
—E-)N\F —T—+F
Trade and other receivables HK$°000 HK$'000
B2 Rk HEMEWIRR FHxT T
Net amount of trade receivables KEEBEEZES
from HKSCC FERERFUFEE = -
Trade and other receivables not TNEEE IR ERE 2
in the scope of offsetting disclosure B 5 I E At FEU AR X 152,521 151,920
Trade and other receivables as ERE SRR RIS 2
disclosed in the consolidated B 5 Nk E AR
statement of financial position 152,521 151,920

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
Trade and other payables HK$’000 HK$'000
EZ REAMMEMIRMR FET T
Net amount of trade payable REBEBEE
from HKSCC B S REMNERFFRE 42,948 8,914
Trade and other payables not in TERERESGE
the scope of offsetting disclosure B 5 R H A TR 2,241,559 2,607,547
Trade and other payables as disclosed 4 &R RABEE S
in the consolidated statement of B 5 R H A ET IR
financial position 2,284,507 2,616,461

EHNELREBFR QA
“E-N\FER
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42 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(a) Categories of financial instruments
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of the
Group financial assets and liabilities as at the reporting

42 FHsERREE
(a) &WMIAES
R|EEH - SEEE
BB REENT

BERMEER

date are as follows:

2018 2017
—E-N\E —T—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FE&xT T
Financial assets TREE
Available-for-sale investments AEHERE 410 548
At fair value through profit or loss BN ERABE
— Held-for-trading investments —RFEEERE 192,805 134,955
Loans and receivables B EUBR TR
— Advances to customers — MEFPRMNREBEHE
in margin financing 20,582,355 19,468,948
— Financial assets included in trade —FTAE S REMER
and other receivables R EREE 112,378 118,682
— Cash and cash equivalents — RE KB FEEE 2,445,394 2,715,121
23,140,127 22,302,751
23,333,342 22,438,254
Financial liabilities Ca =N
Financial liabilities measured at WK ATEZ CRARE
amortised cost
— Financial liabilities included in —EHAE S REAMER
trade and other payables RRzemasE 2,166,734 2,563,088
— Amounts due to shareholders — F’éﬁl&%m 4,219,911 2,311,911
— Loan from a related company — RE—XKEAELARER 7,142,999 7,948,861
— Subordinated loans —BEER 700,000 700,000
— Bank loans — RITER 2,350,000 3,235,834
16,579,644 16,759,694
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42 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continueq) 42 BIERERE»)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) BEEREEEEREE

policies

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including foreign exchange risk,
interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity
risk.

i. Market risk

Foreign exchange risk

The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk
arising from various currency exposures, primarily
with respect to Renminbi (“RMB”), United States
Dollars (“USD”), and Singapore Dollars (“SGD”).
Foreign exchange risk arises from future
commercial transactions and recognised assets
and liabilities.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign
currency denominated financial assets and
liabilities at the reporting date are as follows:

Liabilities
=i
2018

—E-N\F
HK$’000
FET

UsD ETT 109
RMB AR 2,295
SGD N T 203

The Group currently does not have a foreign
currency hedging policy. However, the
management monitors the foreign exchange
exposure and will consider hedging significant
foreign currency exposure should the need arise.

The Group does not expect any significant
movements in the exchange rate of USD to HKD
and the net effect of SGD is low. The Group is
mainly exposed to the effects of fluctuation in
RMB.

AEE Y EHEDSIEREER :

SRk (8 %EE’JJ—LKﬁ =

.

K8

ﬁ\ﬂﬁ'&) ’Efi /}|l§j]§iﬂ" °

i SRR
&SRR
rEEAZZRBATNRER
EZERREE T2 RA
(TAR®D - =x(x=x))
P TT (¥ TT ) © E S
KERKEERS KO HER
HATE -

i 2
R
K3
e
BE

RRE B - REBASNESHE
LeMEERBREZERER

T

Assets
BE

2017 2018 2017
—tF ZEB-N\F —tF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
T FE T FET
77,726 2,915 78,420
2,888 285,882 5,351
380 902 983

REHE B AT EHNE SRR

AW EREeERELR
THREFBBHZRBEFEKN
Rk -

REBEHETHABTZE
BAEREXRS - MK
FREEM - AREREEE
RARB KRB ZTE -

% -
BE 5

4
o

ERE

EHNELREBFR QA 187
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42 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

188

U

Market risk (continued)

Foreign exchange risk (continued)

The following table indicates the approximately
change in the group’s profit and loss for the year
in response to reasonably possible changes in
the foreign exchange rates to which the group
has significant exposure at the reporting date.

Increase/
(Decrease)
in foreign

exchange
rates

N
(TE2)

ARE

Renminbi

It is assumed that the change in foreign exchange
rates had occurred at the end of the reporting
period and had been applied to the Group’s
exposure to foreign exchange risk for financial
instruments in existence at that date, and that all
other variables, in particular interest rates, remain
constant. It is also assumed that the pegged rate
between the Hong Kong dollar and the United
States dollar would be materially unaffected by
any changes in movement in value of the United
States dollar against other currencies. The
analysis is performed on the same basis for 31
March 2017.

Kingston Financial Group Limited
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42 BB EE
(b) MEEREERZREEK )

U

TS EE (2)
PE 5 JE B ()
TRINEAEE 2 F Wi &
BREXSGEMNEEZE(AEE

RIS BHARERRER) ME

2018 2017
—ZE-N\F T —tF

Increase/ Increase/ Increase/
(Decrease) (Decrease) (Decrease)

in profit in foreign in profit

after tax exchange after tax

for the year rates for the year
FARBLE FAKRTIL
wmAEMS  EREA EFGMS

(R 2>) (TB&) CRA)

% HK$’000 % HK$'000
% TET % T
3% 8,508 3% 74
-3% (8,508) -3% (74)
ERZEXSHNREHARE

£ WERARAEERZ B
B2 r T EPrmEE LR E -
BBEEMEHUSRIENE) %
FATE - R HERERABITHET
ZHMBERAHTEXIETY
Hip §H 2 EMEEZSTE
T +F=R=+—HBZHH
THER AR ERAETT -
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42 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

(M)

Market risk (continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk arises
primarily from its borrowings, bank deposits and
loan receivables. Borrowings, bank deposits and
loan receivables at variable rates expose the
group to cash flow interest rate risk and fair value
interest rate risk respectively.

The Group has not used any interest rate swaps
to hedge its exposure to interest rate risk. The
management monitors the Group’s exposure on
ongoing basis.

At 31 March 2018, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 100 basis points (2017: 100
basis points) in interest rates, with all other
variables held constant, would increase/decrease
the Group’s profit after tax and retained earnings
by approximately HK$171,726,000 (2017:
HK$158,289,000).

The sensitivity analysis above has been
determined assuming that the change in interest
rates had occurred at the end of the reporting
period and had been applied to the company’s
exposure to interest rate risk for financial
instruments in existence at that date. The analysis
is performed on the same basis for 31 March
2017.

Price risk

The Group is exposed to price risks arising from
equity investments held for trading purpose (note
23) and available-for-sale investment (note 22)
whose returns are linked to a portfolio of securities
listed in Hong Kong and other major stock market
in the portfolio.

42 HBEERERE @

(b)

PBEREE

(i)

EEHERBE®)
TIEAMR (&)
Tl 2 fz
AEBZRERREETEHEE
B RITHERREWREREE -
FREN  BITTFRRERER

SAREBE D IEAZRESREHE
[P Re A B @ e o

K 8 B3 4 3 PR PR b R R
EH 2 FHRER - EEEREE
RAEERTZEM -

RZE—N\F=ZA=+—8" 'm
FEEEEE A T 100 E2 (=
T+ 100EZ)  MAAEHE
hEHEFTE B AER
BrFi 1% i T R AR BE BRI R
9%@171,726,000,%73(:;?*{
4 1 158,289,000 T) °

IR GURE ST RR N EE B
REPRELE  YERARAR
ARNZARB R TAMEYH
MRk e —T—tF=H
=t+—BZoMRARREE
HETT o

B8 2 fe

REBFE 2 EBRERKEFE
BER® 2 RARE (M:E23)
LEEEAEF 2AJHEERE
(HEsmEanads hEmEZR
Emiz EmeBHREEEGH
) (IsE22) ©

ENELHMEBBRA

= /\¢¢+&
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42 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

U

190

Market risk (continued)

Price risk (continued)

The Group’s listed investments are listed on the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong. Decisions to buy
or sell held for trading investments are based on
daily monitoring of the performance of individual
securities, as well as the Group’s liquidity needs.
Management manages this exposure by
maintaining a portfolio of investments with
different risk profiles. The available-for-sale
investment has been chosen based on their good
value and growth prospects and are monitored
regularly for performance against expectations.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to
every 25% (2017: 14%) change in the equity
prices with all other variables held constant and
based on their carrying amounts at the end of the
reporting period. For the available-for-sale
investment, the impact is deemed to be on the
investment revaluation reserve and no account is
given for factors such as impairment, which might
have impact on the statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income.

2018 —E-N\EF
Held for trading investments BIFEERE
Available-for-sale investment AHEERE
2017 —EB—tF
Held for trading investments HIEEERE
Available-for-sale investment AHEERE

Kingston Financial Group Limited
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Eji%@@%éii‘*‘
(b) MEREREEEEZREEK®)

U

Increase/
decrease in

basis points

%R
Th

25%
25%

14%
14%

TSR (#)

BT 7 ()

AEEZ EFRERB BB
Em e EASUELFKIEFERRE
ZRETIREET A ERERE?
RENRAEERBESHEM
L - ERERFREAST

TRRBEREZRE  NEEE
ARk  AERERERERST

BrrfERkEERRSIGERHE
ERE UEHERKRRELRE
BTEHR

TRHABPEMEHMEEERFT
BZIERT  RBRDRRE
RAZEEERE  REZE25%
(ZB— 5 14%) 2 HRRE -
RAIHEERENS - BEEZH
WEABHIEESHHBEENY
2 MIWEEREMFES ]
e EBEsRkEMEEmKSER Y
FSE

Increase/
decrease in
net profit/loss
and retained
earnings
A ER
FHERRERF
#m,/ wWd
HK$'000

THT

Increase/
decrease in
other equity

reserves

Rt R A E
8/ D
HK$'000
FET

47,282 =

13,184 -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B75 R M ot

42 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

(i)

Credit risk

The extent of the Group’s credit exposure is
represented by the aggregate balance of cash at
bank, advances to customers in margin financing
and trade and other receivables. Management
has a credit policy in place and the exposures to
these credit risks are monitored on an ongoing
basis.

Before granting loans and margin financing to
outsiders, the Group uses an internal credit
assessment process to assess the potential
borrower’s credit quality and defines credit limits
by borrower. Limits attributed to borrowers are
reviewed by the management regularly. The
Group obtains collateral from borrower to
minimise the credit risk in respect of the loan
receivables.

In respect of trade and other receivables, the
management of the Group has delegated a team
responsible for determination of credit limits,
credit approval and other monitoring procedures
to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover
overdue debts. Trade receivables from hotel and
gaming segments are due within 30 days from the
date of billing. Normally, the Group does not
obtain collateral from customers.

In order to minimise the credit risk in respect of
the trade and other receivables and margin
financing, the Group reviews the recoverable
amount at the end of the reporting period to
ensure that adequate allowances are made for
irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the
directors of the Group consider that the Group’s
credit risk is significantly reduced.

42

HMEERERw
(b) BMBEAREEEERKE )

(i) FEERE

AREEAZ 2 EERRIERITIR
T AEFPBNRESRENAR
B 5 MEMR IR Z B o
BEECEREERR K&K

ZEREERR -

i R RE S A IR
AL ZB - AEEU—ERHE
ST AT (6 S BB

ZEEERRREBRERA

EERRE - ERAZEERRET
MR E iAo AEERZ
F FEUE TR IR 5 TR A M ER R 3R

NEEREEERR -

B S REMEEERRMS -

SEERECRE—MEBML &

EETEERSE BHEER

BEITEMEERRF  BEREMK
Bl EIRRIBRETTE) - B/
REE DR ZE 5 R ARTN %
S HBEI0E AR — K
mE - AEETGERELREHR

Efm e

REERIKE 7 & E MR RN
HeREZEERR K
SERBEHRRT I KD
B EREATARESEEL
RS - St - AEEE
ERB/AEEZEERBREAKR

A K2 £

b o

SHMYLBEBERAR
—T\FFH
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42 FlNANClAL RlSK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

192

(i)

(iif)

Credit risk (continued)

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced
mainly by the individual characteristics of each
customer. At the end of 31 March 2018, there is
no concentration of credit risk with respect to the
receivables, as no one customer is responsible
for more than 10% of the Group’s trade
receivables and margin financing. This was also
the case as at 31 March 2017.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the
company’s exposure to credit risk arising from
advances to customers in margin financing and
trade and other receivables are set out in notes
24 and 25, respectively.

Liquidity risk

A number of the Group’s activities are subject to
various statutory liquidity requirements as
prescribed by the Securities and Futures
Commission in accordance with the Hong Kong
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “HKSFQO”).
The Group is closely monitored to the liquidity
gap to ensure that it maintains adequate liquid
capital to fund its business commitments and to
comply with the relevant Financial Resources
Rules under the HKSFO. As part of the measures
to safeguard liquidity, the Group has maintained a
balance between continuity of funding and
flexibility through the uses of the shareholders’
loan, subordinated loan and banking facilities in
order to meet its liquidity requirements in the short
and long terms.

Kingston Financial Group Limited
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(b)

BREREEEERBE @

(i) EERB@)
AEEME 2 EZERRBREES
BEEFERNSENMZE  R-Z

(iif)

—NF=ZA=1T—BHKE J?
WERHR I |EREERRE - 1)
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MR R ARE S B E < LL IR
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BB D RIBRHIFE 24 )2 25 »
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HEEBERLZEGRBELEE
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42 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continuea) 42 BIEERERE e

(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) BERAREEEERBE®)

policies (continued)

(iii) Liquidity risk (continued) (i) RBESEE )
The following table details the remaining TREAVINEERARRRIFEITE
contractual maturities at the end of the reporting SRBERRERARZFGREL
period of the Group and Company’s non- EmE - TR A Y KAIRIR S
derivative financial liabilities, which are based on mE BREREBEANMNESE
contractual undiscounted cash flows (including (S AZE  AIBRERERKR
interest payments computed using contractual ZHRRFE) ZRBAARE - AR
rates or, if floating, based on the rates current at RATAWESNN Tz &xFEHE
the end of the reporting period) and the earliest EBE :

date the company can be required to pay:

2018 2017
“E-N\f 2E-tf
Total Total

contractual Within contractual Within
Carrying  undiscounted  one year or Over Camyjing  undiscounted ~ one yearor Over
amount cashflow  ondemand one year amount cashfow  ondemand one year

ARFRER = i
FiE REResR E2X —FiE RHfE , EEX ik
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000
TEn ThR THR ThR Thn Tk T Thn
Trade and ofher payables ERREMENER 2,166,734 2,166,734 2,166,734 - 2,563,088 2,663,088 2,563,088 -
Amounts dug to shareholders  ERREZE 4219911 4,310,808 4,310,808 - 2311911 2,335,468 2,335,468 -
Loanfrom arelated company ~ RE-FHERTEH 7,142,999 7,286,859 7,285,859 - 7,948 861 8,107,838 8,107,838 -
Subordinated loans fEER 700,000 721,750 721,750 - 700,000 721,750 721,750 -
Bank loans HITER 2,350,000 2,401,982 1,726,313 675,669 3235834 3286614 2030822 1,255,792

16579644 16,887,133 16,211,464 675669 16759604 17014758 15758966 1,295,792
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42 FlNANClAL RlSK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(c) Fair value estimation

(d)

194

Level 1 —

Level2 —

Level3 —

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities
are determined as follows:

the fair values of held-for-trading investments with
standard terms and conditions and traded on
active liquid markets are determined with
reference of quoted market prices;

the fair value of available-for-sale financial asset
is based on net asset value of the investment fund
at the end of the reporting period;

the fair value of other financial assets and
financial liabilities are determined in accordance
with generally accepted pricing models based on
discounted cash flow analysis using prices or
rates from observable current market transactions
as input.

Fair value hierarchy of financial instruments
HKFRS 7 requires disclosure of financial instruments
that are measured at fair value by level of the following
fair value measurement hierarchy:

quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or
liabilities.

inputs other than quoted prices
included within Level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (that is, as prices) or
indirectly (that is, derived from prices).
inputs for the asset or liability that are
not based on observable market data
(that is, unobservable inputs).

Kingston Financial Group Limited
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42 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continuea) 42 BIEEMERw

(d) Fair value hierarchy of financial instruments

d =MIAEAFESH@

(continued)
The following table presents the financial instruments TRIWERZZE-NER_ZT—+F
that are measured at fair value as at 31 March 2018 —A=Z+t—HURAFEFEZEMT

and 2017.

At 31 March 2018

Ho

R-ZE—-NFE=A=+—H

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—Al ERA E=MA et
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
TET THET TERT TERT
Assets BE

Held for trading investments FIEEERE 192,805 - - 192,805

Available-for-sale AHHERE
investments - 410 - 410
192,805 410 - 193,215

At 31 March 2017

Level 1
E—M7l

HK$'000
TAT

R-E—+tHE=A=+—H

Level 3 Total
F 5 F=5 fBEr
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FTAT THT TR

Level 2

Assets BE
Held for trading investments FIEEERE 134,955 - - 134,955
Available-for-sale AHHERE
investments - 548 - 548
134,955 548 - 135,503

During the year, there are no significant transfers

between Level 1 and Level 2.

FA - FH—RREE Z QB2 L E
EREEE -
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43 OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENT

(a) The Group leases its land and buildings under
operating lease arrangements, and the terms of the
leases range from one to ten years and the leases are
repayable in fixed monthly instalments. The lease
agreements are renewable at the end of the respective
lease terms. There is no arrangement for contingent
rent payments.

43

b= ==t

(a)

At 31 March 2018, the Group had total future minimum
lease receivable under non-cancellable operating
leases which fall due as follows:

4R B

HERE
AEBERBEEHERHEERE Tt
kgF  HESENF—FETEIE

HEeESATREIBMXN - HEWZHEA

REBHERERRESE AKEL
B ARBESNREL T -

RZFB-N\F=ZA=1+—H Xx&H

KA HMEKLEHER T Z BERER
RIEES AN T HEDH

2018 2017

—E-N\F —T—+F

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FETT

Within one year —FR 8,693 38,107
After one year but within five years —FREAFA 32,395 21,982
41,088 60,089

The Group entered into non-cancellable operating
lease arrangements with landlords and the terms of the
leases range from one to three years.

The lease payments recognised as expenses are as
follows:

Minimum lease payments HIEFAERE

A B R B AT A BE G A
S MESNT—FE=F1E -

ERRF 2 HEFIRWT

2018
—E-N\F

2017
—T—+F
HK$000
FHBT

HK$°000
FET

30,987 30,490

Kingston Financial Group Limited
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43 OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENT (continued)
(b)  (continued)
At 31 March 2018, the Group had total future minimum
lease rent payables under non-cancellable operating
leases falling due as follows:

KREHERE®
(b) (&)

RZE-NF=ZA=+—08  A&H
RARHEKEEER N2 BREN
RIEHES AN T HEDE

2018 2017

—E-N\F —T—tF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET BT

Within one year —FR 33,150 27,082
After one year but within five years —FRERFNAN 63,105 140
96,255 27,222

44 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT
LIABILITIES

Expenditure contracted but not
provided for in respect of: 2
— Property, plant and equipment

— W - BB LERE

44 FEERIAEE

2018 2017
—g-NE T t%F
HK$'000

HK$’000
FiB T

M TITEE BRI EAREE

630 1,335

The Group’s wholly owned subsidiary Good Start Group
Limited received tax notices issued by Macau Financial
Services Bureau dated 29 April 2014 and 18 May 2016
assessing its Macau Complementary Tax payable for the
years of assessment 2009 and 2010 and years of assessment
2011 and 2012 respectively. The tax amounts per tax notices
for aforementioned years of assessment were approximately
HK$15,000,000, HK$20,000,000, HK$24,400,000 and
HK$25,400,000 respectively.

KEE 2 2 E K E Q7 Good Start Group
Limited REBPIMM B BB L AR AT
—UFENAZF+NABEZE—XRFRATN
HzRdBMBAE  TEER_ZTTAFR=
TE-TERBREEUR T ——F K
T CFRUFECEMRPIEHER
e RRBABBAE - LARBFEZ2BIE
5 B %) A15,000,0007% 7T + 20,000,000 75
JT ~ 24,400,000 % 7T } 25,400,000 8 7T °

%%J%A:ﬁizlﬁgégi 1 97
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44

198

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT
LlABlLlTlES (continued)

The Group’s another wholly owned subsidiary Target All
Investments Limited received tax notices issued by Macau
Financial Services Bureau dated 26 August 2015 and 24
October 2016 assessing its Macau Complementary Tax
payable for the years of assessment 2011 and 2012 and
years of assessment 2013 and 2014 respectively. The tax
amounts per tax notices for aforementioned years of
assessment were approximately HK$1,300,000,
HK$1,000,000, HK$3,800,000 and HK$6,300,000
respectively.

The Group lodged objection to appeal against the aforesaid
notices according to stipulated appeal procedures. The
Review Committee of Macau Financial Services Bureau (the
“Committee”) issued their decision to reject all appeals by
the Group in relation to the aforesaid Macau Complementary
Tax payable.

After receiving the final decision of the Committee on their
rejection of the Group’s appeal, the Group made the tax
payment according to stipulated regulation requirement
before making further appeal via court. With regard to each
of the Committee’s rejection of the Group’s appeal, the Group
separately submitted initial petitions to the court on 9
December 2014 and 24 October 2016 for Good Start Group
Limited and initial petitions to the court on 10 March 2016
and 17 February 2017 for Target All Investments Limited. The
legal proceedings are still in progress up to the date of this
report. As advised by local tax consultant and lawyer, the
directors considered that the Group has valid grounds for the
appeal and they believed that the gaming revenue generated
through Good Start Group Limited and Target All Investments
Limited’s Service Agreement with SJM is not subject to
Macau Complementary Tax since it is derived from SJM
gaming revenue, which gaming revenue is exempted
pursuant to Macau Law. Accordingly, no provision of taxation
is considered given the chances for the chargeability is not
probable.

Kingston Financial Group Limited
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AERIAREE

TEBE—R2EMNBARLEFRERRA
RIREBMM R BEYBSAE_T—RF
NAZ+AREBE_E—XRE+A-_+WNAZ
FHBHNE FTHRAZZ——FRK=F
—CFERBMEEUR T —=F R =T
FRBFE ZEIRPIMSE TR o LR
HEANE  FRREEZHEINOAE
1,300,000 7¢ ~ 1,000,000 7T * 3,800,000
78 7T X 6,300,000 /8 7T ©

AEBIZEE LRiEFRE Y > 3t L@
HMEELLF - BFIHBAEEEZES ([
Bg ) FRERREARE AR L EMR
FIPRSHTER 2 P A L3k

WEIZEgREARER Lz &EHRE -
REBIRRBLE EGIHR TN E IR ER
EhiR LEF - iE B @R EASES R E
FoOAEESRR -_E-—NE+-ANBR
ZZE—XF+ A=+ WMH 5 Good Start
Group Limited AS AT #1120 2 55 A K&
RZE—ARF=ZA+HE=ZZE—CtF_A
THEARLEFREBRARAZERR LY
HEF HEAREBH  AEFANEE
1190 o BINE B EE L 2Es 25
REAEEE 7D EHREE  MESHEE -
i% 38 Good Start Group Limited & % 1% &
BERAREREMT L RGHEEEZEY
W B ABWBRPIFSHAT  REABH
WamRERE IR RE - mRIEZ BRI
HERBRFVEIEGSERE - ERERA]
BEMER K - NN E BIENTIIERE -
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44

45

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT
LlABlLlTlES (continued)

If the legal proceedings relating to the Macau
Complementary Tax payables for the years of assessment
2009, 2010, 2011, and 2012 of Good Start Group Limited,
and years of assessment 2011, 2012, 2013, and 2014 of
Target All Investments Limited are eventually unsuccessful
and if the same basis of taxation is applied to all years of
assessment from 2011 to 2018, the tax recoverable amount
of approximately HK$97,200,000 will be offset against the tax
obligation and the Group will additionally need to pay
approximately HK$107,600,000 of Macau Complementary
Tax for its mass market business in Macau. Pursuant to the
Macau Complementary Tax law, the assessment on an
estimated assessable profit in a year of assessment will lapse
in five consecutive years after that year of assessment, thus
no tax liability was expected for the year of assessment
before 2009.

The Group had no other material contingent liabilities at the
end of the year 31 March 2018.

UNDERWRITING AND SUB-
UNDERWRITING COMMITMENTS

The Group guarantees to purchase the securities in
underwriting amounted to HK$680,898,000 (2017:
HK$616,976,000) being offered by sales of securities, at an
agreed-upon price between the Group and issuer of
securities, regardless of whether or not the securities can be
sold to investors in the futures. In the opinion of the directors
of the Group, the fair values of the underwriting and sub-
underwriting arrangements are insignificant to the Group.

44

45

EERSIAEE @

fi# % Good Start Group Limited ® —ZZ A,
F ZE2FF . ZFT——FRZFT—=F
AMFEARRERREBRAFTANRE
——F - F =K -F
—OFERMEE 2 ETRPIFTEHATRIED
AR TR R T  MABRGRBIEE
AR -ZE——FE2 T \EMAZEHF
€ - RIRTUR B #TE 49 97,200,000 7 7T #% A BA
WHEHRBEML - BAEEGEREINGLE IR
P EBKAMNBMAAMGH TR
107,600,0007% 7T ° 1R 5 )R T BT 15 # 72 4
% RBEE 2 T FE R BUE B 2 SRS R
TR FERTEER T RARN WA
EENFRIZABFETEXTAHBEE -

R-Z-NFZA=+—BFLE  ~&E
WEEMBALARIE

B D BHEAE

AEBERFEEE B+ 2 #0680,898,000 %
T(ZZF —+ % :616,976,000/8 T ) 2 &
5 HABHFHETREVE 2EHF - BF
HAASBEBLAEITARBE M ARESFB
BRGHETRES - AEEEERAE B
RS BT AFEHAEE RS I
BEKX-

SHELREBMERAT
—T—)\EFH
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46 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY AND
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group entered
into the following material related party and connected
transactions.

(a) Key management personnel remuneration
Remuneration for key management personnel,
including amounts paid to the Company’s directors as
disclosed in note 16 as follows:

46 EXBELTRBERS

Brit SRR B B W EE 2 X 5 M AE
S NEBEHETT NIERET MRAER
5 o

(a) TEEBASHS
TEEBAEMS  REAALAE
37 F0B (AW 16 BE) I T

2018 2017

—ZE-N\F —E—+tF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FH&TT

Short-term employee benefits MHEEBREA 92,490 101,985
Retirement scheme contribution RIRET B TR 101 104
92,591 102,089

Total remuneration is included in “Staff costs” (note 9).

20” Kingston Financial Group Limited
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46 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY AND 46 ERBEAIRBEERS @

CONNECTED TRANSACT'ONS (continued)

(b) During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group (b) BE—T-N\F=A=+—HILFE "
entered into the following material related party AREEDETTNERBEIRS
transactions which are also connected transactions 52:/\%7T7%J;mfﬁ BITE N 2 BER
(“CT")/continuing connected transactions (“CCT") SUHEESS )/ HERESS ([
under the Listing Rules. BREERS]) -

Transaction type

Name of related party Nature of transaction under Listing Rules
EHRAET 2018 2017
BELER P REME ZREEE —EB-N\F T +F
HK$°000 HK$'000
T T
Chu and Li's Family Brokerage income CCT 1,254 495
RERFRK A RHEWERS
Maximum amount of IPO financing CCT 174,996 -
ERERNHEERER REBERS
Maximum amount of margin financing ~ CCT 194,286 240,266
EeRELRER RHERERS
Interest income CCT 5,464 3,211
FERA HEMER S
Ho Chi Ho Brokerage income CCT 21 -
SR EERL N RHEBERS
Maximum amount of IPO financing CCT 21,777 -
BRBARREERER FEMER S
Maximum amount of margin financing ~ CCT - -
EeRECHER RHEBERS
Interest income CCT 34 -
MEBA HEMERS
Directors of subsidiaries Brokerage income CT 50 55
and associates HEATON BERS
MEARESRABEAL
Kingston Finance Limited Interest expense CT 154,841 156,265
(note 2) MEFX BER S
SHEHBERAR Management fee income (note 1) CT 600 600
(Hat 2) ERBEWA(HE 1) HER S
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46 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY AND 46 EXBAEIRBAERS @
CONNECTED TRANSACT'ONS (continued)
(b) (continued) (b) @)

Transaction type

Name of related party Nature of transaction under Listing Rules
LHHRAET 2018 2017
BELER L REME ZREEE —B-NF —T—+F
HK$°000 HK$'000
TEx THT
Sincere Watch (Hong Kong)  Management fee income (note 1) RPT 60 240
Limited (note 3) ERBWAMET) BEFIRS
Sincere Watch (Hong Kong)  Financial advisory income, placing RPT 499 3,327
Limited (A7 3) commission and financial services HERRS
incomes
IHEERA - REMAT ReRRBRA
Mr. Lee Wai Man (note 4) Consultancy fee (note 1) CT 1,000 1,000
FEXEE (Hat4) BEERMWT1) BERS
Mrs. Chu Yuet Wah Staff quarter rental expenses CT 1,038 954
FRELL BIEEHEHX HERSH
REF Financial Press Limited  Financial printing service charge CT 397 346
(Note 5) B ENRIRR 7 & A HER S
BLECERIAR AR
(Hizt 5)
For the continuing connected transactions above, the B IERTTESROEEI LSER S
independent non-executive directors have reviewed RH UHRBEBELSIIRAE
and confirm that the continuing connected transactions N—RREBED  WIEEREEGR
are in the ordinary and usual course of business, on WRBEESZETH ZHEBHEZ A
normal commercial terms and in accordance with the FTEIBIEITET BFEAAFKRE
relevant agreement governing them on terms that are BB T 2L o

fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The Company confirms that it has complied with the ARABERERE FTHHIE14A=
disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter BT ERIATE o
14A of the Listing Rules.

202 Kingston Financial Group Limited
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46 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY AND
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b)

(continued)

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the
Group’s continuing connected transactions in
accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of
Historical Financial Information” and with reference to
Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing
Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. The auditor has issued his
unqualified letter containing his findings and
conclusions in respect of the continuing connected
transactions disclosed by the Group in page 201 to 202
of the Annual Report in accordance with Main Board
Listing Rule 14A.56. A copy of the auditor’s letter has
been provided by the Company to The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited.

Notes:

1. This transaction was transacted at a price agreed
between the parties and in accordance with the
agreement.

2. Mrs. Chu Yuet Wah had controlling interest in the
company.

3. Mrs. Chu Yuet Wah ceased to be the controlling
shareholder of Sincere Watch (Hong Kong) Limited on 7
September 2015. Transactions entered during the years
2017 and 2018 represented related party transactions
only.

4. Mr. Lee Wai Man is the father of Mrs. Chu Yuet Wah.

5. Mr. Lau Man Tak is a controlling shareholder of REF
Holdings Limited. REF Financial Press Limited is an
indirectly wholly owned subsidiary of REF Holdings
Limited.

N

46 ERXRBETRBEXRS »)

(b) )
RRARIZEMCEZBEREE ST
MASHEMGzEBEFEKELSR
30005k (1&87]) [ FETA BB
BERNEETIE]  WRREKHB
FE 7405 [BARES LR RIFT I E
BEZ S BN SRR 23
BERER ZIERRE - ZEAIERE
TR EMRBIE14AL6IEMERSE
201%2025?)??&%‘5221&%@%i%?%

RPEHERBERL Y - EFH
HASHERERER - ARBIEAEE

Bt a5 AR DR 2 A BAD K
EH'JZK °©
Kzt -

1. WEXRGIRETES IBEZEBREELE
WRIRB BT adi e 7T °

2. FHELLTHERZRRZFEREZ -

3 RIZE-—AFNALH FHELZL
T /& 7 Sincere Watch (Hong Kong)
Limited Z ERARR e R —FE—+ %
R-ZB-NFHEITZXSEREET

4. FEXEERFAELLZRH

5. 5#)‘?%%55 4 A REF Holdings Limited
RARE o 42 LA A IR E R 2 A]
ﬁREF I—/o/d/ngs Limited 2 [E1## i\ﬁ
KL

%ﬂ%ﬂémifﬁlﬁﬁﬁ

- % /\¢¢+&
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47

48

204

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
On 16 June 2018, the Group’s wholly owned subsidiary
Canada United Potash Limited (the “CUPL”) was notified by
the Ministry of Energy and Resources (the “Ministry”),
Canada, that the status of its 15 subsurface mineral leases,
as recorded under intangible assets of the Group, would
continue to be active, provided that the CUPL submits a
payment for the delinquent payments of rentals within an
agreed upon payment schedule. As at 28 June 2018, both
CUPL and the Ministry have not yet concluded a specific
repayment time schedule for the aforesaid delinquent
payments of rentals and the CUPL have not yet made any
payment for the aforesaid delinquent payments of rentals.

APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the Board of Directors on 28 June 2018.

Kingston Financial Group Limited
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BEHRSEE

RZE—N\FRNA+B KEEZ2EM
B /A #]Canada United Potash Limited
(fCuPL) Eme ReeREE R ([ &R
B D@ REFBEZISOHM NTEEME
GIRATEEEREE)RAKESERE
2 - AR A CUPLA B E M RERRAZ
HERK - R_ZE—NFAA=-+N\B"
CUPLEE R ARS it ERRET LA
BENEHERKX MCUPLIAR FEEX
A ATAEAIFRIE ©

B B 3R &
MEBREN T \FAA-+\BRE
R R -
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